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2009 2008 2007 2006
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2.20 0.84 0.84 0.84 0.84

210 209 207 207 207
627 511 400 274 206
150 132 1171 150 149
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21% 23% 38% 49% 61%
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Letter 1o the Shareholders

| am encouraged by the rebound of the Group’s performance in the second half of the financial year ended 28
February 2010 (“the year”) and pleased to report that we have achieved satisfactory improvement in our full-year
financial results. Moreover, the resumption of trading in shares at the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 15 June 2009
after the suspension of trading for more than three years made the year more remarkable.

Attributable to our conservative expansion in the retail network in Asia, the total turnover of the Group demonstrated
a modest increase over the year despite the continuingly gloomy export market. However, in light of a steady
growth in the China retail business and improved efficiency across the Group, satisfactory growth of 24.8% and
16.2% in the pre-tax profit and the profit attributable to shareholders respectively were recorded when compared o
the previous year. Excluding the non-recurring other revenue recorded in the previous year, we have achieved an
outstanding improvement of 60.1% in the profit attributable to shareholders. Thanks to the re-investment program in
the past years which enabled us to drive various improvement initiatives, such as effective cost control.

In addition to achieving good financial results, our mission has always been to strive for excellence in innovative
product designs, state-of-the-art craftsmanship and extraordinary customer service. We proudly announce that
we attained a new Guinness World Record, “The Most Expensive Snoopy Memorabilia”. In celebration of the 60th
anniversary of Snoopy & his friends, a comic originated in the United States, we created “The Ever-Shining Star”,
a masterpiece set with over ten thousand pieces of diamonds and color stones totaling 207 carats. Furthermore,
our jewelry designers achieved outstanding results in various jewelry design competitions during the year. The 11th
Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition, the most recognized jewelry design competition in Hong Kong organized
by HKTDC and a number of jewelry frade associations, awarded our Chief Jewelry Designer, Mr. Yuen Che Wai,
and the Company the Best of Show Award and the Craftsmanship & Technology Award. Last but not least, our
excellence in the area of customer service also shone. Our staff, Ms. Wong Yin Fun, was awarded “2009 Service
& Courtesy Award” by Hong Kong Retail Management Association and one of our retail stores in Hong Kong was
awarded “Top Performer 2009" by MTR Corporation Limited.

As for the business outlook, it is beyond doubt that the China retail business will continue to flourish. We will keep
investing in expanding the regional retail network for business opportunities maximization. More marketing resources
will also be provided to enhance our brand exposure. Saxx, our second brand ftargeting at the young and energetic
professionals, will continue to expand ifs store network for a wider coverage in China. In developed markets like
Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia, we will continue to review the retail network and store profiles in order to drive
greater efficiency and return on investment. In terms of corporate social responsibilities, we will keep up with our
Caring Company status, and sponsor our staff for their participation in charity programs. We will also look into
different environmental friendly ways to conduct our business.

Though the outlook is more positive, there are many challenges ahead. The effect of the global financial furmaoil will
certainly linger in the near-term with the possibility of over-heated markets has to be closely monitored at all time.
Hence striking the balance between aggressive moves and risk mitigations in the right strategic direction is crucial.
Nonetheless, with the continuing support from our shareholders and other stakeholders, | am confident that all these
challenges can be overcome.

As the leader of the Company, | will work diligently with the Board of Directors and my executive team in taking the
Company a quantum leap forward.

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Group Results

For the financial year ended 28 February 2010, the Group achieved (i) a consolidated turnover of HK$2,017.6 million
(2009: HK$1,959.4 million), an increase of 3% from last financial year and (ii) a profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$121.7 million (2009: HK$104.8 million), an increase of 16%. Earnings per share were 58 HK
cents (2009: 50 HK cenfts). If the non-recurring compensation income of early termination of lease in last year was
excluded, the profit attributable to shareholders increased 60%. The improvement in the Group’s results for the
year was mainly aftributable to the growth in turnover and contribution from our mainland China (the *Mainland”)
business.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 8 HK cents per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended
28 February 2010 (2009: 3 HK cenfts per ordinary share) to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on Wednesday, 25 August 2010, subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Together with the interim dividend paid to shareholders on Friday, 11 December 2009, the
fotal dividend for the year ended 28 February 2010 will be 10 HK cents per ordinary share of the Company (2009:
5 HK cents per ordinary share).

The business environment in Hong Kong and Macau in the first half of the year was formidable. Thanks to
improvement efforts and austerity measures taken by the Group, together with the revival of retail market in the
second half of the year and the subsiding of Influenza (HINT1) threat, the Group had regained the ground lost
in the first half year and achieved growth of approximately 22% when compared to last year. In Hong Kong, we
expanded our store in Hollywood Plaza, Mong Kok and renovated our store in Austin Road, Tsim Sha Tsui during the
year to meet the demand for jewellery from tourists. The performance of both markets will confinue to heavily rely
on the growth of tourist demand.
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As to our showroom, the number of overseas visitors dropped significantly in the first half. Although the number
subsequently rebounded, a full year decline of about 20% was still recorded. Thanks to the appropriate change
of merchandises and improved operation efficiency, we managed to maintain a single digit decline in sales of
showroom.

Our business in the Mainland saw satisfactory growth which was in line with the increasing income and spending
power of the Mainland economy generally. Enjoying the economies of scale and improved efficiency, the
profitability of Mainland business witnessed a faster growth rate than turnover.

The blow of the global financial crisis on our Export business, the major market of which is Europe and United States,
was severe. Meanwhile, we took the opportunity to critically streamline the structure of our export operation and
re-examine our business strategy and sample inventory. We expect those healthier and stronger distributers and
retailers have depleted their inventories by now and the demand for replenishment will reemerge gradually.

The Malaysian operation was also affected by the global financial crisis and the business slowed down during the
year.

The economic recovery in the United States has sprouted while the Mainland is expecting a moderate economic
growth this year. On the other hand, the recent national debft crisis in Europe may or may not lead to a significant
spill over effect for the rest of the world. The Group is cautiously optimistic with the business outlook and we will
continue to carefully expand our store network to capitalize on our premier brand positioning and the market
growth potential in the Mainland and Hong Kong. The Group will also continue to focus on the stringent cost control
measures and internal efficiency improvement.
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Finance, Liquidity, Capital Structure and Gearing

Capital expenditure including store renovation and expansion, information technology investment and machinery
made during the year amounted to approximately HK$27 million. This was mainly financed from bank borrowings
and internal resources.

At 28 February 2010, the Group's total borrowings slightly increased to HK$149.8 million from HK$131.8 million at 28
February 2009. Our debt to equity ratio (ratio of total borrowings to total equity) has decreased from 22.8% to 20.8%
because of the increase in total equity value resulting from the increased profit during the year. All the Group’s
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Interest is determined on the basis of inter-bank market rates or
prime rate.

As at 28 February 2010, the Group had cash and bank balances and undrawn banking facilities of approximately
HK$233 million, which in the opinion of the Directors, should be sufficient for the present working capital
requirements.

Exchange Rates
During the year, the fransactions of the Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Chinese Renminbi
and US dollars. The impact of the fluctuation of foreign exchange rates of these currencies to the Group is minimal.
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Charges on Group Assefts

(1) At 28 February 2010, debentures were executed by the Group in favour of its bankers and financial creditors
charging, by way of fixed and floating charges, all of the undertakings, properties and assets of the Company
and 12 of its subsidiaries as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or confingent, from time to
fime owing by the Group to the bankers and financial creditors. Rental revenue of the Group is also charged in
favour of the Group’s bankers.

(2) At 28 February 2010, the Group pledged all rights, titles and interests in 80.46% of the entire share capital of Infinite
Assets Corp. and Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) Limited and all benefits accruing to the pledged equity interest
to the Group's bankers and financial creditors as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or
contingent, from fime fo fime owing by the Group to the bankers and financial creditors.

(3) At 28 February 2010, the Company and its 6 subsidiaries (the "Subsidiaries”) executed a second floating
charge and the Company made a guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there was a cross guarantee among the
Subsidiaries in favor of Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue HK") to pledge all of the Subsidiaries’ respective
rights to and title and interest from fime to time in their inventories or stock-in-trade and their receivables from
their overseas fellow subsidiaries in connection with the sales and supply of any inventory or stock-in-trade to such
overseas fellow subsidiaries as a contfinuing security for the debts arising from the supply of polished diamonds
and precious stones by Rosy Blue HK to the Subsidiaries (the “Debts”). At 28 February 2010, the Debts amounted
to HK$144,271,000.
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Contingent Liabilities

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 June 2008, two former directors of the Company, and a
former conftroller of showroom operation of a subsidiary and a former consultant to a subsidiary were convicted by
the District Court of Hong Kong of various charges involving offences under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Crime Ordinance and the Theft Ordinance. The Company has been informed that the two former directors
who have been convicted have commenced proceedings to appeal the verdict. It was noted that the appeal
was dismissed by the Court of Appeal on 31 May 2010. The Company understands that the two former directors are
enfitled to further appeal to a higher court but does not know their intention at the moment (the “possible Appeal”).

Under the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Company may be required to indemnify its directors from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur in execution of their
duty, provided that such indemnity shall not be extended to any matter in respect of, among other things, fraud
and dishonesty.

The Directors are of the view that they are not in a position to conclude that whether and/or to what extent the
Company may be required to indemnify the two former directors involved in relation to the possible Appeal.
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Human Resources
As at 28 February 2010, the tfotal number of employees of the Group was approximately 3,200 (2009: 3,200).

Employees are rewarded on a performance basis with reference to market rates. Other employee benefits include
medical cover and subsidies for job-related contfinuing education. The Group also has an employee share option
scheme. No options were granted pursuant to the scheme during the year. Retail front line staff is provided with
formal on-the-job training by internal seniors and external professional trainers. Experience sharing with seniors at in-
house seminars and discussion groups enhance infra-departmental communications.
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Executive Directors

1. Yau On Yee, Annie m%{%

Aged 39, is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
She pioneered the Group's Jewellery ERP discipline and modernized
the Company’'s management through business process re-engineering
in the past few years. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, she worked for
large companies such as Motorola Semiconductors and IBM. She has
over 17 years of management experience in the United States and Hong
Kong. She is a director of Partner Logistics Limited which has discloseable
interests in the Company under provisions of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. She graduated from Boston University, USA and holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Engineering.
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2. Erwin Steve Huang & &k

Aged 44, is the Deputy Chairman of the Group. He is responsible for
the tourist showroom operation of the Group. He has been with the
group for 5 years mainly in handling the tourist showroom operation and
corporate public relations. Prior to joining the Group in February 2005, he
was a seasoned enfrepreneur in different industries, including publishing,
education, telecom and information technology. Mr. Huang has built
and developed multiple companies in the last 20 years in London, San
Francisco, Tokyo, and Hong Kong. He holds double degrees in Business
Operation Management and Management Information System from
Boston University, USA.
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3. Cheung Tse Kin, Michael #¥4&

Aged 43, is the General Manager of TSL Jewellery (Export) Company
Limited. Mr. Cheung is responsible for managing the Export Division of the
Group. He holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from Henley
Management College in the United Kingdom and a Master of Science
Degree in Financial Management from University of London, U.K. He is
also a Chartered Marketer and a member of the Chartered Institute
of Marketing in the United Kingdom. Before joining the Group in March
2005, he held senior positions in several multinational corporations, and
has over 14 years of experience in marketing management and business
development.

REA3m HIHMRE(HD)ARARZALIE  RETEREEAEEREHOE
% o WiF AR EFHenley Management CollegefB% M TRIE RSB+ EM - ki
HERBASEENRBE T (FEMFEIR) B0 W ARSI mESH kBT
THEEEE - R2005F3AMARER 2RI - HERLEERCENTER - %5
HBIB1AF R TIS BIE R TS B RACER -

4. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 2F&

Aged 44, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He is responsible
for the overall finance and administration of the Group. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in Social Sciences and a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom. Before joining the Group in 2001, he
had over 10 years of experience in a listed company in Hong Kong and
an international accounting firm.
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5. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel EEz:

Aged 46, is the Director — Group Human Resources and is responsible for
the overall strategic planning and implementation of human resources
and people development functions of the Group. She joined the Group
in July 2001. She brings with her over 20 years of solid human resources
generalist experience from local and multinational organizations
in retailing, supply chain management, hi-tech and food products
manufacturing areas. She holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Arts.

FF46r% BF — KEANER  AEAKBEZBEANERRAS BREBTEIR
EIR o 20017 AMARER - K AFBB0FEE 2 ANEREZER  BiE
BRZRANRERCE  EBERTE  WAEE SHRERRRGERE © #55

BEXEELBM -

oc ) o1 R0zl 104 J 03

Independent Non-executive Directors

6. Chui Chi Yun, Robert ##&i-

Aged 53, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 12 April 1999. Mr. Chui is a practising Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce
(Maijor in Accounting) and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chui is also an
independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1003) and National Arts Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8228), which are
companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

RES3FR ' B1999F4A12BBRARNARBULIENTESE - EXERTERE
GEHED - WEFEEE L (B BN - TARESHAERERFFARE
SRS ZEREGE - ERETAVERER AR (BRMHASE : 1003) K EEE
RAEMBRAF(BRHNRS - 8228) 2 BUIERITEE - MZEARIREEHERS
FBERAR LT -

7. Peter George Brown g% &

Aged 65, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 4 December 2006. Mr. Brown is currently a consultant
with Wilkinson & Grist, Solicitors and is admitted as a solicitor in England
& Wales and Hong Kong and also as a solicitor and barrister in Victoria,
Australia. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from University College,
London. He is also a director of a significant number of private
companies including subsidiaries of multinational corporations.

REF65p + B2006F 12 A4 AR QBB IENTES - BEERARBEEY

EI{TEORARS © 189 BIERSEAR B M BB HT A R BB E M ER - WARMNE
% FEnh 7 $hEE 2D M ORERD © A fRHUniversity CollegeAEET2(7 -
BIRARKELARR(ERREBECENNBARNES -

8. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin s=1E#

Aged 45, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 30 November 2008. Mr. Heng is a professional investor
and was a Managing Director of The Royal Bank of Scotfland, Hong
Kong and a director of HSBC Securities (Asia) Ltd. and various financial
institutions. He has extensive banking experience specialising in equity
derivatives and structured products. He has held senior positions in
several major private financial institutions in Hong Kong and had been
registered with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority as Executive Officer
and the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission as Responsible
Officer carrying out various regulated activities. Mr. Heng holds a
Master degree of Arts in Mathematics & Management Studies from
the University of Cambridge, England. He is a fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong
Institute of Direcfors, and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He is also a director of a
number of private companies.

4555 8200811 A0 AR AR B FFMITES - FRERNETXKE
1 WBEBRBHFREERVT 2 EF LB MELES (M) BRAFAK
SHBBHBZES - FRIRITAABEEAES - FPEREATETARSRE
MERNER - FRELZHEBLEMBERBEREEE  BESREEBEM
RIBAERBEESFLHEEBRERZEGRAEAE  EESEXRER
B - TEARERENBABNB(MBRERB)RI BN o HRHREH MEB
NS A REREREENERGERTEGHNAGEE - BIARS
BALARBIMES -
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Senior Management Team

9. Chan Lap Yip, Lambert 7%

Aged 44, is the Chief Operating Officer of the Group. He is responsible
for the entire retail business operations of the Group in Hong Kong,
China, Macau and Malaysia. Prior to joining the Group in March 2010, he
has 24 years of proven frack record in sales and marketing and has held
executive positions in premier corporations including the DBS Bank Hong
Kong, the Hong Kong Tourism Board and the Hong Kong Telecom. He
has extensive experience in strategic planning, branding and business
development across a diverse range of industries. He graduated from
the University of Toronto and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree. He has
furthered his studies at a number of well-renowned academic institutions
including INSEAD in France, Tsinghua University in China and Hong Kong
Baptist University. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing.

BEA4pT - AEBZ BREELE - RABAEEERE  PE  RPINERAZRZ
HEETELEEY - RN2010F3 [ MAREE 2 A1 - FIHE L5 1R E%#EA24
FEEFELE  UYRSHMARCRECTRER  SEERRT(FEE)  BHKE
ERBREBEM - KR TRBETEZRELE  2UMMRERERIEAARE
TR REBENZMS KRR HAXBZELEM - RNZHANLSFHELEE - 8
HEEBIRINSEAD ~ REIRBEARBREERGRE - WARBETHEE LGS

10. Cheng Hung Piu, Belmon sz

Aged 52, is the Director — Group Product Planning and Trading. He joined
the Group in 1977 and has extensive experience in retail operation,
product development and merchandise planning. He is responsible for
the product procurement and merchandising of the Group and also
responsible for the merchandising management of the trading business
in China and Malaysia.

RES2%  BE - FEERRBNED - BN977TFNAAKBELETEXT - Em
ERMEGRETAAEEREZER - (RARSENARBRRE  RTAARETER
BB FARAE L EDE o

11. Chan Chi Ho, Fred =

Aged 45, is the Associate Director — Retail Operation of the Group. Mr.
Chan graduated from University of Leicester, U.K. and holds a Master
(Hon.) of Business Administration degree in Retail Marketing. He joined
the Group on 1 August 2002 and has over 10 years of experience in retail
operations in China.

BREASE  AEBZEIES - TERE - REAEXENREFHHAS - 5
TRERBEL(RE)BM  TETEMSHE - WNR2002F8 A1 BMAREEK
BHBRI0OFNTETELELR -
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12. Yip Kwok Fai, Keith #E12

Aged 43, is the Associate Director — Group Merchandising & Sourcing.
Mr. Yip graduated from The University of Warwick in England and holds
a Bachelor’'s degree in Manufacturing Engineering. He brings with his
over 10 years of manufacturing experience in the eyewear and watch
industries. Prior to joining the Group in May 2005, he worked for some
multinational companies like Citizen Watch Group and Bausch & Lomb
Ltd.

RFA355, - AIES - EEERHE - EARAERERERUniversity of Warwick » 715
BUETIREEL BT o AERERERFHETE FHABRBIOFLR - M200555A8
MAREBZAT  HEREREERAFMELHAERATNSEELETIE-

13. Fung Suk Ming, Abby &

Aged 41, is the Financial Controller — Group Finance. She is responsible
for the financial and management accounting functions of the Group.
Ms. Fung graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and
holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration (Professional
Accountancy). She also holds a Master of Science degree in Economics
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. She is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. Before joining the Group in 2004, she had over 10 years
of experience in freasury and accounting functions in several listed
companies and mulfinational corporations.

REANGL - BRE — KEMT  ARAKB BB RERGART - REXNEE
PXRE  EEHEEET A LHEERS LB - RITRA BB BRRARSREEN
MEBETEM - TEEE  URBBSHIMAE MBI ARSIMAGT LSS -
7 2004 FINAREKEAR - WRERBEL LHARREECEAGBE 10 FHEE
R@atish -

14. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky =58

Aged 41, is the General Manager - Hong Kong and Macau Retail
of the Group. He is responsible for sales operations, marketing and
product planning in Hong Kong and Macau. Prior to joining the Group
in August 2009, he worked for some large companies such as PCCW
Limited, Giordano International Limited, Swire Resources Ltd., Four Seas
Mercantile Holdings Limited — Okashi Land and SUNDAY Communications
Limited. He has over 17 years of experience in retail sales, marketing
management and business development in different industries, including
telecommunication, fast moving consumer goods as well as fashion and
apparel. He graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University and holds
a Bachelor degree in Business Administration. He also holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the Macquarie University. He was
the panel judge for Hong Kong Retail Management Association Service
& Courtesy Award from 2004 to 2007.

BFE4 R AEBZ AL - FEERRMATE - FAEAEERTB B2 TES
B MBHEREMRRE o HN2009E8 A MAKREBUR - CRBEANEBRERD
Al ENRBEEERAR - AEERERAR  WHERBRAR — TRWHEK
SUNDAY Communications Limited % KAV TE - R TREATE(BEE
AoRREESR  NERRH)BEEBBIVIFTELE MHEEREBERY
e FREEXRBEEZEAE  FEIBEEZ21T 24 - FIF A BAMacquarie
University 38 2 8 TR B I2IE T 247 o 1 B4 2004-2007 FREBEETEEEHEH T
R 8E 2 5158 -
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Report of the Directors g=gfEs

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report fogether with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 28 February 2010.

BEESMAREEZE201062A28R IFFENFRLEERITBRE -

Principal Activities xE%#%
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the geographical locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”)
during the financial year is set out in nofe 11 to the financial statements.

ARBNEBEBRIRERK - SMBRANEERBREMFBRHIINTHREMFIS -
AREREMBAR([AKEDRATBFEE L ERAOMTEIINIERERMEN -

Major Customers and Suppliers xExF R 4t

For the year ended 28 February 2010, the five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the
Group's turnover. The five largest suppliers in aggregate and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 63% and 21% respectively by value of the Group's total purchases.

As set out in note 31 to the financial statements, Rosy Blue Hong Kong Ltd. is a fellow subsidiary of Prime Investments
S.A., a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited which is the Company’s controlling shareholder.

Except for the above, at no tfime during the year have the directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which, to the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital)
had any interest (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”)) in these major customers and suppliers.

BE2010F2A28B ILFE  AEERARFPAHMEAEE 2 2 X HENI0%  MAEERIARERLEAHER D FEREEERBRELY
63%K21% °

AR BT R R M 5231 it - Rosy Blue Hong Kong Ltd.APartner Logistics Limited (1t T3 2R 7] Z 42 AR AR 3R ) B2 2 BB FR Prime Investments
SAKRZRMBAF -

Brbaish  ARFWES  HEEABRBATIEARRBESZAA  BFEARREHTRASRA LIS ENAFEERAEMEEZELE
ERERMfEENIAES(ERLEEMERSABRAR(THRMDES EMRAT EmARRD)) -
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Results and Dividends g#&x g2
The profit of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2010 and the states of the Company’s and of the Group's
affairs as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 101 to 179.

A final dividend of 8 HK cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total final dividend of approximately HK$16,827,000
(2009: HK$6,310,000) for the year ended 28 February 2010 is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. This, fogether with the interim dividend of 2 HK cents per ordinary share paid on Friday, 11
December 2009, will amount to a total dividend of 10 HK cents per ordinary share for the year (2009: 5 HK cents per
ordinary share). Subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the proposed
final dividend will be paid on Wednesday, 15 September 2010 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on Wednesday, 25 August 2010.

AEE#E2010F2H28H L FENANMARF RAKERZ B M BARENF 101 2179 B MERERA

HE2010F2 A28 (FFERHREFIE BEERSL - BIARFRL)EH16,827,0007T (20094 : ¥ 6,310,0007T) * BRAR R A2
RAFAE LRETRRBG - WERSERN2009F12A11 B (2HH)RE 2HHRESREBIREE2 - AFEHRERBEESRT
PR AR B #1011 (20094 - BACEBAEEMESL) - FRERNENE BRZRFUAF KNS LHER © #RE 2 REIRBHEH2010F9B158 (EH
=)IRETHR20105F8 250 (BHI=) BIIAARIBER A M 2 R -

Closure of Register of Members EEhER%GBE XL FE

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 20 August 2010 to Wednesday, 25 August 2010,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend and for the attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed fransfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited of 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
Time) on Thursday, 19 August 2010.

20108 A20H (2 A)E2010F8A25H (M=) - BEEMABRANR - ARRKEFEMERMNBEFPELTE - MRATEBRBIREUKE
ZREBR B R EEEIR AR RIRBFERE - IRRAN2010F8A 198 (28 TFOE =+ 5 (FBRRE) AT#EP X T ER BB FEXR A
RARMIBFERLYREEWNEBHARARIEELTFE @ It REBERNER28KLFED 02648 -

Charitable Donations &gk

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$252,000 (2009: HK$1,334,000).

REERFRRZREIBN B HE252,0007T (20094 A1 1,334,0007T) ©

Property, Plant and Equipment %% - E R &%
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company during the year are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

AEERARRRANEERYE - BERXBRZHNFBHRNYHHRRMZTI2 -
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Share Capital gz
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

ARRRAFEABRA LB BN M 5wz MITE25 -

Reserves
Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and note 26 to the financial statements respectively.

REERARANAFENRFGEEBNF BN RS R B ER NI wAMFE26 -

Directors &=
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:
AR FEERBREARREARILENESNOT

Executive Directors #i17&=

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) fi %4 ( =& RiTH4E%)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 March 2010) (A201043 81 BEEE A1THAAE)

Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman) & &k (813 /&)
(resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 1 March 2010) (74201043 A 1 B BHTITEAEEL)

Cheung Tse Kin, Michael skFf&
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 2F &

Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel EFEE
(appointed on 12 June 2009) (A20094F6 A 12A#EZ(T)

Independent Non-executive Directors 5By JE1T7E =
Chui Chi Yun, Robert E&1=
Peter George Brown 8%

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin s=1F##
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In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Bye-Laws and to comply with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence and Mr. Peter George
Brown will retire as directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election as an Executive Director of the Company for a term of three years and Mr. Peter George
Brown will not stand for re-election as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. All other directors
continue in office for the ensuing year.

Each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors has provided a written confirmation in respect of the
factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his independence to the Company. The Board considers
each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

RIBA DA A BARRE 8T ERAMS4FEEEERERTAZRE  BFRALERBELZRAEFTNNG AR I BRBEAG LS
BoRTRELBERACKTHEBRET/ARFANITES  THA=FMELEALENTEEEET/ARRBULIFNITES - KA
ERRNREFEERE -

ZEBUIATERHE R ETRAUE3 NG ENEREEBL N ZHEERAARRRIBERE - EEERR-BBELIFNTERTHAE
M1 e

Directors’ Service Contracts #E> REa#%

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

BRI AR REFASP REECNESHEEAEERTUN —FARKE NI AN FRE(—REEEBHRINOBERR ENREA
) e

Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company
BEERBSTBRABREQARAZREG - ABEROREEZNESERAR

As at 28 February 2010, the interests and short positions of the directors and chief executive and/or their respective
associates of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required to be entfered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required to be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code™), were as follows:

201028280 - RAREERESTTRAE R/ SREE A 2 EAMEALHBERIEES LG RPIEXVIET R8H BAE AR ) Kbk
R (BRRBA LEOIBRBGXE R IR ECEZ O m SRR ) AR R R EEMBE QR (REF B RIIEXVEZER) RN -
MR REEEN S SRR - BRIBN LRPIFIS21GRELRNBARRFEZ BLM - RARB LM AREFETESFR 5 WFETH
(MEESTA D AR QR MBS RZFE AR B R A E QAR (REF RPEEROIFEXVEZ TR ) - B RERENEDSORBWT
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(i) Interests and short positions in issued shares of the Company RARR R E 1T D 2w AR

62

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

SREEER0.25TNEER
Approximate
Derivative percentage
Name of Personal Family Corporate interest Short Other of total issued
Director interest interest interest (share options) interest interest  share capital
LERT
AT ARER RAEEY
EEpsA AR RikER NEER (BRE) KA HithiE BRRESL
|
Yau On Yee, Annie B%& 100,000 152,960,914 - - - - 72.77%
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FzET) (FfeE2)
Erwin Steve Huang & &k 100,000 - - - - - 0.05%
(Note 3)
(Ff5E3)
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 22+ 200,000 - - - - - 0.10%
(Note 4)
G2y
Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel EEE 200,000 - - - - - 0.10%
(Note 5)
(FzE5)

Notes: ffft :

1.

The personal interest of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie arises from her exercise of share options during the year ended 28 February 2010, the
details of which are stated in section (i) “Interests in underlying shares” below.

Rt 2 (A AR TR0 201062 A28 A I E SR E AT TR BB AR R M AE A » 78 BARFIB BRI T X5 (i) & [ B RERAR (0 rO A A

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink
Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive
director of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics
Limited.

IS E @A (5 FPartner Logistics Limited#$ %5 + 7272 A]HBlink Technology Limited# A &2 + fBlink Technology LimitedBIIfF AN A Rl#1TE BER % F 2 £+ 2 Bl (B
BrER2EERER o RIEEFRBEES - PR EL TR ERB BPartner Logistics Limited$$ 8 2 A (5 2 #ak ©

The personal interest of Mr. Erwin Steve Huang arises from his exercise of share options during the year ended 28 February 2010, the details
of which are stated in section (ii) “Inferests in underlying shares” below.

BENEEZEAERTIEMN20109F2 728 H L FEATTEBBETZEL - ARFBEN T (i) f1 NERR D EE A -

The personal interest of Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence arises from his exercise of share options during the year ended 28 February 2010, the
details of which are stated in section (i) “Interests in underlying shares” below.

RFREEZEARRTIHEMN2010F2 A28 H I FEATTEBAGEMEL » AR BEN T XE (i) 8 XD R 1N -

The personal interest of Ms. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel arises from her exercise of share options during the year ended 28 February 2010, the
details of which are stated in section (ii) “Interests in underlying shares” below.

FEBB AL 2 B AR T 201092 A 28 H IEFEATTEMAEMAEL - ARFBEN T3 (i) fi NERR D R A -



(i) Interests in underlying shares R ERII BIHERS

As af 28 February 2010, the particulars of share options held by the directors of the Company granted under the

Share Option Scheme of the Company were as follows:

R2010F2A28H - REARBBIME 8] - ARBEFHHER L 2BREFRTNT

Number of
Number of Number of Numberof  share options Number of
share options  share options  share options lapsed/  share options
held as at granted exercised cancelled held as at
Date of Exercise Exercise 1 March during during during 28 February
Name of director Date of grant acceptance price period 2009 the year the year the year 2010
JR20095 FRiR/ R20105
3A1RAZ ERELZ ER{TERZ 2 2f2862
f£3:3 R AH BERAH IRER fEHE BREHE BREHA BREA BREHE BREHE
|
Yau On Yee, Annie 25 July 2005 28 July 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009 100,000 - 100,000 - -
(Note 1) (Note 2)
BEE 2005674258 2005574288 1767 200548 2282200957 A25H
(FitzE1) (Mzt2)
Erwin Steve Huang 25July 2005 1 August 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 o 25 July 2009 100,000 - 100,000 - -
(Note 1) (Note 2)
BEK 200547 A258 200558A1H 176 200548 42282200957 A258
(fitzE1) (hsx2)
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael 25 July 2005 28 July 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009 75,000 - - 75,000 -
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
R4 2005674258 2005574288 1767 200548 2282200957 A25H (M3£3)
(FitzE1) (Mt2)
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 25 July 2005 29 July 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 o 25 July 2009 200,000 - 200,000 - -
(Note 1) (Note 2)
2R 200547 A258 2005%7A298 176 200548 42282200957 A258
(fitzE1) (hsx2)
Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel  25July 2005 9 August 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009 200,000 - 200,000 - -
(Note 1) (Note 2)
[5Eik 2005674258 200568A9H 1767 200548 2282200957 A25H
(FitzE1) G

Notes: Wizt :

1. The closing price of the Company’s shares tfraded on the Stock Exchange on 25 July 2005 was HK$1.71, being the date on which the
relevant options were offered for grant.

ARFRAT200547 A25 A (ANARRIEAME 2 LK T A BB R PG 2 W ERBH1.717T

2. As one of the conditions of grant, the grantees concerned agreed with the Company that (i) 20% of the options granted can be
exercised during the period from 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009; (ii) the next 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the
period from 25 January 2007 to 25 July 2009; and (iii) the remaining 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from
25 July 2007 to 25 July 2009.

BEA-ERTEGETNS - BRARRARKRRBRE () HH20%E & L8R 7200568 A 220 200947 A 25 B BiRTTE : (i) BINO%BE 1% L BE A # "1 20071 A 25
HZE2009F7 A25B BINTTHE © K (iil) #R T~ 40%E % [ BB AR i 7] 7020074 7 A 253 200947 A 25 B EARTTHE o

3. 75,000 share options held by Mr. Cheung Tse Kin, Michael were lapsed on 26 July 2009 upon the expiry of the exercise period on 25 July

2009.

FTEEIH B /200947 A25H » SRFHESEAEPTRA #975,00088 AR 2009F 7 A 26 B R ©
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Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company
or its subsidiaries, none of the Company’s directors, chief executive and their respective associates, had any
other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any such
director or chief executive is faken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or which were
required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by the Company; or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company or the
Stock Exchange.

B EXPIEE LEFAERATARARTDLEAMBRAIKAEMNBLARETRERNIN  LEARFNES RRITHRABRREZBEAL
BARBEES LB ERPIEXVEBETRSH BMAMG AR B MRz A AR REEFEEER (E& R ESFMAERPIEXVELD) IR - HER
o M EEEZ EaAR (BREREESFIAERIEBEXEMNEFAESTRABRMEE LB ERANERIORR) » IIRBEEFLHE
(BB IS2FALAARAIFEMNE LM - SRE LR RANAAE 2 RETABNE AR R MRz m AR

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons' Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company
FERREREMALIRAQATRO RIEERADEGNWERZELS

As at 28 February 2010, the interests and short positions of any substantial shareholders or other persons (not being
directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which have
been disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and have been
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

M2010F2A28R » (HAEERRLEMA L (UFARBNEERHZSTTRAB)VERR RN &, LBREKO H S B RIEE S LR G
EXVERE2RIN HMRERAR AL IEE - MERIEES MEFGIEI36FALARRAEEFNECMANERFORABINT -

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
BREERE0.25THEER

Approximate Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of percentage of

Direct total issued Short total issued Other total issued

Name Capacity interest  share capital position  share capital interest  share capital

HE&#T BT BRI

R et BRAEE

=g 513 HiEER #BHRESHL wE BHABESL HitER BHED T

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

Partner Logistics Limited Beneficial owner 152,960,914 72.72% - - - -
(Note 1) (FfzE1) EmEAA

Blink Technology Limited Deemed interest - - - - 152,960,914 72.72%
(Note 1) (FzE1) WIRVEE 2 R

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (Note 1) Deemed inferest - - - - 152,960,914 72.72%
A () WIRVERE 2 s

Prime Investments S.A. Deemed interest - - - - 152,960,914 72.72%
(Note 2) (Fi7E2) WIS VYRR 2 HEas

Rosy Blue Investments S.a.r.l. Deemed interest - - - - 152,960,914 72.72%
(Note 2) (fizE2) WIS VERER 2 M2

Harshad Ramniklal Mehta Deemed interest - - - - 152,960,914 72.72%
(Note 2) (Hfz2) WARVEER 2 e as
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Notes: Wizt :

1.

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and confrolled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink
Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive director
of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Blink Technology Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy are deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

I & @A AR 19 fRPartner Logistics Limited#$ 8 + 522 AlEBlink Technology Limited & &%l - MBlink Technology Limitedf 28 A RIENTTE#E S & 2 + 2 BBl R o 4
2EBEDEE o BIEEFIKAEED] - Blink Technology Limited ~ 22 {g 22 1= I il 2 & S0 A 3 AR VB4 8 F Partner Logistics Limited$$ 8 2 A i {5 2 i s ©

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and confrolled by Blink Technology Limited. Prime
Investments S.A. is the preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is owned as fo 99.83% by Rosy Blue
Investments S.a.r.l., which in turn is owned as to 75% by Mr. Harshad Ramniklal Mehta. By virtue of the SFO, each of Prime Investments S.A.,
Rosy Blue Investments S.d.r.l. and Mr. Harshad Ramniklal Mehta, is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

I E @A (5 B Partner Logistics Limited#% 4 » i A AlEBlink Technology Limited# % K125 - Prime Investments S.A.&Partner Logistics Limited &SR + fiPrime
Investments S.AZERosy Blue Investments S.a.rl3#599.83% © %A Al FHarshad Ramniklal Mehtaft £ 875% © 1R15E S M EIE 1§ - Pime Investments S.A.
Rosy Blue Investments S.dv.r.l. xHarshad Ramniklal Mehta’t & & B 19 # R 1R faPartner Logistics Limited#$5 2 P i) 2 4

Ofther than as disclosed above, the Company has not been nofified of any persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

R EXPIIREEE SN - ARRLBEESNEEMALHEEARRN R IAEBRN 2 R TA R MARBESF KRB EPIE3B6GEFNAR
AIRECMA -
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Changes of Directors’ Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
RELETRAE1351B()RNESEREH

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of information on directors of the Company are as
follows:

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, an independent non-executive director of the Company, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of National Arts Holdings Limited (formerly known as Vertex Group Limited) (stock
code: 8228), a company listed on the Gem Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with effect from 1 May 2009.

Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin, an independent non-executive director of the Company, became a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales on 1 December 2009 and the Hong Kong Institute of
Director on 20 July 2009.

Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, Chairman of the Company, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with effect from 1 March 2010.

Mr. Erwin Steve Huang, an executive director of the Company, resigned as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 March 2010.

Changes in directors’ emoluments during the financial year are set out in note 6 to the financial statements.
RiE ETHRANEI3S51B(1)E - ARBZETEREHNT ¢

EECRE  ARBZELIFNTES  BREREREERRERAR(AIEAZEEREARAR) (BMORE : 8228) 2BIUIFNTESR AT
REBB P2 AIZER T - 2009657 1 HEAERR

FIERSEE ARBZBIIFNTES - HHIR2009F 12818 K2009F7 A20 B KRR B LB BTN MAS RELEFEENER

BLEXL - RRRIZERE - BEERARRR ZITHAER - A2010F3A1BRER °
BEKSEL  ARRIZHITES @ BHEARRTTEAE 2B - 2010F3A1BRER -
RAFERNEETHE BB E NI BERRMTES

o

\
”
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Share Option Scheme

The Company'’s share opfion scheme was adopted by shareholders of the Company on 26 November 2003 (*2003
Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
parficipants thereunder for their contribution fo the Group and/or to enable the Group fo recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest (“Invested Enfity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, at any fime
following the date of the adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date,
to offer options to any person belonging to any of the following classes of participants to subscribe for shares of the
Company:

— any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any executive directors but not any non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Enfity;

— any non-executive director (including independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Enfity;

— any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
— any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

— any person or entity that provides research, development or tfechnological support or other services to the Group
or any Invested Entity; and

— any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an opfion
shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28 days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities available for
issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The maximum enfitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue
of the Company. The option period will not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the option and the
Company’s board of directors may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the option has to be
held or other restriction before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereon.

As at 28 February 2010, there was no outstanding share option under the 2003 Share Option Scheme. The
movements in the number of share opfions under the 2003 Share Opftion Scheme during the year ended 28 February
2010 were as follows:
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BRESE

ARAR) 2 IR 8120034 11 A26 H i A A R BCR 5/ 48 ([ 2003 F BT 81l |) © 20034F BB IR 8IM B M= /5 T 2R s BRERT &I T2
HEHREENER L, SRELAEECSUBEREBESES  URAAKERARENER((HRETR | )RAEEAT -

RIF2003FEAAEE B - AR FEREFE A RBERRA2003FHEAME 82 BRIEZAMZEHRFAN 2 EMRERE - ABR TIIER2E

EBRRIMA T ELORHERIB AR B e EE A -

- ARAE - EEAHBARSEHAIRKREERNIMNREE (ThEzRBRBESR

C BREMATEFETRRERIAIFNMTES)

- ARAE - HEAHBARSEHAIRKREEBN TN TER(BIRBELFRNTES)

- AKBEEMKE ARREMREREBROEMN TSR HER
- AKESIARBRETRROENES

- RAAKEFEFARREBRIEHMART  AEARMEXEMRENEMALTRER &

- AEEHEAHEIREEROEARRIUEARB AR » AAEEE AR B RARREMRREERBNERNSETIESNIFEA
BRENTEEARNOTEE « R NEBIEZOR T A REBZERSOHKTEMRONBEBREZ R T H R A EE X B AR
BN TFHORME=ETNRSHHE - £ TERELT288R  ZMABE I TDERN AR AL RZOBIRER A LTS UER - BIRER
PRSI AN o RIZ2003F BR8P R L 2 BT R 2 IRIDABE - RZTEBBARARCETRAZI0% - BRAZ ANBRRS S
EEA+ @A BMEENARRERHTEBRN% - BERENBUFHHRLBEEE AEATSBATF - ARAEFEARNBERTLEE

FEA TR R AR M PP SRR AR A 0 B 45 A BB AR B A RE HAPR Sl EL R ]
EZE20105F2 A28 « 1RIF2003FFEAEE] - WEREMA] W ARITEMNERE - REBE201062A28H ILFE A - 20035 HARE L BIFT I8 A
A ZEHMT
Number of Number of Number of Number of
Balance in  share options  share options  share options  share options Balance in
issue at granted exercised cancelled lapsed issue at
Date of Exercise Exercise 1 March during during during during 28 February
Date of grant acceptance price period 2009 the year the year the year the year 2010
20095 #2010
3182 FRFMLZ FRTEZ FREEZ FRERZ 2R28A2
R BH A fifE i d BRITER BRESE BREHE BREHE BREHE BRITER
|
25 July 2005 26 July 2005 to HK$1.76 22 August 2005 3,550,000 - 1,523,000 - 2,027,000 -
18 August 2005 (Note 2)  to 25 July 2009 (Note ¢) (Note 7)
(Note 1) (Note 4)
2005547 A25H 200567 A26H% wE176  2005F8A2HE (FizE6) (B557)
200548718H (FizE2) 200947 A258
(W) (GEZ))
28 July 2005 8 August 2005 HK$1.73 25 August 2005 37,500 - - - 37,500 -
(Note 3] to 25 July 2009 (Note 7)
(Note 5)
200547 A28H 200548 A8H A®173T 200548A25HE (M3£7)
(FizE3) 200957 A258
(GED)
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Notes: Wizt :

1.

Due to the large number of employees participating in the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the relevant information can only be shown within
a reasonable range in this Annual Report. For options granted to employees, the options were granted during the underlying periods for
acceptance of such options by the employees concerned.

RN 2HE003FHERIETEIZEEARRS  MRAEAFRAUNAEHERT - R TEE 2EREN S - BIRER L A EER A A RIE B & Dl 2 R -

The closing price of the Company's shares traded on the Stock Exchange on 25 July 2005 was HK$1.71, being the date on which the relevant
options were offered for grant.

ARABBMNR200597 A25 8 (BIAREMEAE 2 B4 B 8 ER R ARG 2 WM ERBE1.717T

The closing price of the Company's shares traded on the Stock Exchange on 28 July 2005 was HK$1.68, being the date on which the relevant
options were offered for grant.

RABMNTR200547 A28 B (BIAREREAE 2 B4 B 8 R X ARG 2 B B 151 .687T ©

As one of the conditions of grant, the grantees concerned agreed with the Company that (i) 20% of the options granted can be exercised
during the period from 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009; (ii) the next 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25
January 2007 to 25 July 2009; and (i) the remaining 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25 July 2007 to 25
July 2009.

HEP-—ERTERETS - BRI ARRREIRE (i) H P 20%E 5K BRI ] 72200558 A22H 2200947 A25 8 BINTTHE ¢ (i) B5M0%E % H B AE R 142007 F1 A25B =
200947 A25 A BIRTT{E + B (iii) 2 TS 40%E 1% H BB IR AT 702007 457 A 25 A 22200947 25 B BARTTE ©

As one of the conditions of grant, the grantee concerned agreed with the Company that (i) 20% of the options granted can be exercised
during the period from 25 August 2005 to 25 July 2009; (ii) the next 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25
January 2007 to 25 July 2009; and (i) the remaining 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25 July 2007 to 25
July 2009.

HEP—ERTERETS - BRI ARRREIRE () H P 20%E 5K H BRI ] 72200558 A25H 2200947 A25 8 BIATTHE ¢ (i) B5M0%E % H BAE AT 142007 F1 A25B =
200947 A25 A BIRTT{E + B (iii) 2 TS 40%E 3% H BB IR AT 702007 457 A 25 B 22200947 25 B BARTTE ©

The weighted average closing price of the Company'’s shares traded on the Stock Exchange immediately before the date on which the
options were exercised during the year was HK$2.05.

1,523,000 share options have been exercised during the year ended 28 February 2010.

AR BRD R FNERE BRI B H2 AIFER 2 Py I T B REH2.057T -

HZE20105F2A28H IEFE - #£751,523,0008 BAEEITEE -

The expiry of the exercise period was 25 July 2009, 2,064,500 share options were lapsed on 26 July 2009.

1T EREI B3 H /2009497 A 258 - 2,064, 500828720097 B 26 B AR &

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

The fair value of options granted estimated in accordance with the Binomial valuation model is disclosed in note 28
to the financial statements.

B EXFRERSN - MERALEBEARER N - 1T(E - EHIRBIBRE -
ER ez —E T ERA SO AR BERHN MBS RAME28 -
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Directors’ Interest in Contracts #=& 488 Fz

The Group owes certain loans to Partner Logistics Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the
spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive director of the Company. The loans due to Partner Logistics Limited
are secured and interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate plus 2% per annum. During the year, interest
expenses paid to Partner Logistics Limited amounted to HK$330,000 (2009: HK$1,155,000).

Apart from the foregoing, no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

REBE /R Partner Logistics Limited (FAZNA BITTE S ML EL T v IM@BREE L AT HIFR AT B TER ° KPartner Logistics Limited &
RAAERE  EERFEBRITRERBIN2GTE - RAFEERN - DftPartner Logistics Limited 897 & 2 F A% #330,0007T (20094 : /&
1,155,0007T) °

B BtESN - REERRAFEEARERE - AR7] - HERAFRSMBAR - TwBEEREE - BB LEARNRARAEEEFEAEENE

EEH -

Connected Transactions @Ex 5
Details of connected transactions during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

RAFEARBER SN FBHNPHHRRMEEI -

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities
BE - HESBEAARMNLEHHES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 28 February 2010.

REZE2010F2A28R EFER - ARFHEEAMBARMERE - HEIBRIARTNER LHES -

Convertible Securities, Options or Similar Rights al#gE# « ZRERELEFR
Other than the share options under the 2003 Share Optfion Scheme as disclosed above, the Company had no other
outstanding convertible securities, options or similar rights as at 28 February 2010.

B X Pk BE 2003 F B A AE AT 8178 T 2 BEARAESL - AN B 2010F 2 H 28 B B Ath RAETT{E 2 AIHRARE 5 - RARMESALIER] -

Pre-emptive Rights & s i

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda.

ARABNABARIKBFEEDIEHE ST EIEL BRI - LIULREN TR AR TE IR -

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings 1785k EtiE e
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 28 February 2010 are set out in notes 19 to 22 to
the financial statements.

REEN2010F2A28A MRITER R EMEEFBHN M BHREM 19222 -
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Five Years Summary &=
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 180 to 181 of the annual report.

AEENEERAMRFENEELEELABEMBHNANFREIB0EI8IA °

Properties #x

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages 182 to 183 of the annual report.

AEETZYENFBERRAFHRE 18221837 -

Retirement Schemes & kst

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined conftribution retirement scheme administered by
independent frustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$20,000.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefits schemes for all qualifying employees in the
People's Republic of China and Malaysia. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the confrol of independent trustees.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the year ended 28 February 2010 amounted to HK$4,775,000 representing
confributions payable by the Group to the schemes at the appropriate rates set by the local government of the
subsidiaries.

AEEZERELBRHMERBERPINETE - SREZEEBERVEANEES - 2E2BHEREEFE([RERHE]) - @B 8 —E
FERFCRNKE - BBLNZFEAERE - RIBBESFE - BENESDBRREBHBAENSZAEENELHR - BEANHEBAS LR
#578%20,0007T °

AEERSAETEARKMBEESRATEERNEESE —ERERIERNKGE - FENEEBINAKRENEEL MBI XEARE R
=gz

REZE201052H280 L& - ANEBRULEFABIEZ RHEKERRER4,7750007T © W EEHFASZHRAREKPNR o thHFDAREBRRE
B85 /2 ) AR R [ BT8R NV EL R M

Public Float cg&KRE

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
percentage of the shares in public hands exceeds 25% as at 31 May 2010, the latest practicable date to ascertain
such information prior to the issue of this annual report.

ﬂ?‘dﬁz:& RESHNARER REARTEZERMNE  R2010F5A31 H(AIARFRETIBEXZSERNREERATEY)  BARALTHEAR
NEAD B E25% ©



Corporate Governance &%

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. Its terms of reference are
in compliance with the provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 73 to 98.

ARBBNERRKRELEER  HBESENSCEEATRTAMEKX - ARRRACEEAERNERENENFE73EI8A 2 bXE

JRIRE o

Audit Committee g zse

The Audit Committee comprises of three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Chui
Chi Yun, Robert, Mr. Peter George Brown and Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin. Information on the Audit Committee is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 73 to 98.

ERZEQHARA B IFRTERTELCEL BRESENFIERALLEEN - BEREZEG 2 EMERENE7IEBEZEEE AR

LdIIZO

Auditors & gm
Moore Stephens will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of Moore Stephens as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ESHMEBMASER  ERERET - AFRESTMEEMEEARTARBMREER - SR ERIRRBFAS LR -

By Order of the Board #E £ &+
Yau On Yee, Annie 3% &
Chairman /&

Hong Kong, 7 June 2010
AA 201066 A7H
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Corporate Governance Report tEEa8HE

The Company is committed fo the establishment of good governance practices and procedures. During the year
ended 28 February 2010, the Company has applied the principles and complied with most of the code provisions
and some recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) except for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 as expressly set forth under the relevant paragraph
of the table below.

RABHANGIERFEEERTRRLIET - REBE201062A28REFE - ARG —HEAGABERZMERARRZ S LmREI([ EMHE
B 4P R F AT RI(T R EERTE]) 2 REZEF RO TGS MO ERRES R - FRRA 21 ZREERIN - BEK
X2 imEEER IR T RBERE -

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present the following corporate governance practices adopted

by the Group for the year ended 28 February 2010:
EEEMAZRVAKEREE2010F2H28H IEFE BB T EEERRA

A. Directors &=
A.1The Board =<
Code Principle F8/EA)
The board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the company; and be responsible for
directing and supervising the company’s affairs.

EXeFEMREREENR YRERENEBARNER -

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SFRMR OB E SFRIR S AEERMNEEERER
A.1.1 | The Board should hold at least four board Yes Four board meetings were held during the
meetings a year. year.
EEeRBFAREINRESE - = AEEGERNAESEEEE
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Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =BHE adopted by the Group
FRRBE F RIS AEERMNECEERER

A.1.2 | All directors be given opportunity to Yes Agenda for regular board meefings are
include matters in the agenda for regular sent to all Directors in advance and they
board meetings. are given opportunity to include matters

in the agenda for discussion in the board

meetings.
PREFRARGREAIIIAEEETHERRR = PREFNTHEBANEABRLEEETERR  UF
BEIE - eI ABEEE  UHNEEESE LW o

A.1.3 | At least 14 days’ notice be given of a Yes Timetable for regular board meetings

regular board meeting. are scheduled well in advance to
facilitate and maximize the attendance
and participation of Directors whilst
reasonable notices are given for all other
board meeftings.

BRESFETHERRELEDI14RBA - = EEAZERTEETETHERNRESR - Mk
MiEaEsHEER2EER  MAFAMESS
EROGRTEEEM -

A.1.4 | Directors should have access to advice Yes Directors have access to the advice and

and services of the company secretary. services of the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”) to
ensure that the board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

EEERDVELAIWENE R KR - = EEAREARGZARME(2AWEDHNER
kR - MREEEIRT RATEEARA RGOS
Fgsy -

A.1.5 |Minutes of board meetings and Yes All minutes of board meetings and
commiftee meetings should be kept committee meetings are kept by the
by company secretary and open for Company Secretary and they are open
inspection. for inspection upon reasonable notice by

any Director.
NAMEREBFESGRETZEEN SR LS = FIEEESRNEZECRRLHFARANERT - I

W AFRBEERLCHHER -

EEFEFHLaEBNTAREEERLEME
Fﬁﬁ o




Summary of Code Provisions
SF AR SO

Compliance
REFS
PRI

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEERMNTEERER

Minutes should record sufficient details,
concerns raised and dissenting views.
Draft and final minutes should be sent to
all directors for comment and records
within a reasonable time.

SHRALBRELBRTHFE  BEMRELNREHR
HER - REERRREZEZES  UMAESERNA
BEEEARER R R -

Yes

il

Minutes of the board meetings and
the committee meetings have been
recorded in sufficient details in respect of
the matters considered by the Directors
and decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft and final minutes
were sent to all directors for comments
and records within a reasonable fime.

EXECR M EEERNERLE  EROHA
RSB EFMERFRMERNRT - BREFE
B EARESIRENREER - CRAEKREN
HERLCHENNBRELARBEEITREST - UHE

Agreed procedure for directors to seek
independent professional advice at
company'’s expense.

ExgAAmTERRF
ERERBRRXNM -

REFHRBUEXER

Yes

Pl

There are procedures to enable the
Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense.

ERITEFREFRAEER  BRBILEXRE
R BRERAARRAXNM -

A.1.6
A.l.7.
A.1.8

If a substantial shareholder/director has
a conflict of interest in a material matter,
board meeting should be held. Such
director must abstain from voting.

EEIERR EFEERFTRGFANRER - F
MEERNEFTSER LEE - BRAESVEANE
TR o

Yes

Jali

If a substantial shareholder/director has
a conflict of interest in a material matter,
such matter would not be dealt with by
way of circulation of resolution or by a
committee but a board meeting would
be held, during which such director must
abstain from voting and not be counted
in quorum.

Independent Non-executive Directors
who have no material interest in the
fransaction would be present at such
board meeting.

FETERRIEFHESTEHTERNERTF
BEARWNGZER  ARESETEAEHRERT
AEREARAEFLZEGRE  MERZFHEH
EF2eR MAEFERG LRERRRTGFE
HEEEAHBA -

ERZGHPIBEEAN GBI IFRNTEETRZLT
FHEFEeH -
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During the year ended 28 February 2010, the full Board held 4 meetings and details of Directors’ attendance
are set out below:

RBZE2010F2A28RLFE  EESEAMUALREFS S SEFLFLEHBOT

Number of meetings 2EYAE 4
Directors BEE Attendance HERHE
Executive Directors: BITES:
Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman) B (EE) 4
Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman) =HEK(EIER) 4
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael SR 4
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence RFR 4
Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel JEE B 3
(appointed on 12 June 2009) (FA2009F 6 A 12 EZT)
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHTES
Chui Chi Yun, Robert EERC 4
Peter George Brown BRR 4
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin EIFE 4
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Recommended Best Practices =EHE adopted by the Group
ERBREEREE ERREER AEBERMNNEEERER
A.1.9 | Appropriate insurance cover in respect of Yes The Company has arranged for
legal action against the directors. appropriate insurance cover in respect of

legal action against its directors and it is
renewed annually.

ARRERESAREMHHERTHLEEE R
B WRNESFER

MESFEEMYRERITR L IHEE IR ©

il

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer I i R1TEA2E,

Code Principle 88|
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of the company’s business at the board level to ensure a balance of power and authority.

EFeNBEMANARESEREAESSEERBER Y - ARRE D EREZRNFE -



Summary of Code Provisions
FRR S E

Compliance
=E/E
FRIRC

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
TEBRMANEEERER

A.2.1

Separate roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

TRETREHNABERAERY © BERELIA
EmEIIH -

Deviation

The Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by
separate persons. The Chairman, Ms.
Yau, is responsible for the Group's overall
strategy and corporate functions. The
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Huang, is
responsible for the business strategy and
delivering business results. Under Mr.
Huang's contract with the Group, he
is under the direction, supervision and
control of Ms. Yau. On 1 March 2010, Ms.
Yau was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Huang resigned as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
According to the Company’s practice,
all major strategic decisions are taken by
the Board, or relevant committee of the
Board, as duly constituted.

TREEITRAEBINEAALEE TFEBLXLEE
REB LRI M DRB - MITBAASETER
BEEBRBIIERARRE - RIEFAERAE
BRI 2648 RIXBLL2iEE BB REE -
R2010F3A1H - AT EEZER/RAR Z1THE
HEESREBEARDR ZITTHAR - REARRZ
BEBRE  MATERRIIHEEFSREAEANZ
EXeHBZEEF Y -

A.2.2

Chairman should ensure that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings.

ITEEBERANEEBEEHINEESSZ LARKRRE
HISIR °

Yes

Jal

The Chairman accepts the responsibility to
ensure that major issues of the Company
are addressed by the Board, and that
these issues are presented in a manner
which facilitates thorough discussion and
resolution and all directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at the board
meetings.

TRAEREME  UHBRARFTIEZEAHESS
B AREERREERENRIMABRRZ TN
RE MEFEERLMBEFTTEENBZAN
FH-

A.2.3

Chairman should ensure directors to
receive adequate information in a timely
manner.

IEERREFREHEN  HABENNNUA
Sl § -

Yes

Jal

The Chairman, assisted by other senior
executives, ensures that Directors could
receive adequate information, which
must be complete, reliable and in a timely
manner.

TEREMSRITEAE R THRESERFKE
ROMEM - MARBEMITLATTHER 5 -
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Compliance Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Recommended Best Practices =ERE adopted by the Group
ERREERBE EBRREER AEERMANEEERER
A.2.4 | The Chairman should be responsible for Yes The Chairman, assisted by the Company
drawing up and approving the agenda Secretary, draws up and approves the
for each board meeting. agenda for each board meeting.

ITFEEEETUHEBREESSANIRE - TFEHARMERY TEELH EBRESTERR

SECE

Jal

A.3Board composition & & 4855

Code Principle FAIEA|
The board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business

of the company and shall include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive directors so that
independent judgement can effectively be exercised.

EFERREARNEEMABEEMBRENLR - EFETNTEFTRIFNTES ZHERARFTIE - NEEHBBUBIEHL B H
I% o

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
AR E FARIR AEBHRMANEEERER
A.3.1 |ldentify independent non-executive Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors
directors in all corporate communications. of the Company are expressly identified

in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of the Directors of the
Company.

B RRIBAT PR ABIIFATEEZ ARRMARBESHERNRARAMST - HAESR

#o

&1 o RBIERITESR 250




Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Recommended Best Practices =ERE adopted by the Group
EREEEREE ERBREER TEBRMANEEERER
A.3.2 |Independent non-executive directors Yes The Board comprises a total of eight

representing at least one-third of the
board.

BY R TEREEZTEREAREL =D

Jal

Directors, with five Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. More than one-third of the
Board is Independent Non-executive
Directors and more than one of
them have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as
required by the Listing Rules.

EEEHAL \REFAR  BEEANTEER
SEBUNTES  EEGHB=H —KEAR
STHBITES - MBB—REUENTEFARL
FRABEY A RS E AL EH LI BT B E
LA -

A.3.3 | Maintain on its website an updated list of
directors identifying their role and function
and whether they are independent non-
executive directors.

EEBY EREMREREFNETENERE I
SIRE AE G - ANEREREBIUIFNTE
% o

Yes

il

The Company maintains on its website the
updated profile of its directors and senior
management and identifies their role and
function. The updated profile includes the
Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company.

ARRRUREFRREREINEERSRERAR
BN WHIREAEMBE - RMOENBEAR
BIZBYIFHITES »
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A.4Appointments, Re-election and removal (T - ERFER
Code Principle <FRI/EA|
There should be a formal, considered and fransparent procedure for the appointment of new directors
and plans in place of orderly succession for appointments to the board. All directors should be subject to
re-election at regular intervals.

EEGEATEIN KEEERVAFAECHEEZMERT  WEREBEMRT 2 EFEETE - MEERYESRES TREETE
% o
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
FRIGRBE RIS AEERANEEERER
A.4.1 |Non-executive directors should be Yes All Non-executive Directors of the
appointed for a specific term, subject to Company were appointed for a
re-election. specific term, subject to rotation and re-
election pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

SEMTTERNEERBETEEN  WARXEE - = FIBEFRTESNZEABEEEH - WAREAR
NRZ ARIHABES RERERTEE -

A.4.2 | All directors appointed fo fill casual Yes Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the
vacancies should be subject to election Company, all Directors appointed to
at the first general meeting after their fill casual vacancy would be subject to
appointment. re-election at the next following general

meeting.
FIEREMGERERMEZANESEEESZE = RIBEBARRR 2 ARIHRIZESS(2) 14 + FTE AR
ERERRRAREG FEER o EHRMEZENEEEE NARRAG LEXEER -
All directors are subject to retirement by Yes Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2) of the
rotation at least once every three years. Company, every Director shall retire by

rotation at least once every three years.
FIEEFRRRESE SPB=F—R- = RIBAR QAR Z ARIMBAIES7 (2)1& - BREFAWE

HE O BRIEB=F-R-




The Board has appointed Ms. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel as an Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 12 June 2009.

All of the Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 August 2009, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, Mr. Cheung
Tse Kin, Michael and Ms. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel retired by rotation as directors of the Company and were
re-elected as Executive Directors of the Company for a term of three years, Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin
retired by rotation as a director of the Company and was re-elected as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company for a term of three years.

The Board has received from each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers each of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

SRS RMTABBRLER/ARBZHITES - FRAHR2009F6A128 -

FIEESE  BREVIFNTESARBARRZ ARARNRERAGWESEMEREE - N2009F8 A27 H BT Z AR RBRRBFEAKR
GL ARAEEHRLZELL RFRELENARBEZIHESE  UESERARFNTES  FH=F  ARAREFFERLLH
BER WEBESARNTBIIFNTES =% -

FFEOEE=RBIETERS AR LRAE R FE BT S HERE - EFERE - SRBFNTEES AR
f o

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Recommended Best Practices 2ERE adopted by the Group
EREEERNE EBRREER AEERMNCEERER
A.4.3 | Further appointment of independent non- Yes Appointment of Independent Non-
executive director who has served more executive director served more than nine
than nine years should be subject to a years was subject to a separate resolutfion
separate resolution to be approved by approved by the shareholders during the
shareholders. The board should set out to annual general meeting of the Company.
shareholders the reasons they believe the The Board has listed out in the circular to
individual contfinues to be independent shareholders the reasons they believed
and the reason for the re-election. such Independent Non-executive Director

continued fo be independent and the
reasons for the re-election.

REBZIZRCRETBEBNFNBILIFNTE E RRBRREAF ARG LB DRBERTVAHBKRR
= RUABIRZRTVAHEREZES EFE ERRBZICETEBNFNBYIFNITES -
FERBR IR IR A% R ES BB LA LHE BB RNAR KRS PR RZ GBI
B AR AEFTEEZREENRE - FRTERDBBEILALHNIESR - ARMFIEHE

ERBREFENERERA -
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Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

RRZBALTEBIALHERERA -

Summary of Recommended Best Practices =ERE adopted by the Group
EERREERME EREEER TEBRANEEERER
A.4.8 | The board should set out in the circular Yes The Board has listed out in the circular
to shareholders the reasons they believe to shareholders the reasons they
the independent non-executive director believed such Independent Non-
should be elected at the general meeting executive Directors should be elected
and the reasons they consider the and the reasons they considered such
individual to be independent. Independent Non-executive Directors
were independent.
EEGRREBEHARABRIAMMARBAZEE L = EEGRREBEHARABRIAMMIRBAZEE L
FEMITEERNRRAEG HEERIRS - AR FPITEFEETNIESR - URMMHRRZEE L

FRTESBELALTNRRA -

A5 Responsibilities of Directors &5 & £
Code Principle <FAI/EA|
Every director is required to keep abreast of his responsibility as a director of a company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of that company.

BREFARBEFRRRAEREZRE  UNZARIZEZ

= RERE RER

Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

AR -
R -

HZAl mHE RES Fﬁﬁél’]/\i’jﬁﬁi

Summary of Code Provisions 2ERE adopted by the Group
SF AR SO SFRIHER 3 AEBRANEEERER
A.5.1 | Every newly appointed director should Yes A tailored induction would be provided to
receive a comprehensive, formal and familiarize the newly appointed director
tailored induction, and subsequent with the Company's business operations
briefing and professional development as and financial positions, his responsibilities
necessary. under statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, applicable legal and other
regulatory requirements.
Subsequent briefing and professional
development would be provided to the
newly appointed director as and when
necessary.
BEFEZENESEESFEIH  EXARAHMRK = FERENESIEREREMBOMEERER - AR

BARRRBGEERMEIRN - ARBREIER K
Bk - EMRA EREEAEREREMBEER
ETHBE -

HAERE  HENMEAMZINEFTREMTE
BN RERER -




Summary of Code Provisions
TR E

Compliance
=E/E

SPRIRSC

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEERMNTCEERER

A.5.2

Functions of non-executive directors
should include those as set out in the
Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code.

FEHITESHNREEBREEFEE AT ZSFRIEX
EA52(FFTERERE ©

Yes

il

The Independent Non-executive Directors
brought independent judgments during
their participation of board meetings and
gave advice on strategy and future plans
of the Group.

The Independent Non-executive Directors
reviewed the financial statements and
operational performance of the Group on
a regular basis.

The Independent Non-executive Directors
also served on audit, remuneration and
other governance committees of the
Board.

BYFPTEFHEEFTEEARLRARBERORAE
Bhm kRS EIRREB L RAEER -

BIUFATESTHENARENMBER K EE
=B o

BIYFRTEERBLERREZRES
REMERREEERE -

Bl AES

il
i3

\

A.5.3

Directors should give sufficient time and
aftention to the company’s affairs.

EEEMN D EARSEREIAREARIMNER -

Yes

Pl

Satisfactory attendance at the board
meetings and other committee
meetings was shown in various meeting
attendance.

The Executive Directors have contributed
sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group.

EEFQREMBZEEERIHERSARE - X
N ELE -

HTEEREE L EHCERENRRE LT
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Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions 2ERE adopted by the Group
FRRBE F RIS AEERANEEERER
A.5.4 |Directors must comply with their Yes The Company has adopted the Model
obligations under the Model Code as set Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules the Listing Rules as itfs own code of
and the board should establish written conduct regarding Directors’ securities
guidelines on no less exacting terms than fransactions.
the Model Code for relevant employees
in respect of their dealings in company’s Specific enquiry has been made with
shares. all Directors and the Directors have
confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 28 February 2010.
EEREET AR 2 GRESFR]) - MES = RAFRIEHEFETNBRSFRS - A LT AIK

SNEREREREEARRMNGIFTSHES - 18
SRR RN L(RETADRR -

S+ 2 (IEFAE AR ARRTER o

KREEREEELEEEH  BE2010F2H28H
LHFE - 2BEFORATETRETRMRTEL

cE

Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Recommended Best Practices =ERE adopted by the Group
ERBRERRHEE EZREER AEERMNEEERER
A.5.7 | Non-executive directors should give the Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors
board and any committees on which demonstrated their skills, expertise and
they serve the benefit of their skills, qualifications by giving professional
expertise and varied background and advices during the regular board
qualifications through regular attendance meetings and the committee meetings.
and active participation. They should also All the Independent Non-executive
aftend general meetings and develop a Directors aftended the 2009 Annual
balanced understanding of the views of General Meeting (2009 AGM”) and were
shareholders. available to answer questions from the
shareholders.
MTEFREHEEETELHERKEEIEES = BUNTEEN TN ESTEERNEEEER

REMEERERTMELREH - WKL - 5
ABETRANE R LA TR - FRTES
LREFREAS  HAFRENEREAENT
f# o

tEBRAEEXTABARNE  BXNHRE
& o BB FAITEE Y HF 2009 FRRBF K
E([2009FBRBFRE ) REERRAOIER -




A.6Supply of and access to information &2 K &
Code Principle <FAI/EA|
Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information so as to enable them to make
an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

EERENERTEZEER CESEMNEZEFWHENZBERATELRE - LEBITEBRENEE -

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
FRIR B E RIS AEERMANEEERER
A.6.1 | Agenda and board papers should be Yes Agenda and board papers are
sent to directors at least 3 days before dispatched to all directors or committee
the intended date of board meeting or members not less than 3 days or such
commifttee meeting. other agreed period before the date of
meeting.
BEREEGNMHENETHESEERIEEGE = EEggaRERXMONEEEREEEERA
HAHMRL=RAIEETES - R DR =ZRIEHEHRRIEE FRABEESER
A.6.2 | Management should supply the board Yes The Chief Financial Officer and Company
and its committee with adequate Secretary attended all regular board
information in a timely manner. Each meetings and board committee meetings
director should have separate and to advise on accounting and financial,
independent access to the company’s corporate governance and statutory
senior management. complionce matters. Senior management
have formal or informal contact with the
board members as and when necessary.
ERERAEFEREZEGERIEHEINNE = RARMBESRARMELNFIBEFERES
K- BHRESEBETEBAFSREEAENE ZEGCEREE  UNSRVE  0EES
SRS o BTEATHROIEERHER - AFER  aRER
BHEEFEGRFIENMIFERER -
A.6.3 | Directors are enftitled to have access o Yes Board papers and minutes are made
board papers and related materials. available for inspection by the directors
and board committee members. The
Company responded as promptly as
possible to any queries raised by the
Directors.
ERAREHESFEH REBER - & EEENHRERLCHAIHREEREZEZEGEE
EH - EFRETEWEE - AARBRIELEIE -
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B.Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EExk SR EE A 815
B.1 The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure i K 3% 5% 87k ¥ K 455K
Code Principle FA//EA|
A formal and transparent procedure should be established for setting policy on executive directors’
remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all directors. No director should be involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

86

ERALMMABRENER  UHEERERTESHENERRETMEEFNFNGE - EFTE2EITEATHOME -

Summary of Code Provisions
FRR B E

Compliance
=ERE

<F RIS

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEERMNECEERER

B.1.1

Company should establish a remuneration
committee, majority of whom should be
independent non-executive directors.

NAERUFMEES -

TESF -

KEBD X B & 8 L IEH

Yes

i

The Remuneration Committee was
established in 2002. It comprises four
members, with one Executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company.

HIME B EMN2002F K - FNZESHUAKE
MR BREARR - RMITES R =R B IFNTT
-

Remuneration committee should consult
the chairman and/or chief executive
officer about proposed remuneration
of other executive directors and have
access to professional advice where
necessary.

FIE B R EMAITEENTNERLALE
R/HROTBEE  WRABHRE  TARDEEE
H o

Yes

il

Please refer to the section below.

AE2HTX -

Terms of reference of remuneration
committee should include the duties as
set out in the Code provision B.1.3 of the
Code.

Nz EenBEREREREXE RTINS
3B SR E R E ©

Yes

#o

The role and authority of the
Remuneration Committee, including
those set out in Code provision B.1.3 of the
CG Code, are clearly set out in its terms
of reference and in compliance with the
provisions set out in the CG Code.

YEZEgezACKES  BRAEERTRIPZ
TR SEB.1 3IRFTENE - /B RH N ERESRE
AR FAEEERTRIRAELZ R -

Remuneration committee should make
available its terms of reference, explaining
its role and the authority delegated to it
by the board.

FEZEeRAHABESRE HEEACGKRES
SEROESN

Yes

#o

The terms of reference of Remuneration
Committee are available on the
Company’s website.

FEZ B2 BEBEHN AR R -




Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =E/E adopted by the Group
FRR S E <F RIS TEBRMANEEERER
B.1.5 |The remuneration committee should Yes The Remuneration Committee is provided
be provided with sufficient resources to with sufficient resources, including the
discharge its duties. advice of professional firms, to discharge
its duties, if necessary.
FNEZEgRERERTERUNEBITERE & FHNEESREHRATER  BEE(NEFE)ER
EEER  UBRITHEHERME-

The principal responsibility of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure in relation to the remuneration of Directors and senior management by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year ended 28 February 2010 and the individual
members’ aftendance records are set out below. In addition, during the year, the Remuneration Committee
also received a number of reports and proposals from executive management in relation to remuneration issues
of the Company for their review and/or approval as required.

FHZEENIZRAESNESIRHAMEZNSAEEABTMOBERREBNER - WABZSTEAENDLE B SRR

FMEZBeNEE2010F2A28A L FE G ARMAEE - ERIKEBLELELT - I HFHEEENFATBIEEABMRERE
BHMEE  MEREE - WIREAFETAEME, Sk -

Number of meetings 2HHE 2
Members RE Attendance HEXH
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin (Chairman) EIER(ER) 2
Chui Chi Yun, Robert EEC 2
Peter George Brown BRRE 2
Yau On Yee, Annie IR 2

The Remuneration Committee has considered and consulted with the Chairman of the Board the following
proposals:

(a) reviewed the monthly remuneration of senior executives and executive directors;

(b) reviewed and approved the annual performance bonus schemes and the granting of discretionary bonus
fo both senior executives and other employees of the Company.

FHEZERCEERAERSIESLN NIRE
(o) A BRITHRAB MM TEZZEAFM :
(b) t& 5T WHEER R R FEIEAL B R MR RITHA B REME 8 HMEISIEA -
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C.Accountability and Audit BER%Z
C.1Financial Reporting 81 # & 5
Code Principle FA//EA|
The board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

BEeRUNFTNKRE  BRRATSERNFE B REAETIZ25R -
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =BHE adopted by the Group
A E <F R AEBRMNECESAER
C.1.1 | Management should provide explanation Yes The management provided explanation
and information to enable the board and information to the Board in order to
to make an informed assessment of the enable the Board to make an informed
financial situations. assessment of the financial and other
information submitted to the Board for
approval.
EREERMNESSRUEFELEN  FEEg0n = %f%ﬁ%%@%%fﬁﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬂ CREEEHRRER
FBORRER B ARIERFEE - FEESHE 2P EREMEREL B IRIEFEE
C.1.2 | Directors should acknowledge their Yes The Directors acknowledge their

responsibility for preparing the accounts,
on a going concern basis and fthere
should be a statement by the auditors
about their reporting responsibilities in
the auditors’ report on the financial
statements.

The Corporate Governance Report should
contain sufficient information to enable
investors to understand the severity and
significance of the maftters at hand.

responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and presenting
a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group's performance.

In preparing the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 28 February
2010, the Directors have selected the
appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently; approved the
adoption of all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards which
are issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants; made
judgements and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable; and prepared
the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The relevant responsibility statement from
the external auditors made pursuant to
the CG Code is set out in the Report of
the Independent Auditors on pages 99 to
100.

The Corporate Governance Report
sets out the practices adopted by the
Group which enables the investors to
understand the Company’s commitment
to the establishment of good governance
practices and procedures.
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Summary of Code Provisions
F AR

Compliance
=ERE

<FRIRX

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
TEEFRANEEERER

EERARBRSRGEEEREBRANEE - M
SIED AN B M MR BN SRS A HmAE R
EmiEHZeA -

CEERBERHEATHEN  EREEHRDEN
EHHNBREERERE -

=
rE

EFARWS A AABUALENHEE - WAL
EERBELHT - B R DT 5 -

AR EEEE2010F2 828R IEFE 2 WM&
B BEECHENERERSBZSTEE  #tE
RNEBESHEI A AGRMO ZMBBEREBNERE
R EEIASE 2 HIE R - U RIRRHER
LEERBMEERER -

SN BENRIBE X ERTRIMEL Z AREER
AN B AN RS FI9E100H °

TREAREIIAAKEARMOER - UHERE
ETRARBRHOBE RFERERARRLERS

C.13

Board should present a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in
annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures under the Listing
Rules and reports to regulators required
tfo be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

EESRELTE  BWMLAERNTE  BFE
LR AR E B F RSP RS - ERMBRESREA
o K A SRR M A BB B R RARIBEDIR E A
TRENERHNERSE -

Yes

Jal

The section of Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of annual and interim
reports explained the factors affecting
business performance and outlook of
the Group. Financial statements have
been presented in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of Listing Rules,
Financial Reporting Standards and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

FRBFHRERERES HRRANARRYE
AEE EHRAIAERRE - HHRRCRE
EHRAL - BB ER R B A AERIRE AR
I -
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C.2Internal Controls RERESHE
Code Principle F8/RA)
The board should ensure that the company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the company’s assefts.

ExgRBRAEENSEERABRZEMAAY - WRERRKENEBEE -

90

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions 2ERE adopted by the Group
FRRSHE TR AEERMNEEERER

C.2.1 | Directors should af least annually conduct Yes Please refer to the section below.
a review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal confrol of the group and state
so in the Corporate Governance Report.
EERELEFRHN RN EERNEBEEIE AKX = BRETX -
M WHEBEE RRE R ERE @R

C.2.2 | Board should annually review to consider Yes The Board has considered the adequacy
the adequacy of resources, qualifications of resources, qualifications and
and experience of staff of the company’s experience of staff of the Company’s
accountfing and financial reporting accountfing and financial reporting
function, and the training programmes function, the continuing professional
and budget. education undertaken by the relevant

staff.

EXGHFETRNE  BENZEQAFEST R & EXGCERARAES T M SERB AL EAY
MBERBETEHNER BEIERRKEREER BR BIBERRKRELRRH URBEEEIE
4 ARBIMEXNENIRERBEEEEXE T RIFEEEIEIIRE R -
E o

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls are
in place to safeguard the Company's assets and manage risks. The executive management has been
delegated the responsibility of identifying and evaluating the risks faced by the Group and of designing,
operating and monitoring an effective control system.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance on the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding the
Group's assefts, providing reliable financial reporting and complying with the applicable laws and regulations.
Systems and procedures are also established o identify, measure, manage and conftrol, rather than eliminate,
different risks arising from different business and functional actfivities.

The Group's Infernal Audit Department plays an important role in the internal conftrol function. It provides
objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated in
compliance with the established processes and standards by performing periodic audits over all major
operations of the Group, typically over a three-year cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising of annual audit
focus and audit frequencies) is prepared based on the department’s independent risk assessment. Such work
plan is discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at the beginning of each financial year. Major internal
audit findings will be submitted to the Audit Committee for review and all recommendations from the Internal
Audit Department will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Directors have received the report from the Internal Audit Department which conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group.

The scope of work performed by the internal audit function during the year included financial and operational
reviews, recurring/surprise cash counts and audits, and special reviews.



In March and April 2009, the Group has engaged an independent intfernational professional accounting
firm to conduct another review (*2009 Review") on its internal control system. (Previous review was made in
March 2008 by the same accounting firm and a report (“June 2008 Report”) has been adopted at the Audit
Committee Meeting held on 16 June 2008). The aim is to obtfain the views of an independent international
professional accounting firm on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal confrols of the
Group's operation which included the commission system of showroom and the bonus system of Hong Kong
employees as well as the follow up on the six high priority issues identified in June 2008 Report.

The report of the 2009 Review (*2009 Report”) by the independent international professional accounting firm
has been reviewed and adopted by the Board on 9 June 2009.

The management believes that such a review is educational to the colleagues of the Group and raises their
internal confrol awareness positively. The management is committed to continuous improvements and the
Internal Confrol Review Committee comprising the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer
and the Internal Audit Manager would oversee the implementation of the recommendations raised in the
June 2008 Report and the continuity of internal control focus within the Group.

During the year, the Company has formalized a risk assessment analysis in the areas of strategy, operation,
reporting and compliance of the Group. The impact of risks has been considered in terms of probability
of occurrence and materiality and there is a mechanism to ensure that there exists appropriate business
strategies or policies and procedures to address risks where considered necessary. The risks assessment analysis
has been discussed by the Board in the board meeting during the year ended 28 February 2010 and would be
reviewed by the Board annually.

All recommendations identified in the 2009 Report and June 2008 Report have been followed up by 28
February 2009. Action plans has been executed on each of the findings to improve the business operations of
the Group.

The Board considers that the internal control system of the Group is effective and will continue to review and
update the system to ensure that shareholder’s investments and the Group's assets are safeguarded.

EXgAAERZE A RMRAMBEEERANET  WREARRMEREERR - TERABERKEEHRL MEAEER
Bz Rk ARG - MITRERBREEHE -

MEBESIEHIE 2 Rt EEREATE - MIFBEMRIE - MREEXRRLME - AMEZEAT AR BR - REKEYE - B EMBRSE
FBFEREENIRG - SIEREF 2 SR - 518 - BB RIES - MIUIEER - TREZRNEEBEE 2 TRER
AEEANFEZAFINARBERLEZEEZAC  CRELAKEMELIRZLERR - —RU=F/—ERER  UABZSRETER
& NEEEFIEBRETT - AN SRR KR - FRESE(RREFREEZBIEREZIAR) NP By Rt HIR] - &
ZZ Ben S EMRFEFNmMBEZE LS - EARNNEZIREGEXELZB RN - MANBZHFIAERSEEERE
B ARRRZEFREAEREANT - EFCRB|AAEZBPIETA R RE N REIE R RE
ABEZBFIFAZ TIEBET B R EERN - R RERSHE REBUARFRIRT

R2009F3 A R4 AR SBRIE— B ER SN EHMHOETEARMERE R gt (120095 et 1) - (LR ThH R — & sthm
EBFAN2008F3AHETT) RESZ BEN2008F6 H16BZM—NI|E([2008F6 AHE])) B RSB LERSMEHMAAL
BIARMERERE R MNAMENER  AAAKENSESRMASHERE LR TMIANE - URRER20084F6 AR EHETE /IR
FEELEENMERE -

20094t s ([ 2009 F s ) B ER ST EEARE - WN2009F6A9AKETSRHELIER -
EREREZRNEAREZ ETRABEEEEHE LEEEEUR - ERBAGRENSZ MG  MANEERNEZEENER
EAKELE  THEH  MBESRANERLE - BERNT2008F6 AMEMZHNEE LT EBAREZOREL -
FR - ARFUAEERRE & BRI THCHARFEST - WRERERZELENR M RBRE N R E BE R HR
& BRI ERTINBRASEEREENEBREXBERLEFETARER - BREDMEEEEN201062A28H ILFE
EegHtawm  YHEFSNTFIELR -

FT B 702009 S ¥ f2 20084F 6 A i 5 1 E BV iR B 2009 6F2 A 28 R ATIEH IR - NEEE R EHITEG BILANE B IRERKLE
B o

EZERRAKEZNREZERGAMENE Y ERERF RELERS  BRRRZBRERAEEEESIRE -

)2
-
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C3Audit Committee EizZE <
Code Principle FA//EA|
An audit committee should be established with clear terms of reference, including formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how it applies the financial reporting and internal control principles. The audit
committee should maintain an appropriate relationship with the company’s auditors.

EZZERARAEMNRESE  2EAZRNAEAVERE RABEZERIMEL L - BZEZEGHEERNARIZEAMREHEE &)
BEIR o
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
TR E SFRIMR S AEERANEEERER
C.3.1 | Full minutes of the audit committee Yes Pursuant to the terms of reference of the
meetings should be kept and sent to all Audit Committee of the Company, the
audit committee members for comment minutes of meetings were circulated to all
and records within a reasonable time. committee members.
The minutes were kept by the Company
Secretary.
ERZE SN TESRLHETRE YR —RE = BERRFZEZEZEG RESE  SRLEE
BREAZAEZEZEGLBKE  HRKEXREER BT28EEgKE -
RREFEZR -
ERLBARAWERT
C.3.2 | A former partner of the company’s Yes No member of the Audit Committee is a
auditing firm should not act as a member partner of or has financial interest in the
of the audit committee. existing auditing firm of the Company.
RABNZEARINAIEERATNGEEEZEES = BEEZZEGNERARIBERERZARINGE
gKE - AR E A B e o




Summary of Code Provisions
SF AR SO

Compliance
REFS
PRI

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEERMNTEERER

C.33

Terms of reference of audit committee
should include the terms set out in Code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

ERZEeNREREREREXERTR TR
&3 C .3 JMGRPIB IR

Yes

il

C34

Audit committee should make available
its terms of reference, explaining its role
and authority delegated to it by the
board.

ERZBEeRAMARERE MEHLACKES
ERTERZBENES -

Yes

Jal

The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee included the role and
authority delegated by the Board
together with the terms set out in the
Code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The terms of reference of Audit
Committee are available on the
Company’s website.

BERZESNRERERRESSN THBE ME
1 - BREFEEARSTRIEC.33MHEX -

i
BERZZEENBEDEHNAATREY

C.3.5

Disclosure of any disagreement between
the board and audit committee on
selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditfors.
The Company should state the
recommendation and reasons for taking a
different view by the board in Corporate
Governance Report.

REZFSHTE T BHEXERIINEREENE
BERZE@BERDE  HAFHIE - ARR)E
ELEEABRETHIEZZEENERRESTS
HTRERAERRA -

Yes

il

The Audit Committee recommended to
the Board to reappoint Moore Stephens
as the external auditors subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ERRE SRR ES S B SRS S BB
SMNEAZERED - AFRRNEAEERNRRBERS
B -

C3.4

Audit committee should be provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

ERZESRERTARERMEITHRE -

Yes

Jali

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee of the Company, the
Audit Committee has been provided
with sufficient resources, including advice
from external auditors and Internal Audit
Department, to discharge its duties, if
necessary.

REANREZZEGNRERE  EZREQE
REFTEER - BRESMNSZHED MABEZTNE
RnBRR)  ARBETERE -
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The Audit Committee was established in 1998. It comprises three members who are all Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the Group'’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures, review of the Group's financial statements and
review of the relationship with the external auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee meets at least
twice a year.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year ended 28 February 2010 and the individual members’
attendance records are set out below:
FEZZEEMN998FK - B=HBKEMEK - FTEKENABUIENITES °

%*ZéEE‘Eﬁﬂ&i”@%*ﬁﬁ&?ﬁgﬁﬁﬁlz,ﬁﬁ%$#E%‘JE&W%%&&J* + BRI B T SRR DA S iRt AN A BISMNISAZ ZRE 2 BR AR
BERLZBERFRIANMAER

REE20105F2A28H L FE - ELEZE SR ERAMAEHE - @ERIKEBHFELEFBTNT -

Number of meetings =g 4G 2
Members RE Attendance HE X
Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman) EEC(ER) 2
Peter George Brown DR 2
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin EIFRE 2

The amount of fees charged by the Auditors generally depends on the scope and volume of the auditors’
work. For the year ended 28 February 2010, the remuneration payable to Moore Stephens was approximately
HK$3,000,000 for audit services and HK$24,000 for other assurance services.

BRI B AEUR N E TIESE R TIEE - 8E2010F2A28R IEFE - X T HEEE &R0 E 55 A7 H 8 £ 49578 %3,000,0007T
KE BRI E B4 =B #24,0007T

The following is a summory of work performed by the Audit Committee during the year:
ERZEGNFANZ TERMMAT -

(a) discussed with the external auditors the general scope of their audit work;
HESNIRAZ BURD 5 o B AR BU T E3[E -

(b) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board in respect of the audit fee proposals for the Group for
the year ended 28 February 2010;
FEHWHAEEEE2010F2A28B ILFE 2 ZBERRESSEHER

(c) reviewed and approved the Group's internal audit policy and internal audit plan for the year 2010;
FHW AR EE 2 20106 A EBZ BB R A EBZ#ETE

(d) reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of internal controls;
FEHBENER TR 2 NEMZEERE

(e) reviewed the audited accounts and final results announcement for the year ended 28 February 2009;
FHHEE20095F2H28B ILFE 2 CEZRE REFEEDMH

(f) reviewed the Interim Report and interim results announcement for the six months ended 31 August 2009;
and
FEHHE2009F8 A3 A IEAEA 2 R ERRE R EIEE QMG 0 &

(g) reviewed the internal control review report on the Group's operations.
BB EEEE 2 NEREE IR W o

The Group's annual report for the year ended 28 February 2010 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
REEEZE201062H28B LFE 2 FREHEZLZELEN -



D.Delegation by the Board g=g# &
D.1Management Functions &2 EaE
Code Principle <FAI/EA|
A company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the board for its decision. The
board should give clear directions fo management as to the matters that must be approved by the board
before decisions are made on behalf of the company.

NAEAE—HIEANBEENER  JHEFHIBEESSERENER - EFSERKRARFLIRER - BARRERNEEERXLEHARE

FE -
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SFRMR OB E <F RIS AEERMNEEERER
D.1.1 | The board must give clear directions as to Yes Please refer to the section below.

the powers of management, partficularly

on delegation to management and those BF2ETX -

required prior board approval.

EXEGUVARERENES L TIEMHES -5 =

PEREEERENASADBESTSIHESER

D.1.2 | The company should formalize functions Yes
reserved to the board and those
delegated to the management.

AREERFTARRESSREMNEE R TEIE
IEE’JH&%%ZO

il

The Board is collectively responsible for the management of the business and affairs of the Group with
the objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board is responsible for making decisions on major
operational and financial matters as well as investments, and overseeing the management of the business.
Matters reserved to the Board for decision include significant financial and legal commitments, material asset
acquisition or disposal, the change of share capital, the approval of financial reporting and budget.

EXeARBEERAREXBLEYR  BRRARNTRREE EFSAENZENMKER - URRENEELARE - WEREBHN
BEIIF - HEFTSATNEEEREEANBLERAG EXEERBRILE  RARY - fLEMKRELFER -

The general management and day-to-day operations, including preparation of annual and interim reports
and accounts for board approval before public reporfing, execution of business strategies and initiafives
adopted by the Board, monitoring of operating budgets, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules
and regulations, are delegated to the management team of the Group.

AREENEE BRSHEFHRATHRETEREAEEZTERNAHEZRNEL - ATEFTSRANEBRBLER  EREERE
B AAREERSMNEREREF - UETHREEELMRU MR EE IRAAEEERERE -

25
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D.2Board Committees EE e HEE <

Code Principle FA//EA|
Board committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the
committees’ authority and duties.

EEER IS LEeNK BT AEEMNSERERE FRISEEGRNREE
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =2ERE adopted by the Group
TR E RIS AEERANEEERER
D.2.1 |Clear terms of reference to enable Yes Each of the Audit Committee, the
committees to discharge their functions. Remuneration Committee and the

Executive Committee of the Company
has clear terms of reference which set
out the authority, duties and reporting
procedures.

ROBRATABESE  EAREEGRNRERET = RRRIZEZEEE®  FHMEEGRATEESD
HEgee - A - %E&E?ﬁlﬁ%fi’]’zEE\/\HM%@IW%“
FIEA o

D.2.2 |Terms of reference should require the Yes Board committees report their findings,
committees to report their decisions or decisions and recommendations to the
recommendations fo the board. Board at the Board meetings.
BRESERATZELEECNESTGERIRES & EEgRE R EeR EESeERaTRNEZGER
et HAEHER ARTEREZ -

The Executive Committee was established by the Board on 24 February 2010. It comprises five members
who are all Executive Directors of the Company, namely Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, Mr. Erwin Steve Huang, Mr.
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael, Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence and Ms. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel. The authority and duties
of the Executive Committee are delegated by the Board.

The principal responsibilities of the Executive Committee include the general management of the business
and day-to-day operations of the Company, details of which are setf out in its written terms of reference which
is available at the website of the Company. The Executive Committee meets whenever it finds appropriate for
the dispatch of business.

MITZEGN2010F2A24FAEFE SR - AABKEAK - TEKEBAWTES  DHIRBRELL FEKEE  RFER
RYREERFEBRLE - ATEZEGZRILBETRESSRE -

HWTZBEIBERAAARAAREBEEREE EEHBEEEFSIHERARR 2@ - TZESMEE RSB NEREE

7% o



E. Communication with Shareholders s s EE

E.1 Effective Communication BRUER
Code Principle <FAI/EA|

The board should endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in partficular, use

annual general meeting or other general meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage their

participation.

EFeRENERRFERSYHE  LHEERRBEAEHAM2BEZERTBANFARELH -
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions 2ERE adopted by the Group
SFRMR OB E <F RIS AEERMNEEERER

E.1.1 |A separate resolution at a general Yes Separate resolutions are proposed at
meeting on each substantial separate the annual general meeting on each
issue should be proposed by the chairman substantially separate issue, including
of that meeting. election of directors.

ERRRG L gRFFEEABEERBINEER = RREBAFAE O BRERBEIFH(BEE
ERIR HARZESR ° ER)EFREAZESR -

E.1.2 | Chairman of the board should attend the Yes The Chairman of the Board and all
annual general meeting and arrange for members of the Audit Committee and the
the chairman of audit, remuneration and Remuneration Committee afttended the
nomination committees to attend and be 2009 AGM. They were available to answer
available to answer questions. shareholders’ questions during the 2009

AGM.
EEEIRELFERRBERG WLHEREE = EEgIR BRLZESLFHNEEGCAKE
g FTHEEGRREEZEGTIREFERRBEX HHE2009F R ERIBFRE o K EMN2009F iR IE
mIHAAL@ SHER o FRE FEIZRERER -

E.1.3 |Company should arrange to send at Yes The Company has given at least 20 clear
least 20 clear business days’ notfice to business days' notice to shareholders to
shareholders of annual general meeting attend the 2009 AGM of the Company
and at least 10 clear business days' notice which was held on 27 August 2009.
for all other general meetings.

MBRKRRAE @ RRELHERGRITAED R = AREIE BE200958 A27 B 4 7 2 2009 F IR B F K
20fEE ¥ B mRREXBA - ML BEEMARRER 2 AMATMAR R X E A B 2018 S 5 A #)E A
gims  AERGRTAZE D ZI0EEE R X

A o

The Company establishes and maintains different communication channels with its shareholders through the
publication of annual reports, interim reports and press releases. Such information is also available on the
Company's website and the website of http://tsl.etnet.com.hk. The annual general meeting provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

ARBFEBTEFR  PRRS LHER  BERREYIEFIRBSRRE
b o RRAFASSBRRIEREEEEIRER AR E -

o BRIBBIIRE A A A B8 K http://1sl.etnet.com.hk
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E.2 Voting by Poll LA&ZH &K *
Code Principle FA//EA|
The company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

NAERRBIR T HREHARARNFHARE -

Summary of Code Provisions
TR OB E

Compliance
=ERE

SFRIRSC

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEERMNEEERER

E.2.1

Chairman of the meeting should
ensure that the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll are explained at the
commencement of the meeting and
answer any questions from shareholders
regarding voting by way of poll.

*EERA R AR R D R T RETR
REVEF - U RBREBRYIARES RRREFH
(EIRR -

Yes

#o

Details of the procedures for conducting
a poll have been disclosed in the
Company’'s AGM circular to shareholders.

The Chairman of the 2009 AGM explained
the procedures for conducting a poll at
the commencement of the meeting and
was available to answer the questions
from the shareholders regarding the poll
voting.

MEEDARARNFAIZF D RAR A RRR T %

BEE TR EN2009FRFBF NG MR AR
BREFRNETRANEF LBERRERES AKX
SREVEER] °

At the Company’s 2009 AGM, all the resolutions were taken by way of poll and Tricor Secretaries Limited, the
Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutfineer to ensure the votes were properly
counted.

RARF009FBRRBFAEG L - IAERBREUEREFTNETRR - ARREAEEERNBFELD REEMERBERAFEE
ERA BRBREFRE -



Report of Independent Auditors Bz & & imm s =

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AR E (EFR) BRR A F
2ERR
(REREZMA B FRAF])

We have audited the financial statements of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (Infernational) Limited (the “Company”) and ifs
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 101 to 179, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statement of financial position as at 28 February 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

A2 BB (AT R 2 ) BERIIENE 101 EE 179 A H HBIAE (B ERQR([ERR]) REAKMB AR (A THME E5E ) EEHR
7= HPEHEN20105F2A28H 046 AR BRAHRE BEZB LFENGEEEBRARE GERGaEHRNGERERERNALE
Z SR EAME M AR -

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
EERUBBRARENEE

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

RAIEEHAARBEESTMASHRONELSYBERELARESARKOIEERTE - SEREEQ T RZEUHBHRE - a5 EBER
e BiREERER L EE A TRV IS mERABEAZIES - REHBRE N FEERNRFF SR M B R ERE R ; BEWE
REENETEER - MRERA TMER GBS FHAET

Auditors' responsibility

Our responisibility is fo express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely fo you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose.

We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal confrol. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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Report of Independent Auditors B #stimesE

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

RHEHNEE
BPNBEERRBRMNBEZZSFVBBREERER - WRRAFEIBIFRAEE0GER D BREMSE ik 2/ - RRERIEEAE
) o AT ERARENTAERMEMA LA ESAEEREE -

BPERERES quEﬂi”“@hEﬁEE’JE/’%ﬁqu RERETTER - ELERERRMIETERRE - WREINATES  UEEREUFUHHRRI
BREBERERFERRM

BROS RAITRAAERE @I BRI SERREENNERRE o TR BURNZBED A HIE - @%%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ’\ﬁku‘ﬁ‘if RME R
FEHmERFEEAHRBANER - EFEZERARE - ZBENE BEZ A GRS MEE XTI SRR AR QEIES - ARHEE R
BZER - EAERERFNAFENNORERRER - EXTEETEESMRANGHBERMEE ENMAMELENE uﬂEquEl’J

BIEMY - URHEMBRROBREIIHT -

BIMEE - RAMESHNERERE SRR MBS AR MINELE RIRHER -

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 28 February 2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

=R
BMRS  ZEVHERERCRBEBZEMBREENEEMAFHRR BERFE BESER2010F2A288MFHMN - k. EREEEZA
IFEFENAMERRESRE - WEIRBREBRRIED Jﬁﬁﬁﬁii‘ﬁmz@(ﬁfﬁi °

Moore Stephens

Certified Public Accountants
905 Silvercord, Tower 2

30 Canton Road

Tsimshatsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 7 June 2010

BESSHEHEAT
HEZE
B E2HI905F
EESER0L
/J\ /J\ H

BE

A - 20106F6H78
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income &ézmi A=

for the year ended 28 February 2010 #%2010562H28H 1ILF/E

2010 2009
20104F 20094
Note Mzt HK$'000 B# Tt HK$'000 ## ¢
(restated) (E31)
Turnover HER 2&11 2,017,572 1,959,360
Cost of goods sold HEK A (952,621) (920,698)
Gross profit E5 1,064,951 1,038,662
Otherrevenue E A 3&11 9,800 37,028
Selling expenses HEER (776,400) (804,120)
Administrative expenses THRER (95.495) (107,080)
Profit from operations ] 202,856 164,490
Finance costs HMBER 4(a) (3.761) (7.,454)
Gain on disposal of land and buildings HE T RIEFEF - 2,464
Profit before taxation RRBE A & F 4 199,095 159,500
Taxation FiIE 5 (52,344) (35,022)
Profit for the year TEERF 8&11 146,751 124,478
Other comprehensive income HitZEWBA
Exchange difference arising on translation BREWBARMBHREZ
of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries bE =58 2,717 10,836
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hb2EURA (IBRBIIE) 2,717 10,836
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2HEHBAEE 149,468 135,314
Profit attributable to: EBAEERFES
Equity holders of the Company RATRRER 121,690 104,757
Minority interests DY R R 25,061 19,721
146,751 124,478
Total comprehensive income atiributable to: EhaE2EmBRABESS
Equity holders of the Company RATRRER 124,360 113,560
Minority interests DY R R 25,108 21,754
149,468 135,314
Earnings per share BREF
- Basic B 10(a) 58 cenfts 1l 50 cents i

I —————
- Diluted o] 10(b) 58 cenfts i N/A A
I —————

The notes on pages 108 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
FI108EFH179EMMTE A BHER—FD °
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Consolidated Statement of
FInancial Position 448t i&ikin s

at 28 February 2010 #201052H28H

28.2.2010 28.2.2009 1.3.2008
201042 A28H 200942 H28H 2008F3H1H
Note Kzt  HK$'000 j&#F7r HK$'000 ##TFxr HK$'000 BEFT
(restated) (restated)
(2751 (E51)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 12(q) 118,593 134,625 138,375
Other asset HihEE 14 500 500 500
Deferred tax assets BRIEHBEE 24(b) 22,244 26,732 18,883
141,337 161,857 157,758
Current assets RBEE
Inventories & 15 954,714 760,761 865,594
Trade and other receivables JEMS AR 0 B EL At FE MR 16 183,982 162,501 156,590
Current tax recoverable AR eI BRI 24(a) 1,038 116 44
Cash at bank and in hand RAFRRES 17 176,894 127,121 78,998
1,316,628 1,050,499 1,101,226
Current liabilities wEaE
Other loan - secured HtEH—FHER 20 (6,962) (14,552) (14,552)
Other loan - unsecured HihEH— Eig A 21 - (311) (1,782)
Obligations under finance leases — current A EAYE— A 22 (107) (173) (865)
Trade and other payables FETBR RN EL A T 3K 18 (501,302) (393,235) (525,774)
Current tax payable FERZNERRR 1 24(q) (62,179) (79.179) (96,874)
Bank overdrafts — secured RITIES —HHER 19 (19,364) (22,468) (25,804)
Bank loans - secured RITEFR—FHER 19 (86,350) (74,374) (73,797)
(676,264) (584,292) (739,448)
Net current assets REEEFE 640,364 466,207 361,778
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEELE
carried forward 781,701 628,064 519,536
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28.2.2010
201042A28H
Note fffst  HK$'000 ##F

28.2.2009 1.3.2008
2009424 28H 2008%3A1H
HK$'000 %+ HK$'000 & Fi
(restated) (restated)

(&27)) (E71)

Total assets less current liabilities

RABEERRBAE

brought forward 781,701 628,064 519,536
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Other loan - secured HER—HEH 20 - (6,962) (21,514)
Other loan - unsecured Hip B3 — S 21 - - (312)
Obligations under finance leases B ETE B A — EARERE D 22 (203) (308) (126)
- non-current
Employee benefit obligations EEREAEY 23(a) (11,152) (22,323) (17.671)
Bank loans - secured RITER—BEF 19 (36,800) (12,640) (32,320)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 24(p) (12,969) (6,885) (777)
(61,124) (49,118) (72.720)
NET ASSETS BEERE 720,577 578,946 446,816

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXREE
Share capital R 25(q) 52,584 52,203 51,766
Reserves i 574,782 458,640 348,701
Total equity attributable to equity holders AT BRI

of the Company SR 627,366 510,843 400,467
Minority interests DHRRES 93,211 68,103 46,349
TOTAL EQUITY ERaE 720,577 578,946 446,816

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7th June 2010

EEZN2010F6 A7 B AL T 3

Yau On Yee, Annie i %&
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 2

)
; Directors &%
)

The notes on pages 108 to 179 form part of these financial statements.

FE108EFE 179 B MM B AMEIHER — &7 -
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Statement of Financial Position &t ik w3

at 28 February 2010 #201052H28H

2010 2010 2009 2009
20104 2010 2009 2009F
Note fffzF HK$'000 &% T HK$'000 %% HK$'000 B& T HK$'000 #%F T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 12(b) 2,396 4,652
Interests in subsidiaries MEARER 13 628,643 507,735
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE 24(b) 116 612
631,155 512,999
Current assets RBEE
Otherreceivables, deposits and prepayments — EfbfElis - 24 RENS 16(e) 1,138 1,137
Current tax recoverable A eI AR IR 150 -
Cash at bank and in hand ROEHLES 110 44
1,398 1,181
Current liabilities nBaE
Other loan - unsecured Ei &R —EER 21 - (311)
Obligations under finance leases - current BERERE-TH 22(b) - (62)
Other payables and accruals Hit R ER 18(c) (5.187) (5.131)
(5,187) (5,504)
Net current liabilities REBAETE (3,789) (4,323)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERANSEE 627,366 508,676
NET ASSETS EERE 627,366 508,676
- |
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRGE
Share capital BRA& 25(a) 52,584 52,203
Reserves i 26 574,782 456,473
TOTAL EQUITY ERaE 627,366 508,676

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7th June 2010
EEEN2010F6 A7 BiZAEN FFa] T2

Yau On Yee, Annie % f#%

)
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence ZF&t .
BIR ; Directors #%
)

The notes on pages 108 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
F108EFE179BMM T B AN EHRE —2H ©
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity aéiEzsgx

for the year ended 28 February 2010 #%2010562H28H 1ILF/E

Proposed
Share-based final
Shore Shore Copitel compensafion ~ Exchange Retained dividend Minority
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profifs B Tofal inferests  Total equity
e Rhag BRGE  RIARERE B REER RERE agE  LERRER ERgE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BT BT BETT BT BT BT
1 Morch 2008 R200853A1H
- 0s originally stated - RRES 51,766 116,634 123979 4256 34,578 68,330 2,088 401,631 46,619 448,250
Prior year adjustments BrEESE - - - - - (1,164) - (1.164) (270) (1,434)
1 March 2008 - s restated 20083518 -E7 51,766 116,634 123979 4,256 34,578 67,166 2,088 400467 46,349 446,816
Lapse of share options BIRERN - - - (1,339) - 1,339 - - - -
Share options exercised BIREEAR 437 3,599 - (956) - - - 3080 - 3,080
Release of reserve due to RHERELT
disposal of subsidliaries i - - - - 853 853) - - - -
Transfer fo capifalreserves BRTEKRE - - 25,729 - - (25729 - - - -
Dividends paid BiRkRE - - - - - (4176) (2,088) (6264) - (6.264)
Proposed final dividend REARHRE - - - - - (6.310) 6,310 - - -
Total comprehensive income TERRENAER
for the year [restated) (51) - - - - 8,803 104,757 - 113,560 21,754 135314
28 February 2009 and T March 2009 2009424285 20095
- 0s originally stated 3AIA-MEREF 52203 120233 149,708 1961 44,234 137,401 6310 512,050 68,366 580416
Prior year adjustments BEEREFE - - - - - (1.207) - (1,207) (263) (1,470)
28 Februory 2009 and T March 2009 20092288 {2009
- asrestated 3f18-E5l 52,203 120233 149,708 1961 44,234 136,194 6310 510843 68,103 578,946
Lapse of share options BIRERN - - - (1128) - 1128 - - - -
Share options exercised BIREEAR 3l 3,132 - (833) - - - 2,680 - 2,680
Transfer fo capital reserves BATARERE - - 3825 - - (3825) - - - -
Dividends paid BRRE - - - - - (4207] (6:310) (10517) - (10517)
Proposed final dividend RiERERE - - - - - (16.827) 16,827 - - -
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2EUALE
the year - - - - 2670 121,690 - 124,360 25,108 149,468
28 February 2010 01052288 52,584 123,365 153,533 - 46,904 234,153 16827 627,366 93211 720,577

The notes on pages 108 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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Nyl —|
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &é#&mE®
for the year ended 28 February 2010 #%2010562H28H ILF &
2010 2009
20104F 20094
(restated)
(E31)
HK$'000 ## ¢ HK$'000 /&% Tt
Operating activities REED
Profit before taxation R A5 i 227 199,095 159,500
Adjustments for: FEIEE -
— Depreciation —iE 42,906 47,054
- Finance costs —MBER 3.761 7,454
— Loss on disposal of plant and equipment —ERE MR EEE 89 343
— Gain on disposal of land and buildings — e EFET - (2,464)
— Interest income —FMEWA (518) (312)
— Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful
debts — RIBR A (110) (265)
Operating profit before changes in EEESEBAKERA
working capital 245,223 211,310
(Increase)/decrease in inventories &g, M (193,953) 104,833
Increase in frade and other receivables JFE LS B 3 e L e R L R A (21,371) (5.646)
Increase/(decrease) in frade and other payables — fET8E 2% E b ERT 08 0,7 (Ri) 108,151 (132,539)
(Decrease)/increase in employee
benefit obligations BEENEBORD), /12 (11.171) 4,652
Cash generated from operations REXEBEENRS 126,879 182,610
Tax paid A8
- Hong Kong profits tax — EEFIEH (24,218) (18,100)
— Overseas tax —BINIE (35,519) (36,871)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHEENRESER 67,142 127,639
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2010
20104

HK$’'000 ##F

2009
20094

(restated)

(&7))

HK$'000 ## Tt

Investing activities
Payments to acquire property,

REED
SEEAME - WS SR

plant and equipment (27,317) (44,602)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYIE - BB MBS HIE

plant and equipment 374 4,455
Interest received = ERIESN 518 312
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHFAANRESTE (26,425) (39.835)
Financing activities MEED
Capital element of finance lease payments RIETHERSNAS I (171) (921)
Proceeds from share options exercised BRI TR ISIE 2,680 3,080
Proceeds from new bank loans FERITERAISHIE 55,816 -
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (19.680) (19.103)
Repayment of other loans EEHEMER (14,863) (16,335)
Interest element of finance lease payments BERERENFSHH (1) (44)
Interest paid EASALE (3.844) (7.410)
Dividends paid B E (10,517) (6,264)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMETEEL (FTHNESFE

financing activities 9,420 (46,997)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBRSEEYILMTFE 50,137 40,807
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RENHWRERELZEY 104,653 53,194
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes IMEERSBNE 2,740 10,652
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REENRESRBESEEY 157,530 104,653
-
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBREEEYZERIN

cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand RITERRES 176,894 127,121
Bank overdrafts — secured BITEX —BEA (19.364) (22,468)

157,530 104,653

The notes on pages 108 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™),
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the preparation of the financial
statements for the year ended 28 February 2010 are consistent with those adopted in the financial statements
for the year ended 28 February 2009, except for the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs as explained in c¢)
below.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

1 FESFTHER
(a) & H5I%ER

b
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A BHRRRLBEL GG ((BEGMAEG )BEMNT BN EHREEA([FEHBREED] - EeEMEERENEEME
WERER - FAGHEA([FEGHE ) ERB) AREBRFIRINKERERE - LEMHBRRNTEEEMERHMERAT]
E LR EARR DR EREERE -

TSR MR R
AR RS SRR L AR B % -

REATFERKR TR AR R B Z e R BB 5R - BRIFRIFERIN - AR RBUATZS) -

BRERA T X () JBPT AL # 5T RAMERT BB MBS LRI - REEE20105F2A 28R IFFEFBHRERFARA LI 2 S HELAE DX
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
The following new and revised HKFRSs, amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations are relevant to the
preparation of the Group's financial statements effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

1 March 2009:

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 Amendment

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 36 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HKFRS T Amendment

HKFRS 7 Amendment

HKFRS 8

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

1 FESTBER@E)
() BRANETET RIS ET B BB R 8]

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Enfity or Associate

Financial Insfruments: Presentation

Impairment of Assets

Financial Insfruments: Recognition and Measurement

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Operating segments

Improvements to HKFRS issued in 2008 except for amendment to
HKFRS 5 that is effective for annual reporting periods beginning or
after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRS issued in 2009 in relation to the amendment
to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Transfers of Assets from Customers

T AR2009F3 A1 ARIARRAFERSME AR - A BRRAKEM BRRA@ 2T EETEEVBREER - BEVHR

SRR SHTRRE -

FrogarZRIE 1R (EER])
BB GRTERIZE 235 (KERT)
BRGRTERIE27RERT AR
F gt ERIEI2BRERT A
FREHERIEISHRIER] A
FREHERIEIRERTA
BRMBREERFIFRIETA
BRMBIREERF7HIERT A
BB R ELERF 85
BB E LR 2 {£2572008

BB SIS R 2 1£2£2009

o (BRMHRERBEREE) —2BRIR
Fr(BRMHRERBRES) —2ER135%
Fr(BRMHRERBRES) - 2ER185%

TR 2 2

fE &R

RENKBAR - KEZEGIERSEE AR ZKA
TRTE : 27

BERERRK

SRTE : BRKE

BRI E BT EIRE AR

SHMTE: FE

2008 AT M & BB IS SR 2 &5k - HER200947 A1 Bl A& FItA 2 FEHE
HARS A BB IS RS X R BB 557 2 S 5T RR A1

2009 F B E BV IEMELER 21BN - AR EBE S S HERFE395FE80R 2 155]

EFERSTETA

B BT E
KEEFZEEER
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (confinued)

1

When the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs, amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations is deemed to
have an impact on the financial statements, accounting policies or performance of the Group, its impact is
described below.

HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”

HKAS 1 (Revised) has infroduced a number of ferminology changes including revised ftitles for the financial
statements and has resulted in a number of changes in presentation and disclosure. The revised standard
prohibits the presentation of income and expenses directly in the statement of changes in equity. All income
and expenses are required to be shown in either one statement of comprehensive income or two statements
(the income statement and the statement of comprehensive income). The Group has presented all income
and expenses in one statement. In addition, the Group has presented consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 March 2008, as required under HKAS 1 (Revised), because the Group has applied HK (IFRIC) -
Int 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes” refrospectively as detailed below.

HKFRS 8 "Operating Segments”

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, which replaced HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”, sets out requirements for
disclosure of information about an entity’s operating segments, its products and services, the geographical
areas in which it operates, and revenue from its major customers. This standard requires idenftification of
operating segments on the basis of internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating
decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and assesses their performance. The Group
concluded that the operating segments determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 were the same as the
business segments previously identified under HKAS 14 and has had no impact on the reported results or
financial position of the Group. This standard is applied by the Group retrospectively.

FESFHBORE)

(c) BRANFTET M ERT BB SRS LR (B)
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BB EAFE 159 (IEET) [ M B HA 2 28

ARG ENFIREEDIAETEERFEY  BREETZMBHRRGE  YEHEMERELRETED - LIEFTERZEL
BEENMESZEPREIIWARRAX - MARARAXEER —H2ERARER LM M RE RARE RE2ERARR)ANIIR - AEED
R—HREAZIIABRARFS © 5 - $%IE&E”%¢ S ERFIUREET) 2RERIN =TT NF=ZA— B ZEAMBENR
EE - RASAKECENEATE(BRVKRERBERES) —2EBR 1350 EPEHEE] -

BB SIS ERESIE 4 E 7]

BN WS ERNESRELZ0 B MR BB G ERF 1458 DA RS | RHIEARBEERLLH 0 - HEMNMRY - FBHAE
ENMREIBEPZWGCEMZRE - RRERERBERIEZLEARENDEERES D B LA D BRI M E PEH 2 A
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (contfinued)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2008) "“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits
should be recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries and associates,
rather than as income. As a result of the amendments, as from 1 March 2009, all dividends receivable from
subsidiaries and associates, whether out of pre- or post-acquisition profits, will be recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income and the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee will not be reduced unless the carrying amount is assessed to be impaired as a result of the investee
declaring the dividend. In such cases, in addition to recognising dividend income in profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income, the Company would recognise an impairment loss. In accordance with
the transitional provisions in the amendments, this new policy will be applied prospectively to any dividends
receivable in the current for future periods and previous periods have not been restated. The revised standard
has had no impact on the reported results or financial position of the Group.

HK (IFRIC) —Int 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes”

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate component
of the sales transaction in which they are granted. A portion of the fair value of the consideration received
is allocated to the award credits and deferred. This is then recognised as revenue over the period that the
award credits are redeemed. The Group maintains loyalty points programmes within its retail shops operate in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, which allow customers to accumulate points when they purchase products
in the shops or joining ifs clubs/programmes. The points can then be redeemed for free products/gifts, subject
to certain terms and conditions.

1 EIE;ZED‘I—EQﬂi(Z
(c) BRANENR] MAIERT BB SR (48)

BB B ERFE 275 (2008 FHE1E5T) [ A e RIB TR T |

FREHERIE 275 ZAEFT MR AU AT B2 FIR T 2 I SRR SR A éﬁ*é@TZ&QZ@EEEZ?MMﬁﬁ#ﬁ@:ﬂ&%ﬂﬁz)\)Z%ﬁ
iE o HRNBRERT §2009£E3H]EH:L Fﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁi%@?&ﬂﬁ%%’&?ﬂﬁlﬂiz&g Tl BB RSB R BRIEL - BRAR
ZEEWARR 2 BEAER - MARRE QR 2REZREESBAELIE - BRIFEREAENEAETIRER 7*%&1&%@&%@
BIE - MEEBERT ﬁ%ﬁAiﬁﬂﬁU\ﬂi%ZT@ EARERABIASN - ANRRERERBERE © IRIFERT ZBERX - ERRSEANAH
BeRRHRERZ IS - TEEPER - MU ELBETHREIFLES - REFTENHAKEZ EREXEIMBARL BLE -

BB (B EHRERELZRE)— ué‘f #1350 EP a2

ER(AREMBREREZES) —2ER130RT - FLPLAEBENEERENBYHERSEE AR - IKBREAAE—HIoE
ERHEER  WIEEREE Eéﬁ’\ma}%éﬁbﬁﬁﬁa@iﬁf‘%& BB - AEBRBERTEAMEE FTEMMHAREEHESE - T
FHRNPITEYSMBREBE T8 FHEHTREED - BRED HRINE THRARGH SRR TR EREER &M -
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) = Z& &% (&) _
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (confinued)

112

NG REER] BB B S 2R ()

HK (IFRIC) — Int 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes” (continued)

BB (BB IRERELZRE) — 2 EE 1359 &P Qi1 ]/ (8)

Following the adoption of HK(IFRIC) — Int 13, consideration received is allocated between the products sold
and the points issued, with the consideration allocated to the points equal to their fair value. Fair value of the
points is determined by applying analysis of historical records. The fair value of the points issued is deferred
and recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed. The change in accounting policy has been
applied refrospectively. The impact of this change in accounting policy is summarised below:

RnEE(BRMBHRERBLZES) —REFF 130K - MEEBRERMHEEREMBELBEIRIELOE - MoRkERY 2REBFR
HARE - BOZARENVERSTBERBEINETE - CELBAZ AR ESRIERE - YNED R ERHERRUA o EFTBE
SHOREYEM - LB BRI T

Consolidated profit or loss in the statements of comprehensive income for the year ended

BEZFELZHRE2EBARE

2010 2009
20104F 20094
HK$'000 %+ T HK$'000 i#&#+ T
|
Decrease in turnover EEER A 590 36
Increase in cost of goods sold SHEE R ANIE AN 1,880 2,438
Decrease in selling expenses SHE BRI 1,880 2,438
Decrease in profit for the year REEFERBFFH D 590 36
|

Decrease in basic and diluted earnings BREARBFIRD
per share (HK cents) (&) - -

Consolidated statements of financial position and equity & Bk R &k RS

28.2.2010 28.2.2009 1.3.2008
201042 H28H 20092 H28H 20083 A1H
HK$'000 &#F 7t HK$'000 &% Tt HK$'000 Tt

Increase in frade and other payables &8 3% % E e 35 0 2,060 1,470 1,434
-
Decrease in reserves (retained profits)  1R2 & ## 1,832 1,207 1,164
-
Decrease in minority interests s oy 228 263 270



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Judgment and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the directors to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting esfimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection and disclosure of the Group's critical accounting
policies and estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges of its property, plant
and equipment. These estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, and will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation charge in the future periods.

(i) Net realisable value of inventories
Neft realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. The directors reassess the estimations at the end of each reporting period.

1 FEREHBER @)
(d) #ER R fhEt
ZREBMGRE FARMAM SRR  ESURIFNPERRERMNZRAE - BF - WARFSTEEL FIE - Gt MERER - 152
BHMRABEAZ2ZNRET HEERABNEEERARSAABELREZEEMNARBER TRIFEBNERR/EENGE R
MERAMRERAARK - BIREE LA RN EMEEAET -

et MARRRSR IR EEE T e - EREZIRNGHETHERTNMET A BIRRER - eI P ERK M RREE - RIRMERT
H AR & B 1& BRI HERR

EECDERAKREFEGHEERLGNER  EEKER SRFHEERAGRRABEEERFARENFZRRAEB MG RRE
™

(i) Y5 - Bbs RaR i) Al (2 fHF B R ITEE
AEEBEEME - BELREOMG A ERFRARBETERS - ZF A VRBEL RIERTNYE - B LREERA®
FFEREBELRMIESD - i AlE R F BRI A AR - AIAKERSRSTERS - USHDHEN LN LR SEE
iﬂiﬁi{%ﬁﬁfﬁiﬁzwm ERGEFHR R AR A ERAFHAR - mﬁmﬁﬂ—]ﬁ—ﬁﬁéiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ@b - BT S| BB R R A RO

(i) FFEZ AfE 5 FE
FEMRERFETIN A ERBBETELN G EERGA TRA AR ZHERS - WEEFDHREREHRAREERHE
’I‘%Eﬁ%%%ﬁ@i@&%%ﬁﬁwﬁﬁ VEREEFMKEBEFEFRENTERBRAETEMBEERE(C - EFNSFHEAEHTE
BAfhET -
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Judgment and estimates (continued)
(i) Alowance for bad and doubtful trade and other receivables
The Group determines the allowance for bad and doubtful frade and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit history of the
customers and other debtors and the current market condition. The directors reassess the allowance af the
end of each reporting period.

(iv] Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled fransactions with employees by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based
payments requires determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of equity instruments,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This also requires determining the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the opftion, volatility and dividend
yield and making assumpftions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payments are disclosed in note 28.

(v] Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely fiming and the
level of future taxable profits.

(iv] Customer loyalty programmes
The Group measures the cost of the loyalty award credits by reference to the costs of products and gifts
redeemed in the prior years and the probability of redemption are estimated by the directors based on the
past history. Actual results may different from the estimation.

1 EEEHER @)
(d) I R (At (&)
(iif) REBEAA RN EW A Z 7
AR ER 92 AR B W R R 0 R MR [ 15 5 R S SRR PR MR SR I B A FE MR RO B 45 © WL TRFTHA OAR IR R P R E A FRUGR BB (E RE AR ACER A
RBTTRAEE - EFNEFHEAEMTERE -

(iv) LR 7 181
AEEEEBZBRNEERZGZAA - R2EEGTARNKTERZAAEHME - A ABRHENNAAERERR L EETAE
ERGEENEFTELE - MEAREIRBERSIREAZE - W TAETETHENSERRARE - BRBRERE 1
BE R R - WHEAEHRER o BEtARDEN B R A BT RER SRER M 28 I EE -

(v) B IREE
FTARWE AR AEIR DR ER AR IR EE - IEARRREN AT BIEENA SR 2 EE AR - EFARBEARKERHENZA]
REERA R BMBIFLERAE - UEEA THRAZELEHAEESE -

(iv) &P R E
AEESEBEFREREERLBRIRATELRER ZAA - MBBEZ AT BESRBEBETELGHN - ERERNEH
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 28 February 2010. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by other members of the Group.

A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is an entity in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or controls more than half the voting
power or controls the composition of the board of directors or which the Company has a contractual right to
exercise a dominant influence with respect to that entity’s financial and operating polices.

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. Infra-group
balances and fransactions, and any unrealised profits arising from infra-group transactions, are eliminated in
full on consolidation. Unrealised losses resulting from infra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. This method involves allocating the cost of the business combinations to fair values of the
assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values of the assetfs given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

1 E2EBERE)
(e) &rEHAE
BAMBRREAHARDFREMBARRE201092A28A L2 HHEHE - AARENUESBENBARANKEE - BEHAE
HREEAEEE MR B ATRAE K -

WREB(RAUEDD) - MBARARARERAHEESDEBY B HTRASIEFEF BUIRREIIEFEESNEKRN R R RA DA
BAAENATEZ BNV NS ERRITEEAEZES -

B AR RAE QW R (A KBS # 2 B EEEMEGIRAILE A ILHRANGEE AR - RERERENESR LR S EBERE
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Basis of consolidation (continued)

1

Any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recognised as goodwill. Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment. Any excess of the Group's interest in fair values
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business combination
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Minority interests at the end of the reporting period, being the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries
aftributable to equity interests that are not owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of changes
in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable fo the equity shareholders of the Company.
Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between minority interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses attributable to the minority shareholders exceed the minority’s interest in the equity of a
subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses attributable to the minority, are charged against the Group's
interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make good the
losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is allocated all such profits until the
minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use of the asset or cash-generating unit to which it
belongs and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not fo an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such impairment loss is credited to the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less provisions for depreciation and any impairment
losses. Details are set out in note 12. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly aftributable cost of bringing the asset fo its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the item has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive
income in the year in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of the item, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the item. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is sold, its cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial statements
and any gain or loss resulting from the disposal, being the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, is included in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the estimated economic useful lives of the
individual assets, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings over 55 years from the date of purchase
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1 to 10 years
Plant and machinery 3to 7 years
Motor vehicles 4to 10 years
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Leased assets
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which fransfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases.

The leasehold interest in the land held for own use is accounted for as being held under an operating lease
where the fair value of the interest in any buildings situated on the leasehold land could be separately
identified from the fair value of the leasehold interest in the land at the time the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee, or at the date of construction of those buildings, if
later. In case the two elements cannot be allocated reliably, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease
and carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments of such assets,
are included in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of assets over the term of the relevant leases or, where it is likely the Group or the Company will
obtain ownership of the assets, the life of the assets, as set out in note 1 (g) above. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 1 (f) above. Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period. Contfingent rentals, if any, are charged
to the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals, if any, are charged to the profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

1 F( = D_I_E&ﬁi“
(h) HE 5?
(| AEBHEEEZ S
REERBHERGNEE - ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ZK*ﬁ $HF‘%H e ROHREOEEEAER  ZHEEERERRMEHNERA - WEREEM
BRAH > HERRNKO®RNEE - AIFERKEHEE

LIRS T3 2 TRIEFHEa 2 AAME @ ATEAREE R HER - sSKIEaIEAMAZKE - iGREFRE 2 A (UBEBE R
E)Zii‘@fﬁiﬂg SZAREDFETE @ AISEE M it 2 HE s - Ef"lfﬁf'rﬁﬁ%_lﬁﬂ«%Tﬂ&ﬁﬁT—rﬁZ%ﬁﬁf@@ AR RER] SEdh
DB B MERR - RIRBERESNVERERERE - WA AR R B E R ZFHRERE R

(i) ABEHEBARE E
WASEZBMENEESEENERE  ARAERNEEEEAAER(WABESRR) ZERENFTBNRECADE - BE L&
> MINGMEERRNEEEER SREHEAE - MERERBNHEERR(WARRSAANEERAIEREEENMARE)E
FE’JTFHEEEW PURSHEEERX AR L R EHE o AR R] ARSI 3T (g) o BUERTIBIRER - 3R () Aol & st BUR AR -
MENFTAZHREERENEERRFAZHARARR 2 EBL - RESESTHRNBEEREAERBENLEABIER - E
He () EEELAN SRR AZHRAREK 2B

(iii) A 2 THE B /H
ﬁﬂi%%ﬁﬂm%fﬂfﬁ)ﬂéﬁ AREMEEELAONFEEREMAIRE G RN - UEB) HEZERARK 2 Bk
{B007 E A B AE RS TR 1 i [ BR AR B 4 7 P 8 AE W I SCRIURR SN o PTIMERR B (BB M9 e 2 IR A #RER 2 1R as P R AT EF
RAEFENERE D - A (B EEEENSHHEANEEERARK 2 Bafk -

119



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i

1
(i

()

120

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
identified impairment losses. Results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
complefion and the estimated costs necessary fo make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added fo or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable fo the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets
The Group'’s financial assets include tfrade and other receivables and are classified and accounted for as
loans and receivables. Financial assets are recognised on the frade date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Any changes in
their value are recognised in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Financial instruments (continued)

1

Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

An assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at the end of each reporting period whether or not there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment loss on loans
and receivables is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
the amounts due tfo it in accordance with the original ferms of the receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss is determined as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows.

Financial liabilities

The Group'’s financial liabilities include tfrade and other payables, bank loans and overdrafts, other loan and
obligations under finance leases. Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of fransactions costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expired.

Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

1

(m)Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company's functional currency.
Each enfity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency fransactions are initially
recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to the profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period, and
their statements of comprehensive income are translated info Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are included in exchange reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss in statement of comprehensive income.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arises throughout the year are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(n) Provisions

1

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company or Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to setftle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Employee benefits

(i

il

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or seftlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated aft their present values.

Contributions fo Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and contributions to the retirement schemes operated by the relevant authorities for
employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and Malaysia are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred, except to the extent that
they are included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an expense.

(i) The Group's net obligation in respect of lump sum long service amounts payable on cessation of

employment in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method by a qualified actuary, discounted fo its
present value, and the fair value of any related plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the
end of the reporting period on Exchange Fund Notes that have maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Group's obligations.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Taxation
(i) Taxation for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss in the statement
of comprehensive income except when they relate fo items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case they are also recognised in other comprehensive income or in equity
respectively.

(i) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Taxation (continued)
(i) (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised,
are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods info which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken info account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill and the inifial recognifion of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination). In respect of taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax liabilities are recognised except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
seftlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tfax rates enacted or substantively
enacted af the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available fo allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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1BRR B R Bl 4 A — HARS g ] o

ERECHAEEMBENEARIISMENSELBHE A TYESTHIRNBNNEEXBETIGHER (MBEBE S —o R
BROMNEVER R - B AR EELNERNERZEME - RAKREEEFZERZEORD - M EREREN A LKA
TEELNERIN - BEHEAER THER -

EEPERBRAENE ETENERERREETR  RREEE DR TREE LERTHRENE - BEREEENAR
ISR BETE -

AEESESEFEBFHOECHBEEENREE - MRASE AR THAILRSEHRHRANARNBEOREME - JISHRE
ZBELEHIBEEERREE © HWBRARESERERAEN - BRBRANSEME -
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Taxation (continued)

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from
each ofther and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are
met:

* in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

¢ in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income ftaxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(q) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any frade
discounts and returns.

1 KEE#BZ
(o) BIE(AE)
(iv) REAFLRIER IR AR R A BB S HSIR - BT THEE - RPMEEHIEEER FERAR AR AEEHETRITRARATIEE
EREAEAEHEE  YAFSUTHHRERENERT - HAEHEARMEEREAE - —

o AHIMEEEMAE  NRARIAKEFEIWFRELGEE - ARFERZEEMSEZRE 3
s BUMBEEEMAR  GLEEMABEMARER —HRBEEAEA TEP —BEKNAEHRER
- FA—ERER X

— TREHRER MELERHIERRSERAAABEEHARBFTEREXRNRREHBEEN AREOMEA - &%
MEEBRARFAEENSEAMHALE  KARERZEENBEZEE -

(a) HARER
WAFELBEN R AT LR ARER - LANBESR A SE AT BRAFRA(RER)E - RIBTIIEEEZEWARR 2IBE AR —

(i) #HEER
WAERFPEWE MmN EAA AN AR K D RERER - WATBEEERREMFEER - AHREMEEFTNRE
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

1

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive
income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rental are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the rate applicable.

(r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss as incurred except that they are capitalised as being directly
atftributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible info known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition, less advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the advance. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.

EK = D—I—E&fﬁ(%n
(q) WARER (%)

(s)

(ii) A8 EFHER L IMA
RAEnERASWAEREHMEESTEERN  USESBEEABARR ZBSER - BUEEMEERETE R RRA
EEEMEERGZERENEIRIN - FrER 2 HEESEMBYEEERARE 2B HER F%FE%Z?E SRR BBAENE D - kB
SEEBIAETEEARERAWA -

(i) FLEHA
RITERF BWATIREELLL IR EREEZ A IER 2N EHE

fEE R
(EERANEERNBE S - EHZERAEEE ZEILEFTERBEA IURARERENEENEEERAR - AIZFRA
SEAR -

RekReEEY

MEABRERERME - iﬁ‘i\&iﬁﬁﬁ{aﬁ%@’éfﬁﬁr AR E  FRRRITME AT BERERERER - AREMMRSMEES - B
AHRESENBERS  IAXEEEPRRER  YEBAR=—FEARNIHNRERR  BARBRAYEF =ZEARNEEZRTR
Ko REMREFEEBYNEBRENRERNREE &1ﬁﬁ2$ﬁlfﬁ/i\ 2 — D HERITE S
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to confrol the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject fo common control or common significant influence;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group;

(i) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or its parent;
(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi] the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(viijthe party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that
is a related party of the Group.

] E}l‘z = u—I_BZﬂi Zt
() BEEAL

130

EATER - PIALHRIEAEEBREAL : —

() FBER—HEFIALPN DA ERKKEREN A REAHAEE 2P REERRITEEAZEN(RZTR)  IAEEEZBRALR
HREH AR E

(i) RAKEEZE QR

(i) RAELEE(MAKEREFRREETT)

(V) RAKEREBRRZEBEEEAS

(v) (i) =k (iv) BFT A EAEA Z AT -

(Vi) = BRI (iv) Sk (v) BT E R A A B B 2 BRE1ESH] - KRIEHSRREATESTEAEREEZER © &

(vil) Z T REREN T AEERBNEREA L 2 ER B ESNBBR RS -



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u)Segment reporting
For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their geographic locations.
The directors monitor the results of the Group's operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example, segment assets
may include inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities are determined before infra-group balances and infra-group fransactions are eliminated
as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that such infra-group balances and fransactions are
between group enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, and
corporate and financing expenses.

] F( = D_I_Ekﬂi“
() HELRE
REBME  AEERETRARRES TREBERN - EEHHERAEBSLCL OB EE USROS REETHEHRE o
AEUA - T ¥4 BERABERHEERBE—HE  URARABEESHEZHHHOIER - fIn - HBEETLEEFSE
KRR R  BEREE - HBRA S BERBRBOSALFREGESFBRRSENOEBNTERNBENEEANDR
5 BRB—ESBHEMD L R EENDERNBENZ S AR -
AEERRETIEFRNEATE T RARB—FOHDEEMEEK AR -

AHOWMEE T ECEIBROEEE  FHEER B CEMBEXHL -

2 Turnover % %%

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing of jewellery products. Turnover
represents the sales value of jewellery products sold to customers, net of value added tax and discount.

AEENETRXGRENE  HEREREREEH - EXBREMREERMTIIRNIEEREPREEMHNHEBEDFE -
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3

13

Other revenue &g A

2010
20104

HK$'000 j&#F HK$'000 &%+t

Compensation received for early ERBLIEHALN 2
termination of a lease in Hong Kong BESWA - 28,783
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain — net P& 5 (18K), M —F (497) 751
Interest income FEWA 518 312
Rental income WA 651 651
Others A 9.128 6,531
9,800 37,028

Profit before taxation B &g &7

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEgIZME K, (Gt A) :

2010
20104

2009
20094
(restated) (&%)

HK$'000 ## F T HK$'000 ¥+t

(a) Finance costs (o) BAEERA
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ERFERNZEENZ
wholly repayable within five years RITER BT L 3,404 5,520
Interest on other loans wholly repayable ERFRZEENZ
within five years EtEFRHFE 356 1,890
Interest element of finance lease payments RVEREAEN
MiEER 1 44
3,761 7,454

(b) Staff costs (b) BIEA
Contributions to defined contribution ATER-FGRIRETE
retirement schemes K 4,775 5,050
Adjustment in respect of long service B REARE BRI
payments (note 23(a) (i) & (iii)) (HF5E23(a) (i) R (iii)) (11,171) 4,652
Retirement costs — net RIREHBIBAR —F (6,396) 9,702
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERAMBER 284,719 281,723
278,323 291,425
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doubtful debts

4 Profit before taxation (continued) g Fi g1 & F| (&)

2010
20104

HK$'000 #&#F

2009

20094

(restated) (&%)
HK$'000 #&#F T

(c) Other items (c) HtEE
Auditors' remuneration ZERET BN &
- current year provision —REEEE
— auditors of the Company B YNGIE =il 3,000 2,835
- other auditors — H b AZEEm 239 305
— prior year underprovision —EFEREETR
- auditors of the Company — RN EZEED 90 -
Cost of inventories sold HEFERAR 952,621 920,698
Depreciation e 42,906 47,054
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment HEME R EEE 89 343
Operating lease charges wEHEERA
- land and buildings situated —BAEZ T RETF
in Hong Kong 72,410 71,565
—land and buildings situated other than —BBLIN T REF
in Hong Kong 17,176 16,001
Provision/(reversal of provision) for FERE,/ (BERE)
inventories 3,560 (6,201)
Gain on disposal of land and buildings HE T REFEF] - (2,464)
Rental income from properties less direct YRS WAREE
outgoings XM
—rentalincome —fHsRKA (651) (6571)
— direct outgoings —EHEXH 66 76
(585) (575)
Reversal of allowance for bad and SRIFER 4 o (110) (263)

Cost of inventories sold includes HK$51,793,000 (2009: HK$54,285,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
expenses, operating lease charges, which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above in note 4(b) and 4(c) for each of these types of expenses.

BET R ADERE THA - 58 A RS E R A G B B51 793 00075 (20094 : #%5428500070) « HRIEENB AL L
B34 (b) B M4 () FOBST 0 2 & MM RARE S o -

133



5 Taxation #im

(a) Taxation recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income represents:

RiFA 2EWARE 2 B ER

2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 #&i#& Tt HK$'000 ;B8 Tt

Current tax - Hong Kong profits tax

ZK%HT%IE ERNEHR

Tax for the year 3,269 5,655
Underprovision in respect of prior years J«‘Miif‘é’%ﬁ?\i 280 2,397
3,549 8,052
Current tax - overseas taxation ZHEAFLE — A
Tax for the year 38,295 27,412
(Overprovision)/Underprovision (BERE),AEFEHE
in respect of prior years (29) 1,181
38,266 28,593
Deferred tax (note 24(b)) IEEFIE (KEF24(b)) 10,529 (1,623)
52,344 35,022

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in

the relevant countries.

FENSHBEEREAPENREERMIRENE L Z BT ERT AN -
ZRBETR R BB R A ERAERBRE -
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5 Taxation (continued) #1E (4)
(b) Reconciliation between profit before taxation and taxation recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

BRATERFNGA 2 ERARE 2 BRI ARR BIA HE -
2010 2009

20104 20094

(restated)(&31])

HK$'000 /&¥F7T HK$'000 &% F 7

- _______________________________________________________________________________|

Profit before taxation BT B & F 199,095 159,500
'

Nofional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to

BRI E ZER AT
HER B R E

profits in the countries concerned riAI BN 2 EHIE 49,586 37,455
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax exemption TZHGFEENBFRIEEE (9.774) (11,619)
Tax-effect of non-deductible expenses FEHRE R a2 3,878 5,409
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEEHRANTIB L (814) (5.812)
Tax effect of prior year's tax losses RAFEBAEFEREN

utilised this year HEgE (115) (200)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERE R E=RNBIATE

not recognised 348 550
Tax effect of prior year temporary RATFERE R

differences recognised EENBIEZE (6,065) (1.365)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KERAEANTIEERE

not recognised AR 2 9,686 560
Under-provision in prior years AAFFERETR 251 3,578
Tax effect of withholding tax at 5% RAEERPEARLMER L2

on the distributable profits of the Group's B8 2 B2 Al o IR F 5 %r T &

subsidiaries established in the People’s TERTH NI E

Republic of China 5,363 6,466
Taxation A 52,344 35,022

(c) There were disputes between certain subsidiaries with Inland Revenue Department (“IRD") regarding the tax

c)ETHER

freatment of certain offshore income and agents commission payments and promoter fees for prior years.
IRD had issued protective profits tax assessments and proposals from our year ended 28 February 2002 to year
ended 28 February 2009. The Group has established full provision for all additional assessments issued and
proposed by IRD in respect of such disputes in the previous years. On 30 April 2010, the Group have submitted
settlement proposals fo IRD and the Group is still awaiting reply from the IRD as at the date of the approval
of the financial statements. The directors consider that the provision made in the financial statements to be
adequate.

REFENER(RERDAARFEZETHEEA REBEMAEXHEXBHEEER 2 HBRIENEEMEE - HBHE
MR E2002F2 A28 H | E2009F2H28H I 2 FEAELREEF B IER - AEENBEFECUBEFRS M ZMAERREHED
KE 2 BN REL B - W2010F4A30R - ARBERARBRERGLEESR  BEAKEEMBBER 2 ANEFRBRZEE -
EERRRYBRRAMMEL ZBEBREH -
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6 Directors’ remuneration &4
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

BREEB(RAUEPDE16MGRENEEHM LT : —

2010 2009

20104 20094

HK$'000 &% Tt HK$'000 i&# T

[ e e
Fees we 1,080 1,080
Salaries and other emoluments HeREMMNE 7,690 7,016
Performance related incentives BRI AE R 2 12E) 6,523 5,325
Contributions to refirement benefits schemes  E{RiEFIE &4 48 42
15,341 13,463

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$1,080,000 (2009: HK$1,080,000) paid to the non-executive
directors during the year.

EEMeRBFAN TIERTEZHNREE1,080,0007T (20094 : £#%1,080,0007T) °

Conftributions
Salaries  Performance  to retirement
and other related benefits
Fees emoluments incentives schemes Total
Fek IR AR RIRAER
wE E N 1) FHEIHERR Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
]
2010 20104F
Executive directors: BITESE ©
Yau On Yee, Annie % 5% - 3,064 3,500 12 6,576
Erwin Steve Huang =HEK - 1,800 1,350 - 3,150
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael ok F 2 - 756 52 12 820
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence BFH - 1,110 900 12 2,022
Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel JE BB - 9260 721 12 1,693

- 7,690 6,523 48 14,261

Independent Non-executive B IEHiTESE :

directors:
Chui Chi Yun, Robert EEC 360 - - - 360
Peter George Brown BRE 360 - - - 360
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin SEIEAE 360 — _ _ 360
1,080 - - - 1,080
1,080 7,690 6,523 48 15,341
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6 Directors’ remuneration (continued) E=£E4 (4)

Contributions

Salaries  Performance  to retirement
and other related benefits
Fees emoluments incentives schemes Total
Fek ERRIFAA IRVRAER
e EL A 2 A 2 EERED FTEIfER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT R IT BT BT
|
2009 20094F
Executive directors: BITES
Yau On Yee, Annie il - 2,784 3,003 12 5,799
Erwin Steve Huang wEK - 1,747 1,350 - 3,097
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael SR - 753 252 12 1,017
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence BFR - 952 720 12 1,684
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy E - 510 - 6 516
Peter Gerardus Van BT
Weerdenburg - 270 - - 270
- 7,016 5,325 42 12,383
Non-executive directors: BN IEBITES
Chui Chi Yun, Robert EEC 360 - - - 360
Peter George Brown BRE 360 - - - 360
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin B3 90 - - - 90
Siu Ming Wah FREA L 270 - - - 270
1,080 - - - 1,080
1,080 7,016 5,325 42 13,463
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7 Individuals with highest emoluments &4 A+
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2009: two) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 6. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other one (2009: three) individual is as
follows:

ERfREMEALF MR (2009F : MA)RES - BREMSFBERMEOMEE - H8k— R (2009%F « =%) ALHMESEENT

2010 2009

20104 20094

HK$'000 ##s Tt HK$'000 ## Tt
I
Salaries and other emoluments FeMEMEE 872 3,107
Performance related incentives B R IRIARE 2 2B 546 5,389
Contributions to refirement benefits schemes  EkiEFIET &4t 12 28
1,430 8,524

The emoluments of the one (2009: three) individual with the highest emoluments is within the following bands:

Z—% (20094 « ZR)REMEALTHMESEATEER

2010 2009

2010 20094

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N
|
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 711,000,001 7T 2 7% #2,000,0007T 1 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 715,000,001 7T 2 %% 5,500,0007T - 1

8 Profit for the year xFE &7

The consolidated profit for the year includes a profit of HK$126,527,000 of the Company (2009: loss of
HK$48,278,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

P

FEGEBNBR-FLINARNRAMBHHRERNARBEFNEH126,527,0007T (20094  EHEEH48,278,0007T) °
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9 Dividends &g
An inferim dividend of HK$0.02 (2009: HK$0.02) per ordinary share, amounting to an interim dividend of
HK$4,207,000 (2009: HK$4,176,000) was declared during the year ended 28 February 2010.

A final dividend for the year ended 28 February 2010, of HK$0.08 (2009: HK$0.03) per ordinary share, amounting
to a final dividend of approximately HK$16,827,000 (2009: HK$6,310,000) is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has
not been recognised as a liability af the end of the reporting period.

REZE2010F2A28H IEFE - EAMIKEHTER S AEEBARER0.0270(20094F - E#0.0270)  £2588 % 4,207,0007T (20094 -
B14,176,0007T) ©

HZE20105F2 A28 L FEHREAR S G EBRABE0.087T (2009 : EH0.037T) - ABFEL)HEHE16,827,0007T (20094 : 4% 6,310,000
7)) BRARRAE AR RRBEARE LIZ2 - REARRIEZ 2RI BA RN 4B ERSER -

10Earnings per share k&
(a) Basic earnings per share &R&EZN 2 H)
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company in the amount of HK$121,690,000 (2009 (restated): HK$104,757,000) and on the weighted average
of 209,867,971 ordinary shares (2009: 208,375,721 ordinary shares) in issued during the year.

FRERBNZIRBAEE AR RIRREE R TR 121,690,0007T (20094 (E51) - ¥ 104,757,0007T) @ AREIAE #17E B
Z DAL 8R209,867,97 1A E A% (20094 : 208,375,721 IR E @A) 5T H -

(b) Diluted earnings per share & & #& Z F

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company in the amount of HK$121,690,000 and on the weighted average of 210,127,513 ordinary shares (2009:
208,375,721 ordinary shares) adjusted for the effects of exercise of share opftions. Diluted earnings per share
is not shown for the year ended 28 February 2009 as the exercise price of the share options of the Company
oufstanding during that year was higher than the market price of the Company's ordinary shares immediately
before the suspension of frading in the shares of the Company and, accordingly, they had no dilutive effect
on the basic earnings per share.

SREERFTIERA D A FE AL BFE 121,690,000 & & @A hnie F19$210,127, 5138 T B % (2009 4F : 208,375,721
P mAL) - WL TR 2 B E L AR E - AREE 2009528288 IFFEARN T MARITHE 2 BIREZ TEEBSHRAQARE
BRREEANRROEEEEM2TE - Bit - EHEREARZ EABF W EEELE - WARRWEYREE200942H28A 1
FEZ2BRESRT -
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11Segment reporting 5 &4

14

PRC (including Inter-segment
Hong Kong and Macau) Others elimination Consolidated
hE (REEERERM) £t DEREHEE FREE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
20105 20094 20105 20094 20105 20094 20105 20094

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

(restated) (restated)
(&5) (E51)
|
Revenue from external customers RENREPEIKA 1994997 1,928,200 22,575 31,160 - - 2017572 1,959,360
Inter-segment revenue DEREBA 4,792 7,233 - - (4,792) (7,233) - -
Other revenue from RENREP
external customers MEMEA 9,645 37,090 155 (62) - - 9,800 37,028
Total g 2,009,434 1,972,523 22,730 31,098 (4,792) (7,233) 2,027,372 1,996,388
|
Segment results DR 205,448 163,484 (2,592) 1,006 202,856 164,490
Finance costs HEER (3,761) (7,454)
Gain on disposal of land and buildings &+t k2F & - 2,464
Taxation BE (52,344) (35,022)
Profit for the year KEEEF 146,751 124,478
Depreciation e 42,830 46,815 76 239 42,906 47,054
Signification non-cash REFRS
expenses S 89 343 - - 89 343
|
Segment assets DHBE 1,471,365 1,222,013 35,529 31,361 (72,209) (67,866) 1,434,685 1,185,508
Unallocated assets KOEEE 23,280 26,848
Total assets BELE 1,457,965 1,212,356
|
Segment liabilities PHaE 498,618 391,103 74,893 69,998 (72,209) (67,866) 501,302 393,235
Unallocated liabilities FOEEE 236,086 240,175
Total liabilities Y ret 737,388 633,410
|
Capital expenditure incurred REFREEN
during the year BARER 27,243 44,984 74 29 27,317 45,013
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12Property, plant and equipment %1% - & k&
(a) The Group &£ F

Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Plant and Motor
buildings equipment  machinery vehicles Total
T i KE
gF PE iz Mo es AE “axE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
|
COsT [S%N

1 March 2008 200843 H1H 97,273 248,050 15,543 2,780 363,646
Exchange adjustments bE 5 S - 2,741 78 44 2,863
Additions gE - 44,725 139 149 45,013
Reclassification EFEibay - 1,725 (1,725) - -
Disposals HE (2,085) (7,160) (978) - (10,223)

28 February 2009 and 7200942 A28H
1 March 2009 200943 A1H 95,188 290,081 13,057 2,973 401,299
Exchange adjustments bE 5 A - 419 - - 419
Reclassification EFEibay - (584) - 584 -
Additions e - 26,304 708 305 27,317
Disposals HE - (20,873) (1,035) (158) (22,066)
28 February 2010 7201042 A 28H 95,188 295,347 12,730 3,704 406,969

|
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZEiHifE

1 March 2008 200843 A 1H 27,135 182,236 13,430 2,470 225,271
Exchange adjustments [ X - 2,170 34 34 2,238
Charge for the year NEEWE 1,848 44,406 513 287 47,054
On disposals & (171) (6,918) (800) - (7,889)
Reclassification B - 644 (662) 18 -
28 February 2009 and 200942 A28H

1 March 2009 K&200943A 18 28,812 222,538 12,515 2,809 266,674
Exchange adjustments bE 5 S - 399 - - 399
Reclassification B - (37) - 37 -
Charge for the year REEHE 1,814 40,286 615 191 42,906
On disposals HE - (20,470) (975) (158) (21,603)
28 February 2010 201052 A 28H 30,626 242,716 12,155 2,879 288,376
NET BOOK VALUE BRE R E
28 February 2010 72010528 28H 64,562 52,631 575 825 118,593
|
28 February 2009 200942 B 28H 66,376 67,543 542 164 134,625
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12Property, plant and equipment (continued) 1% - B K& ()
(b) The Company &AAF]

142

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment

i RKE

PE]
HK$'000
BT
|
COST 22
1 March 2008 7200843 A 1H 7,781
Transfer within the Group SEANAREEE 1,488
28 February 2009, 1 March 2009 and M200942A28H ~ 200943A1H &
28 February 2010 7201052 K281 9,269
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ESiiN
1 March 2008 7200843 A 1H 2,166
Charge for the year REEHE 1,936
Transfer within the Group SEANAREEE 515
28 February 2009 and 1 March 2009 M200942 A28 H K% 200943A1H 4,617
Charge for the year REEHE 2,256
28 February 2010 #2010%2H28H 6,873
|
NET BOOK VALUE BRERE
28 February 2010 #2010%2H28H 2,396

28 February 2009 72009428 28H 4,652



12Property, plant and equipment (continued) ¥)% ~ FiF &% &)

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

VIZEREFEMDITAT ¢
The Group
REE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 #&#&+ T HK$'000 #&#¥F T
-~~~ -~ - -
In Hong Kong EEE
- Long leases —REEE 6,610 6,780
- Medium-term leases —HHETEE 57,952 59,596
64,562 66,376
Other parts of the PRC e B H fthith 75
- Long leases —REEE - -
- Medium-term leases —HHIEE - -
64,562 66,376
-~ -

At the end of the reporting period, the property ownership certificates in respect of the property interests held
in other parts of the PRC have not been issued by the relevant PRC government authority. The net book value
of the properties was HK$2 at the end of the reporting period.

ﬁ%%%ﬁﬂ C ERERBASFIDARETEEM T AN ERERHEHERGRENE - ZAEVERFHEANEREHEREE
AE o

(d) The net book value of the office equipment and motor vehicle held under finance leases of the Group was
HK$416,000 (2009: HK$1,654,000).

AEBURERERE MR D EREMTENREFERBE416,0007T (20094 : B¥#1,654,0007T) °

13Interests in subsidiaries &R a#Ez=

The Company

Vi N/NC]|

2010 2009

20104 20094

HK$'000 ATt HK$'000 & Tt
R s e e s
Unlisted shares/capital contributions, at cost M, HE - R 712,742 712,742
Due from subsidiaries FEUSH B~ RIBR 3K 435,933 438,739
1,148,675 1,151,481
Less: Impairment lossa W OREEES (520,032) (643,746)
628,643 507,735

A& An impairment was recognised for interest in subsidiaries with a carrying amount of HK$708,290,000 (2009: HK$920,097,000) before
deducting the impairment loss because their recoverable amounts were less than the carrying amounts.

o ANBARER ATREEEDNRREE - S ENRREESEA 2 REEE708,290,000(20094 : j##920,097,0007) {ERERE
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13Interests in subsidiaries (continued) &~ a1z (
The following list contains only the partficulars of sub5|d|or|es which principally affected the results, assets or

liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TRABIEAEENEE BEXBBEEAFENNBRFFE - RABTBREIN -

P A AR R E B

Principal activities
FEEH

PRC jewellery retailing
RAOBREHRETE

Jewellery manufacturing
and trading
KERERES

Trademarks holding
RABR

Jewellery trading
®EEH

PRC jewellery retailing
RPBEREKRETE

Manufacturing and
distribution of
jewellery

TRERE 2 ) 84

PRC jewellery trading

RABREHREL S

PRC jewellery retailing
RABERERETE

PRC jewellery trading

Place of
establishment/ Particulars Group's effective
Name of incorporation of issued and ownership interest
company and operation paid up capital REENERBERER
B A=Al Ava BEITRER 2010 2009
yNSIE ReAg &2 A S 20104 20094F
- -
Beijing Qi Li Yun People's Republic RMB1,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Jewellery Company of China (*PRC") AR #1,000,0007T
Limited #/** HhEEARLAE ( [RE] )
IEFEFNEKREBR AR
Beijing Tse Sui PRC US$2,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Luen Jewellery HE 2,000,000%7T
Company Limited #/*
(“BTSL")
IERH BB E AR A
(MR mEE )
Concepts Management Hong Kong HK$1 100%° 100%®
(H.K.) Limited 5 BT
BlRER(BE)ERLR
Excellent Ford Hong Kong HK$10,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Development B ##10,0007T
Limited (“EF")
BHERBRAA
(MEsERE])
Guangzhou Hong PRC RMB1,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Yun Jewellery HE AR #1,000,0007T
Company Limited
("GZ Hong Yun")#/**
BINEEREERAA
(TEMIEE |)*
Guangzhou Jingshi PRC HK$18,000,000 100%° 100%°
Jewellery Company HE 75118,000,0007T
Limited #/*
BINEARE B fhaRA R
Guangzhou Tai Yi PRC HK$8,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Trading Company e 75#8,000,0007T
Limi’red#/*
BNREAHEERA
Guangzhou Xi Yun PRC RMB2,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Jewellery Company SalE] AR #2,000,0007T
Limited#/**
BMNEEHKERR AR *
Guangzhou Xiang PRC RMB3,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Yun Jewellery HE AR3,000,0007C

Company Limited

("GZ Xiang Yun”)#/**
BMNEEHREBRR

(TEMEE )

144

RABEREREES



Name of
company

DA

Impromptus Asia
Pacific Limited

Infinite Assets Corp.
(HlACH)

Liberty Mark Limited

Shanghai Fu Yun
Jewellery Company
Limited#/**

PERERERRAF

Shenzhen Jingyan
Jewellery Company
Limited#/*

RYIEHIRE & 8 A R A Bl

TSL Investment
(B.V.l.) Limited

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
Company Limited
(“TSLJ")

WinERERR AR
([FHmBRE ])

Tse Sui Luen Investment
(China) Limited
(“TSL China”)
HERBIRE (FE)ER A A
(TBm e )

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(Malaysia) Limited 4

AT (FARAEE)BRAR

TSL Management
Services Limited
(“TSL MS”)

SR E R RB AR LA
([HmBE RS

TSL Jewellery (Export)
Company Limited
SRBIRE (HO)BR AR

=\
o

13Interests in subsidiaries (continued) &R &)z

(%

piili}

)

Place of
establishment/ Particulars Group's effective
incorporation of issued and ownership inferest
and operation paid up capital AEENEREEES
v aiii v BEITRAR 2010 2009
ek PR IE 20104 2009F
Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%° 100%°
B 75110,0007T
British Virgin Islands HK$277,254 80.46%° 80.46%°
(“BVI") HH277,2547C
RERLHS
([EBRAHE])
BVI Us$1 100%¢ 100%@
RERTES [E
PRC RMB1,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
i AR#1,000,0007C
PRC HK$8,000,000 100%¢ 100%®
i 75138,000,0007T
BVI HK$1,000 100% 100%
RBERLHS 75%1,0007T
Hong Kong HK$34,000 100%¢ 100%°
5 7515 34,00070
BVI US$6,863 80.46%° 80.46%°
RBERLHS 6,863% 7T
Hong Kong/Malaysia HK$3,000,000 100%° 100%°
BB/ BRAED #£3,000,0007C
Hong Kong HK$2 100%° 100%°
5 2T
Hong Kong HK$14,824,775 100%° 100%°
BE 75%14,824,7757C

Principal activities
FEEK

Goldsmith and jewellery
frading
ReRHEES

Investment holding
KREER

Investment holding
REER

PRC jewellery retailing
REBEREHRETE

Manufacturing and
distribution of
jewellery

RERE K ) 8K

Investment holding
KREER

Jewellery trading
KEEH

Investment holding
KREER

Jewellery retailing

KETE

Management and
Admin. Services
BB RITBRY

Jewellery export
KEHLO
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13Interests in subsidiaries (continued) [iERaH#EzE (&)

Place of
establishment/ Particulars Group's effective
Name of incorporation of issued and ownership interest
company and operation paid up capital AEEMER RS Principal activities
B A=Al Ava BETRER 2010 2009
yNSIE RAg &2 A S 20104 20094 TEEH
- -
TSL Jewellery (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 100%® 100%¢ Jewellery retailing
Limited R JEPIE100,0007T in Macau
(“TSL (Macau)”) RRFIREKRETE
TSUAE (RF9) BRAF
(TTSLCRPS) 1)
TSL Jewellery (HK.) Hong Kong HK$490 100%° 100%° Jewellery retailing
Co. Limited B BEEA90TT KETE
(“TSL (HK)")
IHBIAE () BRAR
(i 60
TSL Manufacturing and Hong Kong HK$47,000,000 100%® 100%¢ Procurement,
Distribution Limited B 751 47,000,0007T manufacturing and
(“TSL M&D") distribution of
AHBMEE R D EERAT jewellery
(B BE R 84 1) g BBER D HKE
TSL Properties Management  Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%® 100%° Property holding
Limited B 7BH1,0007T and investment
B X EE AR AR BEDERKE
# Unofficial franslation
FIEREE

*  Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise
RERED AR AINERE

**  Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company
REHEEEEMAEREEAA

@

Indirectly held through subsidiaries
FBNEAREERSE

>

Subsidiary not audited by member firms of Moore Stephens International Limited
UEHTE R BN 3 E R SRR AR AR EEZ

14Other asset & E

The Group
EE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 #&#+ ¢ HK$'000 /&% Tt
— Membership and seat in the Chinese Gold DIREZ H5a5
and Silver Exchange Society KA 500 500
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15Inventories #&

The Group
REE

2010 2009
2010%F 20094
HK$'000 ##sF T HK$'000 ##s Tt
'
Raw materials — at net realisable value JRME— R Al S ERFE 91,946 82,491
Work in progress — at cost R — A 70,988 22,385
Finished goods — at net realisable value B — IR P B3R HE 791,780 655,885
954,714 760,761

As at 28 February 2010, the inventories held by é subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries”) amounting to HK$487,655,000
(2009: HK$384,905,000) were pledged as a continuing security of the debts arising from the supply of polished
diamonds and precious stones by Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue HK") to the Subsidiaries (the “Debts”)
from time to time (see also note 30 below).

R201042A280 » AXWERR([ZEMBERAR DFHEZFED THEM - HRME{E/R/E%487,655,0007T (20094 : j8#384,905,000

J0) * YE/ABRosy Blue Hong Kong Limited([Rosy Blue HK ) T MZEH B AR EEREA A EBAMELEZEB((ZEE]) 2HE
REBE(NBEL2HE T CMIFE30) ©

16Trade and other receivables F&ukaR 7k E ith g sk

The Group
rEE

2010 2009

20104F 20094

HK$'000 &%+t HK$'000 &%+t
|
Trade receivables FEUBRFR 140,839 110,210
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  HfbfE R - 5% MFER K 58,736 67,294
199,575 178,204
Less: Allowance for bad and doubftful debts B RIEEBREME (MisEe) (15,593) (15,703)

(note (c))

183,982 162,501
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16Trade and other receivables (continued) [ U AR 3k & E Ath FE UK ()

(a) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of ollowonce for bad and doubftful debts)
with the following ageing analysis:

BRI AR SR e L At FE MR A ) FE MR R (L ANBR R IR BRI ) O BRER D AT A0 T

The Group
EE

2010 2009

20104 20094

HK$'000 #&#¥&F T HK$'000 #&#+ T

-~~~ -~~~

0 to 30 days 0230k 113,413 76,088

31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 2,573 5,513

61 to 90 days 61 REIOK 691 3,071

Over 90 days HBBIOX 8.569 10,535

Total frade receivables FEURBR FhAa%E 125,246 95,207
Other receivables, HADFEUGR

deposits and prepayments (note (e)) e R (K (e)) 58,736 67,294

183,982 162,501

Apart from retail customers, the Group allows an average credit period from 30 to 90 days to other customers.
REEREZIN - REEG THMEZ FIIHR30EI0RMERERE

(b) The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

R R SR EE B8 R AIRME 2 FEU R e B A FE MR 2 BREE AT I TS

The Group
REH

2010 2009
20104F 20094
HK$'000 &%+t HK$'000 i&#F 7T
-~~~ - -~ -
Neither past due nor impaired 7 7 58 BR SR (B 124,107 84,504
Less than é months past due w AR 61E A 1,101 9.807
Over 6 months past due i HAA R 6 1E A 38 896
125,246 95,207

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a
?ood track record with the Group. Based on past experience the directors are of the opinion that no provision

or impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over those balances.

The directors consider that trade and other receivables approximate their fair values.
I f 2 EASYORUE 2 FEUR AR SR B BN SR AV Re 8 s BAE P A/ -

RG] ﬁEE/JEHEZFEH&ﬁE Eﬁiﬁzli EIINE: pﬂﬁ’zﬂﬂ,‘z%jﬁﬁﬁ%}fﬁ% - IRIBBELER  EERDEBRXTH T’Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁé{%
BTN EEE R E B AR E) - WA M TR A TR BBl o 4 S B 5 5 A B (T (RS 7 ok B B 25 -

E=2RR  BURREEMBUGRERE XA ERE -
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16Trade and other receivables (continued) U &R 5% K B A FEUGK ()
(c) Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as follows:

FRRZRBHE2EBNT ¢
The Group
REE

2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 ## Tt HK$'000 ## Tt
A
1 March 3A1H 15,703 15,968
Reversal of allowance for bad and RIS B 1 (110) (265)

doubtful debts

28 February 2A28H 15,593 15,703

(d) Details of frade and other receivables denominated in different currencies are as follows:

DA R & #8 5 1HE 2 e B ok N Bt P WOSR AR AR TS

The Group
rEE

2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 &+t HK$'000 &+t
]
Hong Kong dollars gia 47,863 48,878
Chinese Renminbi ARHE 122,587 90,275
United States dollars EViH 12,593 22,198
Others Hith 939 1,150
183,982 162,501

(e) Details of other receivables, deposits and prepayments are as follows:

HA MR ~ e RIAMFRAANT

The Group The Company
A&H EAVNS]
2010 2009 2010 2009
20109 20094 2010 20094

HK$'000 5#Fr  HK$'000 ##Fr HK$'000 ##Fr HK$'000 #&# T

Other receivables H AWK 11,747 14,724 - -
Deposits b 39,084 39,898 32 1
Prepayments LR 7,905 12,672 1,106 1,136

58,736 67,294 1,138 1,137
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17 Cash at bank and in hand E1TE# MRS

Details of cash at bank and in hand denominated in different currencies are as follows:

UAREBINEZ RITER R EFHEOT

The Group
EE

2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 &%+t HK$'000 i&#F T
Hong Kong Dollars ot 70,188 18,706
Chinese Renminbi ARHE 96,532 104,063
Malaysian Ringgits H2RPEER T 8,423 3,825
United States Dollars ETT 967 232
Others A 784 295
176,894 127,121

The conversion of the Chinese Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchagne control promulgated by the PRC government.

ARBBHRERRINE S R BB AT R M R INEE BIAR O FOERIFFELE -

18Trade and other payables FERERF N EAtb a1

(a) Included in frade and other payables are payables with the following ageing analysis:

150

BRI A AR SRR A FE S SR D B (S SR O B

N

The Group
REH
2010 2009
20104 20094F

HK$'000 ## F T

HK$'000 #&#F T
(restated) (&%)

0 to 30 days 0E30k 26,062 44,130
31 to 60 days 31XE60K 53,249 24,523
61 to 90 days 61KE90K 49,987 23,126
Over 90 days HBBIOK 144,629 84,165
Total trade payables eI RV 273,927 175,944
Other payables and accruals (note(c)) HtFER R REER (M5 (c) 227,375 217,291

501,302 393,235

The directors consider that frade and other payables approximate their fair values.

EE2RR BARALEMEMRERAAERE -



18Trade and other payables (continued) &R K KRR TR (4)

(b) Details of frade and other payables denominated in different currencies are as follows:

AR E M5 HE 2 FE 5 ARk e B A FE A SRARARAA TS

The Group
REE
2010 2009
20104 20094

HK$'000 #&#F 7t HK$'000 /&#F

(restated) (&%)

Hong Kong dollars ok 147,134 138,742
Chinese Renminbi AR 109,639 111,990
United States dollars eV 240,156 139,683
Others Hitp 4,373 2,820

501,302 393,235

(c) Details of other payables and accruals are as follows:
Hib SRR EST B AN T

The Group
r&HE
2010
20104
HK$'000 #&#F7r  HK$'000

The Company
A
2009 2010 2009
20094 20104 20094

BETT HK$'000 BEFr HK$'000 BEFT

(restated) (£71))

Other payables HAEAR 65,932 82,458 - -
Customer deposits BEES 7.689 8,317 - -
Provision for liabilities BERE 19,424 24,214 - -
Accruals &R 134,330 102,302 5,187 5,131

227,375 217,291 5,187 5,131

oS EL

19Bank loans and overdrafts — secured RiITERKFEX —HEHMA
At 28 February 2010, the secured bank loans were repayable as follows:

H2010F2A 28R - HEIPRITERHERBOT : —

The Group A%£E

2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 #&# Tt HK$'000 & Tt

Within 1 year or on demand 1ERSIRER 86,350 74,374
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 F12E2F A 9,600 12,640
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F 1% 1B5F R 27,200 -
36,800 12,640

123,150 87,014

Details of the securities for the bank loans and overdrafts are set out in note 30 (a) to (b) to the financial

statements.
IRITER NS S 2 IR B H NI SREME30(a)E (b) °
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200ther loan — secured EfEzxR—HEMH

At 28 February 2010, the other loan was repayable as follows:

MR20105F2 7280 + EhEFRMEFRANT ¢
The Group R&EHE

2010 2009

20104 20094

HK$'000 &5 Tt HK$'000 &# Tt

Within 1 year 1A 6,962 14,552
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&B2FR - 6,962
6,962 21,514

Other loan includes secured loan from Partner Logistics Limited which carries interest at Hong Kong Interbank
Offering Rate plus 2% per annum. Details of the securities for other loan from Partner Logistic Limited are sef out in
note 30 (a) fo (b) fo the financial statements.

EMEFBEPartner Logistics Limited 2 BMER - THRFF LK EBRITRZEFREM2EFTE o BPartner Logistics Limitedfg T2 EAth
B2 IR BN M SRR M zE30(a) £ (b) °

21 Other loan —unsecured Eft B —EEH
At 28 February 2010, the other loan was repayable as follows:

M2010F2H280 » HALERAERIAMT -

The Group and the Company

REBERAQE
2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 &5 Tt HK$'000 &% Tt
Within 1 year 144 - 3N

For the year ended 28 February 2009, other loan represented an unsecured loan from a third party which carried
interest at a flat rate of 8.39% per annum and was repayable by 36 equal instalments of HK$157,374 each (inclusive
of interest). The other loan has been fully repaid during the year.

BE2009F2H28H 1EFE - RMEFERAE =0 2 BEMER - RS —FHXIVEA R - WEHICHEHNEME 157,374 (BIEH
BEE - EEFNFAD2HMNE -
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22 Obligations under finance leases #&EHE#E
The Group leases an office equipment and computer equipment under finance leases expiring in four years and
two years, respectively (note 12(d)). At the end of the lease term, the Group has the option to purchase the assets
at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. None of the leases included contingent rentals.
At 28 February 2010, the Group and the Company had obligations under finance leases repayable as follows:

AEEDRIEBNOFAI N MEREEAMRLEREMMFAIG R EHERMERMRE(HE12(d) - REERTER - AREF
BUARAEEZERBARENEE - SREREH T8GR -

201062 A28H + ANEERARFNENEHEAE VERBPOT : —
(a) The Group Z&H

2010 2009
2010 2009
Present Interest Present Interest

value of the expense Total value of the expense Total
minimum relating minimum minimum relating minimum
lease to future lease lease to future lease
payments periods payments payments periods payments
RIEHE Hi&H5E RIEHE FERE EE RIEHE
AHERE WAS % DR NHERE #FSXH BEtE

HK$'000 &+ HK$'000 %%+ HK$'000 A#Fir HK$'000 Tt HK$'000 T HK$'000 % Tt

Within 1 year (B3 107 - 107 173 - 173
After 1 year but within 2 years 15EE2ER 101 - 101 98 - 98
After 2 years but within 5 years 25 EE5FR 102 - 102 210 - 210
203 - 203 308 - 308
310 - 310 481 - 481

(b) The Company A&AQF]

2010 2009
20105 2009F
Present Interest Present Interest

value of the expense Total value of the expense Total
minimum relafing minimum minimum relafing minimum
lease to future lease lease to future lease
payments periods payments payments periods payments
RIERE Hiz#mE RIEHE HERE B & 35 RIEAE
ARERE MRS NpCEE HERE MRS RESEEE

HK$'000 ##Fr HK$'000 %+ HK$'000 AT HK$'000 %% HK$'000 T HK$'000 &% Tt

Within 1 year 15/ - - - 62 - 62
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23Employee benefit obligations &E&&@H&ER

(a) Long service payments KRR &

154

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged to make lump sum payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years
of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plan that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
The long service payments are paid out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are required.

The latest actuarial valuation specifically designated for the Group's employees were completed by a
qualified actuary, Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, as at 28 February 2010 using the projected unit credit
method.

BEEB(EREGL)  MASRBEETEATELEREASBRBEEIAEMNETEL - FAUBRERENFEANZEE LI NRE
R o BN SREEE THRARF MR FHTE - WHROMERAEERAAZIME2EERTAREEELHTNIS - KEEW
BEBETAEEAXMEMESRNER TR - EF2ELNTRE - REBRBDAAEE FRREX(T -
RAEEEEMRNCIABEELECHAERBEEMBET RN E B AR A FN2010F2H28B FRAFE B ELETK °

(i) The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

FEAR B I BB 2 R AV BBR AT -

The Group A&

2010 2009
2010%F 20094
HK$'000 j&#F HK$'000 &# -+t

Present value of defined
benefit obligations RERBMBEBOERE 11,152 22,323

(i) Movements in the net liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:
AR E BB IR BRI B (B FREE T -

The Group £&£E

2010 2009
2010%F 20094
HK$'000 #&# 7% HK$'000 &% T 7t
'
At beginning of the year FH 22,323 17,671
(Reversal of expense)/expense TEiFe2EBARE 2 Ba
recognised in the profit or loss R (ZL#ERE)
in consolidated statement of S I
comprehensive income (note 4(b)) (Mi3E4(b)) (11,171) 4,652
At end of the year FR 11,152 22,323



23Employee benefit obligations (continued) g 88 HI5E % (4)
(a) Long service payments (continued) RHIRR%S (&)
(i) (Reversal of expense)/Expense recognised in the profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income is as follows:

FEAR B DEMA TR Z PR iRy (S HHAEE]), ST
The Group ~&E

2010 2009

20104F 20094

HK$'000 i#&# T+t HK$'000 &%+t
- -~
Current service cost NFE RIS A 170 861
Interest cost MEER 444 528
Net actuarial (gains)/losses recognised  DRERBE (EF)),Ei8%E (11,785) 3,730

Long service payment benefit made MREESZ

net of MPF benefits RERIE S - (467)
(11,171) 4,652

(iv) The (reversal of expense)/expense is recognised in the following line items in the profit or loss in the statement
of comprehensive income:

(FHIBEE]), S TOkR A 2 B A RE 2 187 H B AR -
The Group ~%&E

2010 2009

20104 20094

HK$'000 #&#s T+t HK$'000 ## 7t
-~ -~
Cost of goods sold SHE R (1,233) 542
Selling expenses HEER (7,993) 3,234
Administrative expenses THER (1,945) 876
(11,171) 4,652

(v)] The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 28 February 2010 (expressed as weighted average) are as
follows:

201092528 A& a9+ ZIEE RR (AN FHERT) T

The Group ~%&E

2010 2009

20104 20094F

HK$'000 & Tt HK$'000 &5 Tt

'

Discount rate ALIE & 2.7% 2%
Future salary increases KR & FHIE

Year 2009 20094 - -

Year 2010 20104 3% 4%

Year 201 1and thereafter 20114 R H 1k 4% 4%

Return of MPF balances BB AR EIR 4.5% 4%
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23Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(b) Defined confribution retirement plan

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retrement benefits schemes for all qualifying employees
in the People's Republic of China (“PRC”) and Malaysia. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of independent frustees.

The Group's total conftributions to these schemes charged to the profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the year ended 28 February 2010 amounted to HK$4,775,000 (2009:
HK$5,050,000) representing contributions payable by the Group to the schemes at the appropriate rates set
by the local government of the subsidiaries.

23 RERAEL (8

(b) FEHFERIKEE
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AEERREB(RVEABEFENEPDNRTE - ARETE(RBIEPDERNEE - 2ERGIMEAESFT([RESE]) - wES
B EREHERAKA S HBUNIFEAETE - RIEBESTE - BEREERHBERR EE*B?@)\E H 5% [ AT & F H (R -
He AR AR LR 7278 #20,0007T -

REENRAETEARIME([HE ) LRFRATSERNEESE—(EAREHFURKAE - SABNEEBYURAEENEELFR
BB XFEARBRER

REZE20106F2A28R IFF/E - AEB M FAABIPTEZ HEFE B 4,775,0007T (20094 - ##5,050,0007T) » I EAEAFE R EIK
AR 2 Batllf o WHEKDAEEREWE QA AELRBTER L REL -



24 Current tax (recoverable)/payable (FTHmE), /AT A

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents

RAEMBARBRERIRARRIAS -

2010 2009
20104F 20094
HK$'000 &%+t HK$'000 &%+t
Provision for Hong Kong profits tax EEFST A 4,523 5,051
Provisional profits tax paid ERTEHRIEH (3.742) (2,059)
781 2,992
Overseas taxation JHNITE 10,969 9,476
Profits tax provision relating to AR RS TEE
prior years 49,391 66,595
61,141 79,063
]
Represented by: & :
Current tax recoverable A E A AR (1,038) (116)
Current tax payable FERT AR EATR IR 62,179 79179

61,141 79.063
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24 Current tax (recoverable)/payable (continued) (FTHE), &< 7 BAFE 18 (41)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised EmERIELERBEEEFEE

158

The Group ZAZ£/E

The components of deferred (assets)/liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
and their movements during the year are as follows:

AR BRRBRERRE(BE)  AEFS RFANEEBIT -

Depreciation Withholding Tax
in excess Employee Provision on undistributed
of depreciation benefit for Tox profitsof ~ Other fiming
allowances obligations inventories losses subsidicries differences Total
HRE HERARNE
SHENE BERIEH FEER FEBE  BRENRER EfERER ag
Deferred tax arising from: ERRIARE - HK$'000 A% HK$'000 &%z HK$'000 %Fx HK$'000 AT HK$'000 #%Fx HK$'000 B%TFxr HK$'000 A% T
|
1 March 2008 R2008E3A1A (5,708) (2915) [4129) (5,354) - - (18,106
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss fEERGIA)/
Bl (1,283) (768) (1,043) (4,995) 6,466 - (1,623
Exchange difference B 5 5% (127) - (101) - 110 - (118)
28 February 2009 and 1 March 2009 200927288 &
2009%3A1H (7.118) (3,683) (5.273) (10,349 6,576 - (19,847)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss fEERGIA)/
il 914 1,843 (1,158) 9,624 5,363 (6,057) 10,529
Exchange difference 7R 43 - - - - - 43
28 February 2010 2010624288 (6,161) (1,840) (6.431) (725) 11,939 (6,057) (9.275)

2010 2009
20104 20094
HK$'000 #&i#& Tt HK$'000 ;B8 Tt

Net deferred tax asset recognised on the
consolidated statement of

i a BB R AR A
ERENIAEEFE

financial position (22,244) (26,732)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised A& WA R TR A
on the consolidated statement of RIER B B EFRE
financial position 12,969 6,885
(9,275) (19,847)



24 Current tax (recoverable)/payable (continued) (FTHE),/F& < 7 BT I8 (40
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (contfinued) E#RIELEREEEFMEE(E)

The Company A 7]
The components of deferred tax assets recognized in the Company's statement of financial position and
movements during the year are as follows:

EARR B BEARRRRERHELEHRIBEER D R FREEHIAT

Tax losses
RIEEE
HK$'000 & Tt

Deferred tax arising from: RRERIERE

1 March 2009 #200943818 (612)
Debited to Company'’s profit or loss EARNRIEEING 496
28 February 2010 2010528281 (116)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised R AERIEIER A & E

The components of unrecognised deferred tax (asset)/liabilities at the end of reporting period are as follows:
MEFEB 2 REREERIE(EE) /ABEHHWAT -

The Group A£E

2010 2009

20104 20094

HK$'000 #&#&F T HK$'000 #&#¥ -+t

-
Depreciation allowances in excess of HEER T E R

related depreciation E AR (15) (8)

Tax losses HIEEE (11,229) (1.658)

Others Hity (333) (6,057)

Net deferred tax assets not recognised REERNEEH IR S EFE (11,577) (7.723)

The net deferred tax assefs have not been recognised in the financial statements as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making or dormant for some time.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, profit would increase by
HK$11,577,000.

BHREERAEEFEREEE THRLRBRREEXEZMBAR] - FI Y RRUHRER QER -
AR EREIEPT B RERAE LR B AR - BAHZINER11,577,0007T -
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25Share capital &4

(a) Authorised and issued share capital JAE & E 3/ THRA

2010 2009
20104 20094F
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
ShEZEE] x| SE 4= X
'000 F4% HK$'000 BTt '000 Fi% HK$'000 &4 Tt
]
Avuthorised EE
Ordinary shares of $0.25 each SREEEK0.25 T E R 1,500,000 375,000 1,500,000 375,000
]
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE :
Ordinary shares ZiER
At beginning of the year F1) 208,813 52,203 207,063 51,766
Share options exercised [REREEAE 1,523 381 1,750 437
At end of the year FR 210,336 52,584 208,813 52,203

During the year, 1,523,000 shares (2009: 1,750,000 shares) of HK$0.25 par value each were issued for cash at
an exercise price of HK$1.76 per share by exercising the Company’s share options for a total consideration of
HK$2,680,000 (2009: HK$3,080,000) before expenses.

ARFIBRIER A AEENITEBREUSRER .76 T2 (ERE1,523,0008% (20094 : 1,750,000/%) © BREERBEE0.257T
Z Rty - FEARIBRAERAE AR - AR BT RSB 152,680,0007T (20094 : B #3,080,0007T) °

(b) Management of capital

160

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to confinue
as a going concern and fo maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to if, in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group has been imposed with a capital requirement from a banker that the Group’s equity to total assets
ratio (consolidated tangible net worth plus minority interest divided by total tangible assets) of not less than
30%. As of 28 February 2010 and 2009, the Group has complied with this capital requirement. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 28 February 2010 and 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a debft to equity ratio, which is total borrowings divided by total equity of the
Group. The Group's policy is to maintain the debt to equity ratfio not greater than 100%.



25 & AN (48)

(b) EAER
AEEMNEAEEEEHIZAREAEEEFELCEVRIFRTNERLE  UTEEEB R AR RFEZFAEE -

AEEEREEARE  UREBEENLES MARBEE 2 BT EEH AR - RERIHEBREARE - AEEAEARRBIRIK
MH2lB  REEATRRIETHR AEENEFRITHARERMNEASRTE @ Bt - AEEZREHEEELX(KRaBVEE
FEMDBIEREL - RABKEERE) TSP M30% ° 1R2010F K2009F2H28H » AEEN G L EARRE - REE2010%F 22009
F2ABALFE  ARENER - BRIEEZGEE L -

AEENAEELXRERER  IAKENEBERUERARE - AEBZBRDEFBEYREL T TZ1100%

2010 2009
20104 20094F
HK$'000 /#&#F7T HK$'000 ## T

Total equity T EER 720,577 578,946

Total borrowings WBIEE 149,786 131,788

Debt to equity ratio BEHERLE 21% 23%

26Reserves f##

The Company XA F

Share-based

Share Contributed  compensation Retained Proposed
premium surplus reserve profits  final dividend Total
inaE EgEH R wEREE RERM REREBRE fazt

HK$'000 ¥ Fr HK$'000 %%+ HK$'000 AT HK$'000 %% Fr HK$'000 T HK$'000 BTt

1 March 2008 7200863717 116,634 14,770 4,256 370,624 2,088 508,372
Lapse of share options BRREAM - - (1,339) 1,339 - -
Share options exercised BREETE 3,599 - (956) - - 2,643
Dividends paid BIRARE - - - (4.176) (2,088) (6,264)
Proposed final dividend RRARERS - - - (6,310 6,310 -
Loss for the year KAEEER - - - (48,278) - (48,278)
28 February 2009 72009527284

and 1 March 2009 20093718 120,233 14,770 1,961 313,199 6,310 456,473
Lapse of share options BRI - - (1,128) 1,128 - -
Share options exercised SRR 3132 - (833) - - 2,299
Dividends paid BIRRE - - - (4,207) (6.310) (10,517
Proposed final dividend RRARSRRS - - - (16,827) 16,827 -
Profit for the year KEERF - - - 126,527 - 126,527
28 February 2010 7420104624288 123,365 14,770 - 419,820 16,827 574,782
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26 Reserves (continued)
The Company (continued)
(a) The contributed surplus of the Company arose from the difference between the consolidated net assets of

the Group's subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo a group reorganisafion af the date on which the reorganisation
became effective, and the nominal amount of the Company’s ordinary shares issued under the
reorganisation; less the set-off the accumulated losses of the Company amounting to HK$865,747,000 as at 29
February 2004 pursuant to a capital reorganisafion.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out
of confributed surplus if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

(b) The aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the Company at 28 February

2010 was HK$574,782,000 (2009: HK$456,473,000).

26 frii e ()
ARAF ()
() ARRZERBRADELO A EEREEE AR HBARRERERE Nz GAEEFERBREART2 AL T EBREE

ZEF ORRE IR EABEME AR RIN200452 829 A8 REHEHRE#865,747,0007T

BREBRZIBIFRRERER]) - ARRZEHBHRIIAIHDIK » AT @ MHBRELTIER - ARB T ERHEHBAKRIGIBERE IR
SHNRE A D IREHMAER : —

(i) EENRER  ANRR TSGR EIBMEE X

(i) REENAEREERMEREAE - HEZTRARBRD B ER A -

(b) X2010F2H28H » Al Ik TA R RIBR 2 (# i A8FE /2781557 4,782,0007T (20094 « #¥456,473,0007T) °
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27 Commitments #iE
(a) There were no capital commitments at 28 February 2010 and 2009.

20105 K 200942 H28H » A& AR AHE o

(b) At 28 February 2010, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

R2010F2F28R - MrAIBRAELHENSIEHERFMT ¢

The Group A& The Company &R 7
2010 2009 2010 2009
20104 20094 20104 20094

HK$'000 jB#F7  HK$'000 &%+t HK$'000 ##+r HK$'000 B+

Within 1 year (B30 82,898 57,484 8,340 3,439
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FEESFR 62,296 70,925 12,017 -
145,194 128,409 20,357 3,439

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one fo three years, with an opfion to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
usually adjusted to reflect market rentals upon renegotiation of the terms of the lease.

AEBNKEHERRAOME - ELHE-RUPRY—FE=F VAFEEESE ERMAKIGRENER - HENIER
FENEREOGRRE AR - URRTSEE -
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28Share options
As disclosed under the heading of Share Option Scheme, 8,825,000 options were granted in 2005 to the directors,
employees and service providers of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme.
20% options granted are exercisable from 22 August 2005. The next 40% options granted are exercisable from 18
months from the date of grant and the remaining 40% options granted are exercisable from 24 months from the
date of grant.

The fair value of options granted, was determined by using the Binomial valuation model. The significant inputs
info the model were share price of HK$1.71 at the grant date, exercise price of HK$1.76, expected volatility of
the Company’s share price: 60% p.a., expected life of options of 4 years, expected nil dividend, annual risk-free
interest rate of 3.38% p.a., rate of leaving service of 15% p.a. and assume option holders will exercise their options
when the share price is at least 180% of the exercise price. The fair value of options granted is as follows:

28 B HE
SANBE AR ST B — EFFT IR - ANA AR IE2003F AR S8 - 1E20054F £15% 418,825,000/ REF A AT REMB AT EE - ES KRR
PR o Erh20%F 15 H ) B8 ARAE ] (2 200548 A 22 B AR T(E + SBHNMO%BE 15 A0 B ARHE A] /A 1% 1 B BRAE ST 1 818 B 141715 + 84 F40%E B
RS AR BI AT R PR B MRS T 2418 A 18771 o

EREMBRENAAER AN | BEEEEAGE - DERAEENTIEHAZEEERH AMNBREEE1.717T - 1TEEBK1.76

T ARBREZEHREEF60% - BRENAMFIRIF AHTRE - BEABRFENZX338%  SFHBLX15%  URKABRERSE
AHESRBEZETTRE KD 180% TR ERME - CRENBRENDABNT

No. of vested

Fair value options granted
Exercise period per Option ERHITFB
FT1EE] BhERENALE =g 2
|
22 August 2005 - 25 July 2009 200548 522 H-200947 A25H $0.56 #B#0.567T 1,765,000
25 January 2007 - 25 July 2009 200741 A258-200947 A25H $0.69 ##0.697T 3,530,000
25 July 2007 - 25 July 2009 200747 A250-200947 A 258 $0.73 #&#0.737C 3,530,000
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28Share options (continued) H& A% (4)
Given the above assumptions and the inherent limitations of the Binomial valuation model, shareholders and
other investors are hereby warned of the subjectivity and uncertainty of the aforementioned values of the
opftions.

During the year ended 28 February 2010, 1,523,000 options were exercised. The expiry of the exercise period
was 25 July 2009, 2,064,500 options were lapsed on 26 July 2009 in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. At 28 February 2010, there is no share option outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The
weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Stock Exchange immediately before the
date on which the options were exercised during the year ended 28 February 2010 was HK$2.05.

B bR M —EA I REERA ARG - BRESEREAMKRES - DABEEEEREE T - MAATES -
REZE201052 288 IEFE + 1,523,000 B EETTE - 1T BRI H B 2200947 5258  RBEBAGHEZ 5K - 2,064,5000 BAER
200947 H26 A3 » 102010524281 - FEAaT 8118 P BRI TERBAGE - 22010927280 © ERBREETEE AN AE
BZARABRM R HERE#2.057T

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

B BB M HTTEEN T

2010 2009
2010%F 20094
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
AT g AT B
7@ #H 17661 #E

-
Outstanding at the beginning of ¥k 77®

the year HK$1.76 #1760 3,587,500  HK$1.76 &#1.767C 7,787,500
Exercised during the year FERTTR HK$1.76 71,76 7T (1,523,000)  HK$1.76 Bi1.767T (1,750,000)
Lapsed during the year FRERB HK$1.76 71,76 7T (2,064,500)  HK$1.76 7&%1.76 ¢ (2,450,000)
Outstanding at the end of the year Ex&771E HK$1.76 #1760 - HK$1.76 #1767 3,587,500
Exercisable at the end of the year &k aA17{# HK$1.76 E#1.767C - HK$1.76 &#1.76 T 3,587,500
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29 Contingent liabilities

(a) At 28 February 2010, the Company has issued guarantees to banks and financial creditors in respect of

general banking and other credit facilities extended to certain subsidiaries of the Company amounting to
HK$153,901,000 (2009: HK$134,649,000).

(b) As set out in the announcements of the Company dated 3 June 2008, two former directors of the Company,

and a former controller of showroom operation of a subsidiary and a former consultant to a subsidiary were
convicted by the District Court of Hong Kong of various charges involving offences under the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance, the Crime Ordinance and the Theft Ordinance. The Company has been informed that the
two former directors who have been convicted have commenced proceedings to appeal the verdict. It was
noted that the appeal was dismissed by the Court of Appeal on 31 May 2010. The Company understands that
the two former directors are entitled to further appeal to a higher court but does not know their intention at
the moment (“the possible Appeal”).

Under the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Company may be required to indemnify its directors from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur in execution
of their duty, provided that such indemnity shall not be extended to any matter in respect of, among other
things, fraud and dishonesty.

The Directors are of the view that they are not in a position fo conclude that whether and/or to what extent
the Company may be required to indemnify the two former directors involved in relation to the possible
Appeal.

29k EAfE
() A2010F2 8280 « KRR HBITRMBERABRTFARAETHELT—BETREMEXMERE - METRMBEREAELS

#153,901,0007T (20094F : jE#134,649,0007T ) HIFELR

(o) BENA QT HHIR2008F6 A3H 2 NS » AARMABREERTAR —RMBARRINERXRBZAEIE RN —KMBAR —RAE
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BRI EERIEVEREEMICH LRI IRD] - MIEFITEHPIREBFIEOID ZIREE - KRR FELMABREFENATESCRER
RHEHF - ARBNEED EFVERECSN2010F5A31 BEE L5F - ARRIBEAMEBRIEEFTARABRS S OERIELE—F LK - R
R NI E 2 B ([ATBE £/ ) o

BEBEARBZARMA - AAR AR AR EEERBITRBMAEEL ZAARA KA - X~ 18K - BERAXORE SRS E S EM
ALELRE - HEAFREL TR (ERER)BFERTHETR

BEERR BEAEHRERERS AR LFZMENEESELBER AAR AL BE L REELER °



30Pledge of assets
(a) At 28 February 2010, debentures were executed by the Group in favour of its bankers and financial creditors
charging, by way of fixed and floating charges, all of the undertakings, properties and assets of the Company
and of its 12 subsidiaries as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from
time to fime owing by the Group to the bankers and financial creditors. Rental revenue of the Group is also
charged in favour of the Group’s bankers.

(b) At 28 February 2010, the Group pledged all rights, titles and interests in 80.46% of the entire share capital of IAC
and TSL China and all benefits accruing fo the pledged equity interest to the Group's bankers and financial
creditors as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from fime fo fime owing
by the Group to the bankers and financial creditors.

(c) At 28 February 2010, the Company and the Subsidiaries executed a second floating charge and the
Company made a guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there was a cross guarantee among the Subsidiaries
in favour of Rosy Blue HK to pledge all of the Subsidiaries’ respective rights to and title and interest from fime
fo time in their inventories or stock-in-tfrade and their receivables from their overseas fellow subsidiaries in
connection with the sales and supply of any inventory or stock-in-frade to such overseas fellow subsidiaries
as a confinuing security for the Debts. As at 28 February 2010, the Debts amounted to HK$144,271,000 (2009:
HK$70,430,000).

30 & EHIH
(a) R2010%2 281 » AEEFIERRE - WEE MFBEFTLAB AR RE12EHEARZMBEES - MEMEELH THAERET
RUBEEA - UMER(EPERE) ARE T RHERERRIT MU BERAZABEERIHBEABERER 2ER M - NAEBENBESWATR
BEHEM T AR ERERIRTT -

(b) R20105F2 A28 F » AEELHNIAC K it in i B AR ANEEH80.46% 2 —tIHER - PIAREMMER - REEMRAERM R —UF
S ER T AEENERBIT RV BEEA - WER/(EFERE)AKEIRERERRITMMBERAZAEERISBABREBK 2K
R o

(c) M20105F2H28H @ AARIRZEMBARRILE FBERRARRAZEMBELMELER - MZEMBRARZETIAERINER
Dz ENBARS B TRREEZFERFEFEULBERERAKEGINE RN B R RIHE MR EATFEFIHTE 2 BKZ
FFINRARMERABIFIA L BN - FratEkE=EMR TRosy Blue HK » MERZER 2 #HE&HEHm - N2010F2H28H  %EER
7#144,271,0007T(2009 : 7#E#70,430,000) °
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31 Connected and related party transactions
(a) Partner Logistics Limited, a company confrolled by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Tommy Tse"), a substantial

shareholder and the spouse of a director of the Company, acquired all the rights, fitle and interests in
the indebtedness due to certain of the bank lenders by the Group amounting to HK$195,731,000 and
HK$14,000,000 on 11 February 2004 and 2 April 2004 respectively.

At 28 February 2010, the outstanding loans due to Partner Logistics Limited amounted to HK$6,962,000 (2009:
HK$21,514,000) are secured and interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate plus 2% per annum.
During the year ended 28 February 2010, interest expenses paid to Partner Logistics Limited amounted to
HK$330,000 (2009: HK$1,155,000).

The transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
fransactions and confirmed that the fransaction has been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on ferms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

31 A NN TR 5
(a) Partner Logistics Limited(—RIlAR G X ZERRF - BEE 2B - HHEELEESIAAF])R2004F2 118 k200454 52H 5 Bl
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BAAEEEEERLERRITNER195,731,0007T &8 # 14,000,000 EE A ER - PrERENER

201052 4280 - /K Partner Logistics Limited&I & 716,962,000t (20094 : 7#121,514,0007T) AB EF R GFIREBRITE
FICM2EET R - HZE2010F2H28H EFE + EMPartner Logistics LimitedsZ {74 #330,0007T (20094 : ##1,155,0007T) 2 L&
e

AR HRELTRUEVAAEIEBK —BRFBHER S - ARFZBEILIFPTESFCERLIFTERER S NLER - ZEXHEARRF]
MEBERBTELEBEGEARREZF LSO HENIGEIET  MXBERAFAE > THFAARRABRROBEMNS - AR AHER
EffE EMRAEIATHIERE -



31 Connected and related party transactions (continued)
(b) During the year ended 28 February 2010, TSL M&D, a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and
finished goods from Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$228,258,000 (2009: HK$131,718,000). At 28 February 2010,
the amount due to Rosy Blue HK was HK$144,08%,000 (2009: HK$70,062,000).

During the year ended 28 February 2009, TSL(Macau), a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials
and finished goods from Rosy Blue HK amounting fo HK$150,000.

During the year ended 28 February 2010, TSL(HK), a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and
finished goods from Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$463,000 (2009: HK$6,411,000). At 28 February 2010, the
amount due to Rosy Blue HK was HK$182,000 (2009: HK$368,000).

During the year ended 28 February 2010, TSL M&D sold finished goods to Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$Nil (2009:
HK$5,000).

During the year ended 28 February 2010, EF sold raw materials to BTSL through Rosy Blue (Shanghai) Diamond
Company Limited (“Rosy Blue SH"), an authorised diamond trading company in the PRC, amounting fo
HK$128,724,000 (2009: HK$26,898,000).

Rosy Blue HK and Rosy Blue SH are subsidiaries of Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L., a preference shareholder of

Partner Logistics. In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the transactions were carried out on normal
commercial ferms and in the ordinary course of business.

S1HERBMALRS (B
(b) BLE2010F2H28R L FE - ARF—HH B AR N mEIEE N D8 - MRosy Blue HKEE A 73808 #228,258,0007T (20094 : B
131,718,0007T ) B R R BUAK 7 © FA2010F2 3281 - FEffRosy Blue HKEIFIE A% 144,089,0007T (20094 : 7##70,062,0007T)
B ZE2009F2H28H IEFE - AR R —EHE A RITSLORPT) MRosy Blue HKEE A RSB ¥ 1 50,0007 R # R BUp am -

BE2010F2A 28R (F5/E - AN A B QR ImE (B8 ) [AIRosy Blue HKEE AR 208 ¥ 463,0007T (20094 : j&#6,411,0007T) &Y
[RMEE R B » 7A20109F2 4288 » FEfSRosy Blue HKEYFRIE /8% 182,000t (20094 : E#368,0007T) °

B E20106F2H28H 1L - #iinBE RS o HAIRosy Blue HKIE & =B Z T (20094 : 1 5,0007T ) BB o

BZE2010F2A28H L5 E - BREREB—MTERUVEBEBLNESIARNEXR(US)BLERAR(EXR LE DRI RHRBEER
218 15128,724,0007T (20094F « ##£26,898,0007T) B R #}

Rosy Blue HKFIEE Bk /8 APartner LogisticsH{E 5L fx 8 Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L.ZHIEB AR - KARAREERE  X5HEH
BEBIBEPIRIE TR GRETT o

(c) The Group paid key management personnel compensation as follows:

AEEREZERABMMHERT

2010 2009

2010%F 20094

HK$'000 &#T 7t HK$'000 &5 Tt
-~~~ -
Short-term employee benefits R e A 15,293 13,421
Post-employment benefits BFEER 48 42
15,341 13,463
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32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values
(a) Financial risk management

170

The Group is exposed to a variety of risks including foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
interest rate risk arising in the normal course of the Group's business activities.

The directors monitor the financial risk management of the Group and take such measures as considered
necessary from time fo fime to minimise such financial risks.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due fo changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate, and the Group's
net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars.
The Group does not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes or to hedge
against fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group mitigates this risk by conducting the sales and
purchases tfransactions in the same currency, whenever possible.

In the opinion of the directors, United States dollars are reasonably stable under the Linked Exchange
Rate System with Hong Kong dollars and accordingly, the Company does not have any significant foreign
exchange risk.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers may not be able to seftle obligations within the normal
terms of transactions. The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation of the debtors’ financial condition
and maintains an account for impairment losses for doubtful frade and other accounts receivable based
upon the expected collectibles of all frade and other accounts receivable.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no major concentrations of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is therefore represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
as stated in the statement of financial position.

Cash is held with financial institutions of good standing.



2 PR EIE LA A EGE
(o) 15 R E 2
AEBEHSERR  BREREERETHZ —MBRETELZINERR EERER nBESRBRIESREF AR
EFERASECHHRBRER  WARNRARBUEZERE  WREZSVIERR -

(i) SME=SR
SNEREBR TEM B TAZ AAERAKRRE REFNEXEHTNB AR

AEEEZEEH ZINERR - RRAKEHBIDEEE N EBINEZEERAKERBEINGBE AR ZFRE - EEURERZ
EREBR/ET - ARBUERALETEMITEMB LR - UMEEEREREITE LA G - AKEEBIE RSB TAR—
ERETEERZRELL AR
EERA - ARNABTHBBEXGIET - XTAEENRE - Bt - AABARBEANINERE

(i) 1ZE/ER
EERBRIAZPAIGEEEIN —RIXZFMABEBEBHMESL - ARBIZRATE YRR R EMEUR 2 BRI WEREE - HEBA
Z A BASE L FHBE ERE - R RYERT S B A U R 2 RERIR OB E & 18 -
REFER - EERRIEBEES
At - RAZEERBRAMBHRABRRAESMBEEZREE -

ReEHNEE RIFBEZ BSHE -
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32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly
at close to its fair value.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The Group monitors and maintains a
level of bank balances deemed adequate to finance the Group’s operations.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring the working capital of the group to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for confingency
purposes. As at 28 February 2010, the Group's total available banking facilities were HK$202,640,000 (2009:
HK$122,320,000), of which HK$146,131,000 (2009: HK$112,302,000) were utilised at the end of the reporting
period.

2 PR EE R AL EERT ()
(o) MR ERE (&)
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//I// ///Lfié_/f\ﬂ/}/_\

mBESRBIECEESEARMNEME T RAMAERS LR AR - RBESRRAGAELLEREOIEAABEZER
HEVBHEEMESE

BREZRDECEREEEEFACHE - AEHSEEMERA[THRNANERLERB ZRITEHBNKFE
AEENEARSRESNMERRDECAR HAARSFRNERAEE 2 EEEAEREENMBEIHNEABEREHNESS

Koo Rk Z AN - RITREE DA RBEAERNR 25 - M2010F2H28H - AEE 2 BIRT1TAE T A8 1202,640,0007T (20094 : B
122,320,0007T) * H A5 146,131,0007T (20094 : jE%112,302,0007T ) RN F4EHE A ©



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued) @k &R KA EfLG ()
(a) Financial risk management (continued) B /@ &2 (45)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) ;z#)& < /&5 (&)

The Group F&&£H

The maturity profile of the Group’s and Company's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the confracted undiscounted payments, was as follows:
REHER - RBEFTHORMRNER - ARERARFPFEREIEEROT

2010
20104
No fixed
repayment
terms/
On demand Less than 1to2 2to5
EETEER 1 year year year Total
BIRESREE 1T 1FZ2F 2FE56F a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BET T
'
Other loan - secured HiEH—HEA - 7,009 - - 7,009
Obligations under finance B TR S
leases 2 105 100 103 310
Finance liabilities included in AR
tfrade and other payables HE Rz
BgaE 267,435 226,135 - - 493,570
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEZ —HIER 19,364 - - - 19,364
Bank loans — secured RITER—BEA - 93,231 9,600 27,200 130,031
286,801 326,480 9,700 27,303 650,284

No fixed
repayment
terms/

On demand
EETEEE,
BIRESKER
HK$'000
BT T

2009 (restated)

Less than
1 year
TFUAT

HK$'000
AT

20094 (&E51))
1102 2105
year year Total
1225 2 E55F B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T BT T BT T

Other loan - secured Hib B —HIEF - 14,907 7,009 - 21,916
Other loan — unsecured HAb B — EI IR - 315 - - 315
Obligations under finance B TR S
leases - 173 98 210 481
Finance liabilities included in AR
tfrade and other payables HpE Rz
g aE 286,937 98,071 - - 385,008
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEZ —HIER 22,468 - - - 22,468
Bank loans — secured RITER—BEA - 75,520 12,743 - 88,263
309,405 188,986 19,850 210 518,451



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued) B ERE R kAR E-G @)
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(a) Financial risk management (continued) Bf % &k & 12 (48)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) & &< /m 5w ()

The Company &2 7

2010
20104
No fixed
repayment
terms/
On demand Less than 1to2 2to5
EETEEL, 1 year year year Total
BIREKEE TEUT 1 E26F 2EFE5MF A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT EEEFIT BT BT
1
Finance liabilities included in T AETBR R E M
trade and other payables ez BB aE 5,187 - - - 5,187

Financial guarantees to bank  mRTER 2 B#ER 153,901 - - - 153,901

2009
20094F
No fixed
repayment
terms/
On demand Less than 1to2 2to5
EETEEL, 1 year year(s) years Total
BIREKEE TEUT 1 E26F 2 E54F A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T EEEFIT BT BT
1
Finance liabilities included in T AETBR R E M
trade and other payables ez BB aE 5,131 - - - 5,131
Other loan - unsecured Hh B — &I A - 315 - - 315
Obligations under finance A E AR
leases - 62 - - 62
5,131 377 - - 5,508

Financial guarantees to bank — @R1T1ER 2 BHIER 134,649 - - -



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from floating rate borrowings. The sensitivity analysis below have
been determined assuming that change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence at that date.
A 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the group’s profit for
the year ended 28 February 2010 and the retained profits as of 28 February 2010 would decrease/increase
by HK$554,000 (2009: decrease/increase by HK$265,000). This is mainly attributes to the group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

(b) Estimation of fair values
The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including trade
and other receivables, cash at bank, frade and other payables) are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of finance lease liabilities is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
current market interest rates for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of non-trade balances due from/to group and related companies has not been determined as
the timing of the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of the
relationship.

2 G RERER M AR EEE ()
() IFEREREIR(E)
(iv) B8 R A A (EFIE @
HenefMERBIERMSFNESEHEHRMFE TAZ RKREREF Z AR - AR EFERRERTERTSFESEHEHET
B BEEREZRE -

AEE Y FIEAREBES BFBFIEES - DT 2HAE AN DBRAESHNFHREETER - L2 FARKA S FENH
BHLAMEY AR - EREBERARNBSBRFIRABES - KA THEATHMA TR B2 BR - MERBRAE 2 AR
B BRI H0ERAS -

EFIIE I, T E - MATE A EERIE T - AREBZE2010F2A288 (LFE 2 BF KR20105F2 4288 2 RE & F R~
KN #554,0007T (20094 < A 18 NE#E265,0007T) © th HEERNAEER L F REEMEE 2 FIRPE -

(o) AR {EZ AR
R—FRBHRHPHEENMAE(BRRESRZ L EMMEYT - RITFH - BNRAREMENTI 2222 BRERBEAABRE
MEMERBEZ AREMFTARKRSREREBEN B TEZRITTSMERHR 2HRE -
RREERREY BN AEEREEARZIFEIEHRTERRSRERMBEEARET NI BETARERZANE -
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33HnondoHnﬁnﬁnemsb%cxﬂe ory B TESHE

;h”e carrying amounts of each o
ollow:
BRI ENFER ZEREENT :

The Group &&E

he categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

Loans and
recewobles
Bk M EMGR

HK$' 000 8% F 7t

Financial assets BKEE
As at 28 February 2010 7A201062H28H
Financial assets included in tfrade and BT AT JE L5 AR R R EAth FE LA R
other receivables S EE 176,077
Cash at bank IRITHERR 176,894
Total HET 352,971
'
Loans and
receivables
£ \T%\&FEJW

HK$’'000 ﬁ%’#ﬁ‘?n

Financial assets MKEE
As at 28 February 2009 7R2009F2H28H
Financial assets included in frade AT NTE FE S AR 30 2 L Ath i LR

and other receivables Zﬁﬁ%éﬁ 149,829
Cash at bank R1THE 127,121
Total wEt 276,950

Financial liabilities
at omorflsed cost

CHEaRE
HK$'000 58 F it

Financial liabilities BkasE
As at 28 February 2010 7201062828 H
Financial liabilities included in frade AT ATE FEA BR 3R EAth FE 1+ 3R

and other payables 2 EE 493,570
Bank overdrafts-secured RITES — BT 19,364
Bank loans-secured RITER—HIEIF 123,150
Other loan-secured HiEHR—HEA 6,962
Obligations under finance leases A THERNE 310
Total #Et 643,356

As at 28 February 2009 (restated)
Financial liabilities included in trade and

720095282808 (E3I)
FHNFE A AR AR B EL A 3R

other payables 2B as 385,008
Bank overdrafts-secured RITHY — BT 22,468
Bank loans-secured RITER—HIEIF 87.014
Other loan-secured HEER—HEH 21,514
Other loan-unsecured H it B3k — &K 311
Obligations under finance leases BB E AR 48
Total Bt 516,363

At The end of the reporhng%enod all financial msfrumen’rs are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values.

REZR - BV TAZL
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33Financial instruments by category (continued) 817 T A5 48 4)

The Company &2 &

Loans and
receivables

B R R
HK$'000 & Tt

Financial assets BREE

As at 28 February 2010 2010525 28H

Due from subsidiaries FEAR P B A B IE 435,933
Deposits & 32
Cash at bank RITEERR 110
Total 15T 436,075

Loans and
receivables

B & EMGR
HK$'000 &5 Tt

Financial assets MKEE

As at 28 February 2009 7A200942H28H

Due from subsidiaries AR B A R kA 438,739

Deposits & 1

Cash at bank RITHEA 44
438,784

1

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
LA S8R AR A BR
ZHBatE
HK$'000 &5 Tt

Financial liabilities MEaE
As at 28 February 2010 7A2010462H28H
Financial liabilities included in A E AR TR R E B

other payables and accruals 2B aE 4,615
As at 28 February 2009 72009525 28H
Financial liabilities included in ST AH Ath A 3R M FE R T B A

other payables and accruals d:ypi 5=V 5131
Other loan-unsecured H b R — S 311
Obligations under finance leases BE TR EAE 62
Totall et 5,504

At the end of the reporting period, all financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values.
REHEB - IEMBIACZEBEEEAABETEENER
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34Recent accounting and financial reporting pronouncements s & st k& %S4
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new and revised standards and interpretations which are not

yet effective for the current year and have not been early adopted by the Group:
REERBRAEMNATHESSFRIASEMRANEE BRERIEE] - FIRIEFT 2 LRI RBE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUAT B Bk & Fsa

Z &t EAfR A

HKAS 24 (Revised)
B & ST HERIZE 24558 (KHERT)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

S RIERIFE 2757 (YERT)
HKAS 32 Amendment

u$$H|J%€32‘J’F’( DT$>
HKAS 39 Amendment

ARG ERZEI95 (BT A)
HKFRS 1 Amendment

BERUBRELEE R UEETA)
HKFRS 2 Amendment

BRI IEERIE2R(EFTA)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BRI HREERIEINR (KIEFT)
HKFRS 9

BRI EEERIEIWR
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Amendment

R (BRI BIREREEES) 2B 145 (BTRN)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

B4 (ERUBREREEEY) - RES 7R
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

HE(BRVBREAEEZEE) 2B 199
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

BB HEER 2 E220085F
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

EBI SR 2 £2520094F

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

BRI E SR 2 EDR2010%F

178

Related Party Disclosures

BHEANT#HE

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

bRE RN B R R

Classification of Rights Issues

e

Eligible Hedged Items

AAREHIER

Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

BIREMMETEINR R

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

EEREIMUBRMNENZS

Business Combinations

EBa0t

Financial Instruments

MBIE

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

REES B ZIEMNRIEA

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

DRIERSEETHAA

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

oM BEEEERTA

Amendments to HKFRS 5

BBV B E LR BT ZER]

Amendments to HKFRSs 2, 5 & 8,
HKASs 1,7,17,18, 36, 38 & 39
and HK(IFRIC) -Int9 & 16

BB IERELER|FE 25 - B5%E K ES
EEGTEREIS - BT - 2175
1851 - 365 « FI8FREIHIAREE

(HRUBHRERERES) —REFITRE16MEFT

Amendments fo HKFRSs 1, 3 & 7,
HKASs 1, 27 & 34 and
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

BB RELEREIR - BIRME7IR
BEGETERE1 - B7HRRFBIFUARES
(BB ERELZES) -2 BFE 13R85

1 January 2011
201151 A1H
1 July 2009

2009%7AR1H
1 February 2010
20102A1H
1 July 2009
20097AR1H
1 January 2010

20101 A1H
1 January 2010

20101 A1H
1 July 2009
2009%7AR1H
1 January 2013
20131HA1H
1 January 2011

2011F1 A1H
1 July 2009

2009%7H1H
1 July 2010

20107RA1H
1 July 2009
2009%7H1H
1 July 2009 or
1 January 2010

200947 A1H
520101 A 1H

1 July 2010 or
1 January 2011

201057 A1H 3
20111 A1H



34Recent accounting and financial reporting pronouncements (continued)
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact of adopting the above new standards,
amendments/revisions/improvements to standards and interpretations but is not yet in a position to state whether
substantial changes to the Group's accounting policies and presentation of the financial statements will be
required.

34 A AMEEET MRS 2R ()
AR ED BT RA DRITITRA - RAI B BEEHEREZEBYE - MR ERTASE Y B RERIGRE L 251
DEEIERERE

35 Ultimate controlling party
At 28 February 2010, the Directors consider the immediate holding company to be Partner Logistics Limited,
which is incorporated in British Virgin Islands, the ultimate holding company to be Blink Technology Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate controlling party to be Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

35 AR TS
M201052828H » EFR A NEBRZE B HPartner Logistics Limited BE B AT » SRR AT AN EBR LB ST MR
3 K] Blink Technology Limited » &4 42 A T A#HEE L £ -

36 Comparative amounts
As further explained in note 1 to the financial statements, due to the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations during the current year, the accounting freatment and presentation
of certain items and balances in the financial statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have been made and certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified and restated to conform with the current year's presentation and accounting tfreatment.

36 LLEBHF
INEATS SRR MRV PEE AL - RN AR R AT MERT BB IS M EERI M kg - MR PE TIRE AR Z S5 RIE
K 2RO ABFREELIER - Bt - SERETAEFERE  METHREFEEFOBEMEY  UHARFEZE2H
FTRANEF R
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Five-year Financial Summary # &&=

RESULTS %%

Year ended 28th/29th February

HE2H28/29H I FE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
20104 20094 20084 20074 20064F

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT BT

(restated)  (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&71) (E51)) (&%) (&%)
]
Turnover SR 2,017,572 1,959,360 1,917,378 1,509,731 1,322,907
]
Profit before taxation FRA AT 2T 199,095 159,500 157,320 98,814 41,208
Taxation A (52,344) (35,022) (46,053) (24,955) (70,551)
Profit/(loss) for the year REFREF, (E8) 146,751 124,478 111,267 73,859 (29,343)
]
Attributable to : FEAEEB 1D
Equity holders of the Company RA T RERARR 121,690 104,757 99,228 55,478 (49,045)
Minority interests DB R A 25,061 19,721 12,039 18,381 19,702
Profit/(loss) for the year REFRF, (E8) 146,751 124,478 111,267 73,859 (29,343)



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 28th/29th February

72 H28/29H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
2010%F 20094F 20084 20074 20064

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT BT T BET T BETFT
(restated)  (restated) (restated) (restated)

(E31) (&%) (&%) (&%)
]
Investment properties and property, WEMERDE

plant and equipment 5 K a& A 118,593 134,625 138,375 130,663 117,691
Deferred tax assets EIEFEE E 22,244 26,732 18,883 25,096 20,834
Investments in securities and BHRERIEREBEE

non-current assets 500 500 500 603 603
Current assets MENVEE 1,316,628 1,050,499 1,101,226 764,532 712,673
Current liabilities nEBE (676,264) (584,292) (739,448) (526,690) (485,830)

781,701 628,064 519,536 394,204 365,971

Obiligation under finance lease mhE S AE (203) (308) (126) (991) (614)
Bank and other loans RITREMER (36,800) (19.602) (54,146) (76.359) (110,867)
Employee benefit obligations B BRRAES (11,152) (22.323) (17,671) (10,836) (8.759)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBE & (12,969) (6.885) (777) (55) (46)
NET ASSETS EESRE 720,577 578,946 446,816 305,963 245,685
]
Capital and reserves BEAXREE

Share capital &N 52,584 52,203 51,766 51,766 51,766
Reserves #f 574,782 458,640 348,701 222,711 154,118
Total equity attributable to RA TR R E(L 858

equity holders of the Company 627,366 510,843 400,467 274,477 205,884
Minority interests DEIR R S 93,211 68,103 46,349 31,486 39,801
TOTAL EQUITY AR 720,577 578,946 446,816 305,963 245,685
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Summary of Properties

Location
HbBh

1 Private Car Parking Space Nos.
43-50, and 73 on Basement
and Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1-4, 6, 11
and 14, 1st Floor, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue
Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NEAMRMWET0REZE T B AL HE
43-50 M 73R ERE L N 112
1-4 6 11145 EEAEN

2 Units A1-A7, B, Front and Rear Porfion,
Storeroom No.3 and 5, Ground Floor; Units
Al1-A2, B and C, 1st Floor; Unit E-H, 2nd
Floor; Units A-K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor;
Summit Building,

30 Man Yue Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

BB NEAMRBEIFHEETHAEM T
A1-A7 - BEEfL - FIi&E0 ~ SREMFEME
11#EA1-A25(] - BRRCEfy - 21ZE-HEA]
IEAKEN LT E

3 Unifts A & B, Tst Floor, Shui Ki Industrial
Building, No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong
BEEEBHEMNE1SIREH T ENE1BAKRBEN

4 Unit A1 on Level 1 and 2, Block 2, Heng Chang

Garden, Beijing, PRC
REERTE S EE 281 R2AEA1EE [

182

Gross floor
area
BREME

N/A

91,455

10,716

1,654

Percentage
interest in

property
L e T e

100%

100%

100%

100%

Category of
tenure
FHN D

Usage
A&



Location
HoBh

Flat 01, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome
Garden, Cao Hui Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC

PRI RTEAMG E B 2R R SR FRE231E1 =

L: Long term lease

M:  Medium term lease

C:. Carpark

[ Industrial unit

R: Residential

N/A: Not applicable

L: REIRL

M:  FRERRRA

C: CHEf
ITEREM

R TF=

N/A: iEF

Gross floor
area
BEMREE

1,735

Percentage
interest in
property
IES s E RS

100%

Category of
tenure
FHN D

Usage
A&

183









© Copyright Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
All rights reserved

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in
a retrieval system, or tfransmitted, in any form or by any
means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording,
or otherwise, without the prior written permission of TSL.

Published by
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited, Hong Kong

Designed by TSL Group Marketing
Printed by Treasure Printing Co., Ltd.

Paper use:

Cover and gate-fold poster:

Polytrade: Starwhite Flash White 227 gsm/118 gsm,
made in the United States, FSC Mixed Credit,
Green-e Certification, lignin free, acid free

Text Pages (Non-Account Sections):
Polytrade: Starwhite Flash Blue 118 gsm,
made in the United States, FSC Mixed Credit,
Green-e Certification, lignin free, acid free

Text Pages (Account Section):

Polytrade: Impact Climate Paper 120 gsm,

made in Austria, Elemental Chlorine Free(ECF),

FSC Credit Recycled(with 100% post-consumer waste)

Divider:

Polytrade: Condat Gloss Art Paper 225 gsm,
made in France, FSC Mixed Credit,
Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF), acid free,
biodegradable,




T S L | # 55 g




	封面

	封二

	目錄
	公司簡介
	財務概要
	致股東的函件
	管理層之討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員簡介
	董事會報告書
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合全面收入報表
	綜合財務狀況報表
	財務狀況報表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	物業摘要
	封三

	封底




